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Forward-Looking Statements
In this Annual Report, we have disclosed forward-looking information to enable investors to comprehend our prospects and take
investment decisions. This report and other statements – written and oral - that we periodically make, contain forward-looking
statements that set out anticipated results based on the management’s plans and assumptions.
We have tried, wherever possible, to identify such statements by using words such as ‘anticipate’, ‘estimate’, ‘expects’, ‘projects’,
‘intends’, ‘plans’, ‘believes’, and words of similar substance in connection with any discussion of future performance. We cannot
guarantee that these forward-looking statements will be realised, although we believe we have been prudent in our assumptions.
The achievements of results are subject to risks, uncertainties and even inaccurate assumptions. Should known or unknown
risks or uncertainties materialise, or should underlying assumptions prove inaccurate, actual results could vary materially from
those anticipated, estimated or projected. Readers should keep this in mind. We undertake no obligation to publicly update any
forward-looking statement, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

The evolving Indian economic environment is set to
witness a new scale of growth, riding on a fresh wave of
opportunities in the core sectors of Infrastructure and
Real Estate. As these opportunities translate into real
GHYHORSPHQWRQWKHJURXQGWKH\ZLOOZLWQHVVVLJQL´FDQW
demand for capital, requiring alternate fund sources like
NBFCs to complement the traditional banking system.
With the strong backing of our
key

sponsors,

coupled

with

the helm of this transformation
are our holistic efforts towards

progress as it surges towards

building a vigorous enterprise
designed to meet tomorrow’s
QHHGV WKURXJK D GLYHUVL´HG DQG
de-risked approach. As an
agile but prudent entity rooted
in our core values of ethical
and transparent growth, our
enterprise is today geared
towards leveraging the external
opportunities
that
we
see
unfolding ahead of us. We are
well set to harness our intrinsic
SRWHQWLDO WR ´QDQFH ,QGLDV
future, that beckons us with all its

sustainable

promise and optimism.

VXSSRUW RI GRPHVWLF ´QDQFLDO
institutions, we, at Altico Capital,
DUHIXOO\HTXLSSHGWR´QDQFHWKH
burgeoning

opportunities

for

India’s long-term growth. Steered
by our conservative policies, and
VXSSRUWHGE\RXUVWURQJ´QDQFLDO
sponsors,

professional

and

experienced board of directors,
dynamic management and robust
systems of governance, we see
ourselves partnering with India’s
development.

At
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Altico Capital – At a glance

Incorporated as the erstwhile Clearwater Capital
Partners India Private Limited in January 2004, Altico
Capital is a Systemically Important Non-Banking
Finance Company, registered with Reserve Bank of
India. The Company’s primary business is advancing
ORDQVDQG´QDQFLQJSURMHFWV
Altico Capital’s current focus is
on senior secured lending to midincome residential projects and
commercial real estate sector
across Tier-I cities in India, which
include Mumbai, NCR, Chennai,
Bengaluru, Pune and Hyderabad.
To complement the strategy of
SURYLGLQJ´QDQFLQJVROXWLRQVWRWKH
real estate sector, Altico Capital
SODQV WR GHOLYHU VWUXFWXUHG ´QDQFH
solutions to infrastructure and other
adjacent sectors, consistent with its
core lending principles.
:LWK VLJQL´FDQW FDSLWDOLVDWLRQ RI
` 2,022 crore from its world-class
´QDQFLDO VSRQVRUV  &OHDUZDWHU
Capital
Partners,
Abu
Dhabi
Investment Council (ADIC) and

Värde Partners - Altico Capital has
a strong equity base, which it is
FRQWLQXRXVO\ OHYHUDJLQJ WR ´QDQFH
future growth.
The Company has executed a
`  FURUH ´YH\HDU 6HFXUHG
Redeemable
Non
Convertible
Debentures (“NCD”) facility with
International Finance Corporation
(“IFC”). This has strengthened
the Company’s capital base and
also provides long-term funding
stability. Subsequent to the year
under review, a part of this IFC debt
was drawn by the Company and
listed as secured NCDs on BSE
effective
April
2016,
thereby
categorising Altico Capital as a
listed entity.

` 2,022 crore
Total net worth as of
March 31, 2016

NPAs / Restructuring:

NIL
Fitch Rating:
 $$UDWLQJIRUORQJWHUP
borrowing
 $ KLJKHVWUDWLQJ IRU
short-term borrowing

Strategy and underwriting philosophy
Altico Capital focusses on high-yielding asset-backed senior secured credit opportunities in the Real
Estate sector.
Business Strategy
/HQGLQJEDFNHGE\WDQJLEOHFROODWHUDO
6HQLRUVHFXUHGORDQVZLWKVWURQJXQGHUO\LQJDVVHWVDQGUHVRXUFHIXOFRXQWHUSDUWLHV
+LJKFDVKJHQHUDWLYHEXVLQHVVPRGHOZLWKPRGHUDWHOHYHUDJHDQGVLJQL´FDQWFXVKLRQ
2SWLPLVDWLRQRISURPRWHUVGHYHORSHUVDQGXQGHUO\LQJDVVHWV
5LVNPLWLJDWLRQWKURXJKGLYHUVL´FDWLRQVHOHFWLYHOHQGLQJDQGULJRURXVDVVHWPRQLWRULQJ
5REXVWV\VWHPDQGSURFHVVGULYHQRUJDQLVDWLRQ
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.H\1XPEHUVWKDW'H´QH8V
Loan Book (` Cr.)

Net Worth (` Cr.)

FY 2015

1,154

75%

FY 2016

565

182%

FY 2016

2,022

1,592

PAT (` Cr.)

Gross Income (` Cr.)

FY 2015

FY 2015

94

179%

FY 2016

FY 2015

62

FY 2016

262

134%
145

ROE (%)

123.27%
FY 2015

8

200

Capital Adequacy

bps

FY 2016

10

NIL
13$V5HVWUXFWXULQJ
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Letter from the Chairman

At Altico Capital, we aspire to
“Finance India’s Future” progress by
partnering with leaders of the Real
Estate sector, and selectively other
core infrastructure sectors

Dear Shareholders,
It is my privilege to present to you
the 12th Annual Report of FY 201516 of Altico Capital India Private
/LPLWHGZKLFKZDVE\DOODFFRXQWV
a good year for India, which stands
today with a real opportunity for
on-going consistently high growth
by continuing to execute their
reform plans. India’s dynamism
can continue as they execute their
reform plans and maintain their
favourable policy environment that
continues to renewe and enhance
LQYHVWRU FRQ´GHQFH $W $OWLFR
Capital, we aspire to “Finance India’s
Future” progress by partnering with
leaders of the Real Estate sector, and
selectively other core infrastructure
VHFWRUV , DP FRQ´GHQW WKDW ZLWK
our growing enterprise strengths;
our people, our processes and
systems, our culture of responsive
and responsible capital we shall
continue to successfully build our
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business and strive the needs of our
clients while maintaining stringent
´QDQFLDO VWDQGDUGV IRU DOO RXU
stakeholders.
My on-going optimism is anchored
in the proven team’s performance
to date. They have built a business
that respect our clients, listens and
responds thoughtfully to their needs.
This focused and driven culture has
developed over the years, but has
been enhanced and advanced in
the past 12 months. These efforts
will continue and we will steadfastly
invest in building our capabilities to
further our drive to higher growth,
EXLOG RQ D ´UP ´QDQFLDO IRXQGDWLRQ
and is empowered to challenge the
VLJQL´FDQW SURVSHFWV IRU JURZWK
ahead and that we, at Altico Capital
FDQ VHH FOHDUO\ 7KH ´QDQFH VHFWRU
reforms establish a wide range of
lending opportunities and prospects
outside of the traditional banking
sector. This can be witnessed

across the NBFCs segment. We
believe that when well capitalised
and managed, there are numerous
successful examples of NBFCs in
India giving stiff competition to the
traditional banking sector and the
unorganised lenders. With wellfocussed teams and strategies
that deliver customised solutions,
non-bureaucratic, customer centric
WXUQDURXQG LPSOHPHQWLQJ ´QDQFLDO
technology on clean platforms,
FOHDUO\  GH´QH OHQGLQJ VWUDWHJLHV
adherence to tight regulations
and maintaining stringent control
over cost and balance sheets, the
on-going emergence of NBFCs as
rapidly growing source of funding
to “Financing India’s Future” will
continue and grow.
The Real Estate sector as well
as other infrastructure sectors
are key to India’s next evolution
and is continuously looking for
reliable and reputed NBFCs, and

´QDQFLQJ SDUWQHUV IRU WKHLU ODUJH
scale capital needs. With our strong
capital base, enhanced this year
by substantial incremental equity
capital infusion, Altico Capital
is ideally positioned to harness
WKH RSSRUWXQLWLHV XQIROGLQJ 2XU
engaged and involved shareholders
group along with our growing
number of independent board
members, our further examples of
our organisational strengths and we
look forward to continue to tap into
and utilize their rich experience and
proven expertise to enhance Altico
Capital’s business.
We are focussed and implementing
our next phase of growth anchored
LQWKHFRUHVWUHQJWKRIDQ\´QDQFLDO
organisation. This is not only
H[HPSOL´HG E\ WKH WZR QHZ %RDUG
appointments, but key hires to
enhance our already robust and
experienced Credit and Execution
culture, with strong leaders in the
&KLHI ([HFXWLYH 2I´FHU DQG &KLHI
)LQDQFLDO 2I´FHU SRVLWLRQV EXLOGLQJ
out the already deep skill sets of the
Altico Capital team.
0V 1DLQD /DO .LGZDL DQG 'U <DR
Chye Chiang both joined the
Board this year, as an Independent
Director
and
Non-Executive
'LUHFWRUUHVSHFWLYHO\0V1DLQD/DO
.LGZDL DV DQ ,QGHSHQGHQW 'LUHFWRU
brings vast experience in the
´QDQFLDO LQVWLWXWLRQ PDQDJHPHQW
and markets, and her reputation and
respect are deeply regarded across
India’s business circles. Dr. Chiang’s

international operational skills and
VWDQGDUGV DUH KDUG WR ´QG LQ ,QGLD
Both these appointments make
us stronger and exemplify our ongoing efforts to bring best of class
skills to our growing organisation
that complements one another and
provide seasoned sounding boards
and guidance for the management
team.
Mr. Sanjay Grewal, Chief Executive
2I´FHU
VLQFH
1RYHPEHU
RI
ODVW \HDU EHVW H[HPSOL´HV RXU
commitment
and
efforts
to
enhancing our franchise and his
deep domestic experience coupled
with international credentials from
building businesses at International
Finance Corporation, both in
Washington and Asia have allowed
the Board in implementing its growth
steps this past year and going
forward. These clearly exemplify
along with capital commitments our
efforts to substantially build Altico
Capital and now fully executing a
stable and substantial NBFC. You
can see these efforts beginning
to yield a strong operational and
´QDQFLDOSHUIRUPDQFH
Going forward, we see logical next
VWDJHRIJURZWKEXLOWRQGLYHUVL´HG
pool of modest leverage layered
onto our strong balance sheet.
From different tenors, to different
DQG GLYHUVL´HG FRXQWHUSDUWLHV
and markets, the team has full
Board backing to grow. This fund
raising plan is well on target and
not only gives us a deep capital

base to deploy but will increase our
5HWXUQ RQ (TXLW\ DQG 3UR´W DIWHU
Tax, this year and looking forward.
We welcome this incremental
group of stakeholders from the
public market, to the bank market
domestically to the international
´QDQFLDO LQVWLWXWLRQ ZH KDYH
ORQJ SDUWQHUHG ZLWK /HQGHUV ZLOO
welcome the new stakeholders that
the Board remains responsive to.
We are well positioned at Altico
Capital to “Finance India’s Future.”
We look forward to doing so for the
EHQH´W RI DOO RXU VWDNHKROGHUV :H
see great opportunities to continue
to partner with our Real Estate
core constituents, to diversify
selectively in infrastructure, to bring
on logical incremental leverage
ZLWK RXU ´QDQFLQJ SDUWQHUV ZKLOH
IXUWKHULQJ RXU SUR´WDELOLW\ IRU RXU
shareholders.
We will stay focus and true to our
core values. Strong underwriting,
operational excellence, a culture of
transparency, meticulous corporate
governance, which all anchor our
growth. I want to close by thanking
our team at Altico Capital for their
diligence and focussed execution.
I Thank our customers for selecting
$OWLFR&DSLWDODVD´QDQFLQJSDUWQHU
and welcoming new partners to join
our journey in “Financing India’s
Future.”

Robert D Petty
Chairman & Non-Executive Director
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Message from the CEO

2XUIRFXVVHGEXVLQHVVSODQVEDFNHG
by strong risk management systems
and streamlined processes, enabled
the Company to close quality deals
with sound collateral and strong cash
µRZFRYHUGXULQJWKH\HDU

Amid a sluggish global economic
recovery, India continued to shine
as a bright spot during the year
gone by. A favourable macro
external environment, backed by a
series of policy stimulants initiated
by the Government, propelled
India’s economic growth to a
robust 7.6%, the highest among
the major emerging economies
of the world. The Reserve Bank of
India was also quick to respond
to the positivity witnessed in the
economic environment and injected
liquidity into the system, while
easing the monetary policy to boost
consumption.

further accelerating the pace of
country’s growth and business
sentiments. Macro Programmes like
‘Housing for All’, ‘Smart Cities’ and
‘Make in India’ unveiled new horizons
for future progress. At the same time,
acknowledging the colossal unmet
need for housing, the Reserve Bank
of India and the Government have
implemented supportive regulatory
changes towards higher feasibility
RI GHYHORSPHQW DQG FUHGLW µRZV
through initiatives like the Real Estate
(Regulation and Development) Act,
2016, SEBI (Real Estate Investment
Trusts) Regulations, changes in
FDI Policy for allowing FDI in Real
Estate sector amongst other forward
looking policies, will boost the sector.

The Government policy initiatives to
enhance the ease of doing business,
coupled with renewed focus on
Real Estate sector, capital markets,
infrastructure development and
dispute resolution contributed to

These
developments
put
the
spotlight on the role of NBFCs
LQ VXSSRUWLQJ ,QGLDV ´QDQFLDOO\
inclusive growth. The strain faced
by the banking system, along with
an encouraging interest regime,

Dear Shareholders,
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continued to facilitate the growth
of NBFCs, which have emerged as
a dependable source of funding on
account of their focussed approach
to lending.
The contextual framework for Altico
Capital’s expansion was clearly in
place. Supported by our marquee
´QDQFLDO VSRQVRUV DQG JXLGHG E\
our visionary Board, we developed
a well-structured business plan
to take Company’s growth to the
QH[W OHYHO 2XU NH\ 0DQDJHPHQW
personnel, along with our teams of
talented professionals with proven
track record in managing wholesale
credit, helped us take these plans
forward as we moved higher on our
growth trajectory during FY 2016.
2XU IRFXVVHG EXVLQHVV SODQV
backed by strong risk management
systems and streamlined processes,
enabled the Company to close
quality deals with sound collateral

DQG VWURQJ FDVK µRZ FRYHU GXULQJ
the year. As our target markets in
the Real Estate segment showed
signs of emerging from negativity
of the past few quarters, we
leveraged our strengths to harness
the unfolding opportunities to
´QDQFH DIIRUGDEOH KRXVLQJ DQG WKH
&RPPHUFLDO5HDO(VWDWHPDUNHW2XU
initiatives in building our enterprise
and delivering on our business plan
through further strengthening of
our talent pool, processes, systems
and
already
well
established
governance
framework
helped
VLJQL´FDQWO\ LQ HTXLSSLQJ XV WR
deliver growth during the year in
review.
The success of our strategic focus
on Tier-I cities was manifest in our
steady growth, translating into a
loan book size of ` 1,592 crore in FY
2016, representing a growth of 182%
from ` 565 crore in FY 2015. The
Company’s Net Worth rose 75% to
` 2,022 crore in FY 2016 from ` 1,154
FURUH LQ WKH SUHYLRXV ´VFDO ZKLOH
Total Income went up 179% from
` 94 crore to ` 262 crore in the same
period. PAT went up from ` 62 crore
in FY 2015 to ` 145 crore in FY 2016.
While
the
mid-income
and
affordable housing segment will
continue to push our growth going
forward, we also see a large potential
IRU GLYHUVL´FDWLRQ LQWR VWUXFWXUHG
lending across other core segments
of Infrastructure and allied areas.

2XU ZHOOGH´QHG LQWHUQDO FRQWUROV
are designed to manage not just
the current pace of growth but
also to meet future demands. We
are continuously upgrading to
ensure best-in-class delivery to
our clients. Streamlined processes,
with strong standard operating
procedures,
are
backed
by
superior liability and liquidity
management practices to enable
a risk-free investment environment.
This will, going forward, lead to
higher value delivery, not just for
the organisation but the nation
at large.
With our business philosophy
FHQWUHG RQ ´QDQFLQJ ,QGLDV
future, we are committed to
delivering increasing value to
our stakeholders through our
GLYHUVL´HG DSSURDFK DQG D VWXUG\
risk
management
framework.
2XU MRXUQH\ VR IDU KDV EHHQ ERWK
eventful and rewarding due to the
HIIRUWV RI RXU ´QDQFLDO VSRQVRUV
members of the Board and in-house
Management committees, clients
and employees. I would like to
personally thank each and everyone
who has contributed to the growth
of the Company. It is with your trust
and support that we look forward to
´QDQFLQJ ,QGLDV IXWXUH IRU \HDUV WR
come.

6DQMD\*UHZDO

Investment Strategy
6HOHFW 7LHU, FLWLHV ZLWK
sustainable real estate markets
and high institutionalisation
Developer
background:
Resourcefulness, track record
and enterprise level comfort
Strong focus on underlying
assets:
Product
offering,
location, break-even points
Structure: Mortgage, security,
share pledge, guarantees,
covenants, milestones backed
disbursements
Cash control: Escrow of all
receivables and control on
SURMHFWFDVKRXWµRZV
Target high cash cover; up
to 1.5x collateral cover and 2x
cash cover

182%
Increase in loan book size,
which rose to ` 1,592 crore in
FY 2016 from ` 565 crore in
FY 2015

6
Deals successfully closed with
new borrowers during FY 2016

&KLHI([HFXWLYH2I´FHU
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Board of Directors

Mr. Robert D Petty
Chairman & Non-Executive Director
0U5REHUW3HWW\LV0DQDJLQJ3DUWQHUDQG&R)RXQGHURI&OHDUZDWHU//&DQGLVDPHPEHURI&OHDUZDWHUV
,QYHVWPHQW DQG 0DQDJHPHQW &RPPLWWHHV 2YHU KLV QHDUO\ \HDU FDUHHU VSDQ +RQJ .RQJEDVHG
Mr. Petty has focussed on investing in Asia-dedicated special situations and credit investments, including
turnarounds, restructurings, stressed credits and distressed-for-control transactions. His principal
responsibilities encompass portfolio management, origination and overall management of Clearwater.
He holds a BA degree in Political Science from Brown University.

Mr. Amit Gupta
Non-Executive Director
0U$PLW*XSWDLV3DUWQHUDQG&R)RXQGHURI&OHDUZDWHU//&DQGDPHPEHURI&OHDUZDWHUV,QYHVWPHQW
and Management Committees. His principal responsibilities include credit research, due diligence, analysis
and valuation. Throughout his nearly 20-year investment career, Mr. Gupta has been on the forefront of
credit analysis and deal execution in Asia. His prior experience includes key positions at Goldman Sachs
$VLD //&3HUHJULQH)L[HG,QFRPH/WGDQG,&,&,/WG0U*XSWDLVDSRVWJUDGXDWHIURP,,0&DOFXWWDDQG
holds an engineering degree in Electronics and Communications from IIT-Roorkee.

Mr. Mark Cutis
Non-Executive Director
0U0DUN1LFKRODV&XWLVKDVEHHQ&KLHI,QYHVWPHQW2I´FHUDW$EX'KDEL,QYHVWPHQW&RXQFLOVLQFHMRLQLQJLWLQ
2008. Having worked for global investment banks in various capacities, he has gained extensive experience
in proprietary trading, both on the buy side as well as the sell side. His experience spans key positions at
6KLQVHL%DQN$WKHQH+ROGLQJ/WG/DOSLU3RZHU/LPLWHG IRUPHUO\$(6/DOSLU 3YW /WG DQG3DNJHQ3RZHU
/WG0U&XWLVKROGVD%$LQ(FRQRPLFVIURP(PRU\8QLYHUVLW\DQGDQ0%$IURPWKH:KDUWRQ6FKRRORI
Business at the University of Pennsylvania.

Mr. Ali Haroon
Non-Executive Director
0U $OL +DURRQ LV D 3DUWQHU RI 9lUGH DQG &R+HDG RI WKH *OREDO 5HDO (VWDWH 7HDP DQG OHDGV WKH ´UPV
Asian business besides being a member of its Investment Committee. His responsibilities include managing
Värde’s commercial real estate credit and hard asset business, as well as its residential land development
DFWLYLWLHV +H HDUOLHU ZRUNHG LQ 9lUGHV /RQGRQ RI´FH ZLWK D IRFXV RQ (XURSHDQ UHDO HVWDWH LQYHVWPHQWV
and commercial mortgage-backed securities. His previous experience include a career in the investment
EDQNLQJWHDPRI%HDU6WHDUQVEDVHGLQ/RQGRQDQG1HZ<RUN0U+DURRQKROGVD%$ (FRQRPLFV IURP
University of Pennsylvania and an M.B.A. from INSEAD, France.

Ms. Naina Lal Kidwai
Independent Non-Executive Director
0V1DLQD/DO.LGZDLUHWLUHGDV([HFXWLYH'LUHFWRURQWKH%RDUGRI+6%&$VLD3DFL´FDQG&KDLUSHUVRQRI
India after a 13-year stint. Before joining HSBC, she was Vice Chairperson and Head Investment Banking at
JM Morgan Stanley and was responsible for directing the operations of the Investment Bank in India. She is
RQWKH%RDUGVRI/DUVHQ 7RXEUR/LPLWHG$GYHQW3ULYDWH(TXLW\1HVWOH6$&LSOD/LPLWHG0D[)LQDQFLDO
6HUYLFHV/LPLWHGEHVLGHVEHLQJ&KDLUSHUVRQRI6RXWK$VLD+DUYDUG%XVLQHVV6FKRRO$SDVW3UHVLGHQWRI
),&&, VKH LV FXUUHQWO\ LQYROYHG ZLWK VHYHUDO ,QGXVWU\ $VVRFLDWLRQV 0V .LGZDL KDV DQ 0%$ GHJUHH IURP
Harvard Business School Boston, Massachusetts.
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Mr. Stephen Marzo
Independent Non-Executive Director
0U6WHSKHQ0DU]RKDVRYHU\HDUVRIH[SHULHQFHLQ´QDQFLDOPDQDJHPHQWDWYDULRXV´QDQFLDOLQVWLWXWLRQV
as well as commodity trading and resource investment companies. He has spent the past 18 years in Hong
.RQJZKHUHKHZDVWKH&)2RI+RQJ.RQJ([FKDQJHVDQG&OHDULQJ/LPLWHG +.([ DQG*URXS&)2RIWKH
1REOH*URXS/LPLWHG ª1REOH*URXS« RQHRIWKHODUJHVWFRPPRGLWLHVVXSSO\FKDLQPDQDJHPHQWFRPSDQLHV
LQWKHZRUOG+HKDVKHOGVHQLRUNH\PDQDJHPHQWSRVLWLRQVDW*ROGPDQ6DFKV$VLD//&DQG%HDU6WHDUQV
$VLD //&DQGKDVDOVREHHQ(XURSHDQ7UHDVXUHUIRU3KLEUR(QHUJ\,QF0U0DU]RKROGVD%6FLQ%XVLQHVV
Administration from Georgetown University in Washington DC, USA.

Ms. Subhashree Dutta
Non-Executive Director
Ms. Subhashree Dutta is a member of Clearwater’s Investment and Management Committees, and is
responsible for overseeing credit analytics. In her 20-year career, she has been involved in numerous
restructurings, with experience across diverse sectors in Asia, Australia and Europe. In her previous stint
ZLWK,&,&,/WGVKHZDVODUJHO\IRFXVVHGRQFUHGLWXQGHUZULWLQJDQGUHODWLRQVKLSPDQDJHPHQWEHVLGHVEHLQJ
HQJDJHGLQSHUIRUPLQJZRUNRXWDQGVHWWOHPHQWVIRUODUJHDFFRXQWV6KHKHOSHGHVWDEOLVK&OHDUZDWHUVRI´FH
LQ 0XPEDL DQG KDV ZRUNHG DW WKH ´UPV +RQJ .RQJ DQG 1HZ <RUN RI´FHV 0V 'XWWD LV D SRVW JUDGXDWH
from IIM-Calcutta, besides being a CFA charter holder and a graduate of the Institute of Cost and Works
Accountants of India.

Dr. Yao Chye Chiang
Non-Executive Director
'U <DR &K\H &KLDQJ MRLQHG &OHDUZDWHU LQ  DQG LV D PHPEHU RI WKH ´UPV ,QYHVWPHQW DQG
Management committees. Based in Singapore, he oversees Clearwater’s business and operating
SODWIRUPV DQG LV UHVSRQVLEOH IRU WKH ´UPV ULVN PDQDJHPHQW DQG SRUWIROLR KHGJLQJ VWUDWHJLHV +H
DOVR SOD\V OHDG UROH LQ WKH LQVWLWXWLRQDOLVDWLRQ RI WKH ´UPV RUJDQLVDWLRQDO SURFHVVHV DQG LQIUDVWUXFWXUH
besides monitoring global macro trends and the impact of current events on Asian markets. His
previous stints were with Cargill Financial Services Asia and Black River Asset Management (Asia), prior
to which he worked at CIBC World Markets. Dr. Chiang holds a Master and Doctorate degree in Economics
from Princeton University.

Mr. Rahul Merchant
Non-Executive Director
0U 5DKXO 0HUFKDQW LV ([HFXWLYH 9LFH 3UHVLGHQW DQG &KLHI ,QIRUPDWLRQ 2I´FHU DW 7,$$ +H KDV PRUH WKDQ
30 years of public and private sector experience as a transformation leader, including expertise in
EXVLQHVV WHFKQRORJ\ RSHUDWLRQV DQG SULYDWH HTXLW\ +H HDUOLHU UDQ KLV RZQ DGYLVRU\ ´UP SULRU WR ZKLFK
KH ZDV &LW\ZLGH &KLHI ,QIRUPDWLRQ DQG ,QQRYDWLRQ 2I´FHU IRU WKH &LW\ RI 1HZ <RUN EHVLGHV KDYLQJ KHOG
NH\SRVLWLRQVDW)DQQLH0DH0HUULOO/\QFK'UHVGQHU%DQN6DQZD%DQNDQG&RRSHU1HIIDQG$VVRFLDWHV
Mr. Merchant holds B.Sc in Electrical Engineering from Bombay University, M.Sc in Computer Science from
Memphis State University, and MBA from Temple University.
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Key Financial Sponsors

due to their inaccessibility to
capital,

Clearwater Capital
Partners (CCP)
CCP is an Asia-focussed company,
which was the principal and primary
sponsor of Clearwater Capital
3DUWQHUV ,QGLD ª&&3,/«  &&3
provides investors with access to
a full spectrum of special-situation
investments in public and private
debt or equity of local, Asia-region
issuers. In doing so, Clearwater also
assists owners and management,
particularly
of
the
region’s
often capital-constrained small-tomedium-sized enterprises (SMEs),
WR FUHDWH ´QDQFLDO DQG RSHUDWLQJ
restructurings that will allow their
companies to succeed. In addition,
by facilitating these successful
UHVWUXFWXULQJVWKH´UPKDVEHFRPH
a valuable and trusted resource to
the region’s banks, brokers and
other business intermediaries.
From its inception in 2001, CCP
has expanded its activities to six
global locations, including locally
VWDIIHG RI´FHV LQ +RQJ .RQJ
Singapore, Beijing, Mumbai, Seoul
and New York. The breadth of the
targeted investment market and
CCP’s established and experienced
“on-the-ground” presence makes
LW SRVVLEOH IRU WKH ´UP WR VRXUFH
develop and capture value in
diverse opportunities across capital
structures that include but are not
limited to:
,QYHVWPHQWV LQ SRVWUHVWUXFWXUHG
or operationally sound public
and private companies that are
undervalued or poorly capitalised
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 )LQDQFLDOUHVWUXFWXULQJV
 2SHUDWLRQDOWXUQDURXQGVDQG
 3RUWIROLRV SRROV DQG LQGLYLGXDO
non-performing loans.

Abu Dhabi Investment
Council (ADIC)
The Abu Dhabi Investment Council
is an investment arm of the
Government of Abu Dhabi. The
Council started its operations in
April 2007 and is responsible for
investing part of the government’s
VXUSOXV ´QDQFLDO UHVRXUFHV WKURXJK
D JOREDOO\ GLYHUVL´HG LQYHVWPHQW
strategy, targeting positive capital
returns through an expansive
SRUWIROLR RI KLJKO\ GLYHUVL´HG DVVHW
classes and active investment
management strategies.
In the short time since its inception,
the Council has established a
reputation for its entrepreneurial
spirit, open culture and quick
decision-making process.

Värde Partners (Värde)
Värde Partners is a global investment
adviser focussed on credit and
YDOXH LQYHVWLQJ VWUDWHJLHV 7KH ´UP
was founded in 1993 in Minnesota

by a group of three investment
professionals. Each brought broad
H[SHULHQFH LQ ´QDQFLDO PDUNHWV
and the trio believed there were
VLJQL´FDQW RSSRUWXQLWLHV LQ FUHGLW
markets.
$W D IXQGDPHQWDO OHYHO WKH ´UP
focusses on unlocking value – Värde
means value in Swedish, seeking
RSSRUWXQLWLHV LQ OHVV HI´FLHQW
markets and pursuing assets at a
discount to their potential value.
Värde’s approach is centred on
an integrated platform with a
XQL´HG IRFXV RQ WKH JHQHUDWLRQ
of attractive risk adjusted returns.
A key tenet of Värde’s strategy is
D µH[LEOH LQYHVWPHQW DSSURDFK ¨
investing, and allocating capital and
resources across multiple segments
and markets.
7KH ´UP KDV LQYHVWHG VLJQL´FDQW
capital
since
inception
and
has
experienced
investment
professionals currently managing
investments
worldwide.
Värde
FRQWLQXHV WR KDYH D VLJQL´FDQW
presence in its city of origin –
Minneapolis, but has established
HTXDOO\
VWUDWHJLF
RI´FHV
LQ
/RQGRQ VHUYLQJ DV RXU (XURSHDQ
headquarters, and in Singapore,
VHUYLQJ DV RXU $VLD 3DFL´F
KHDGTXDUWHUV $GGLWLRQDO RI´FHV
exist to support key activities in
those regions.

Key Management

0U6DQMD\*UHZDO
&KLHI([HFXWLYH2I´FHU

Mr. Dhruv Jain
&KLHI)LQDQFLDO2I´FHU

Mr. Amit Pachisia
&KLHI&UHGLW2I´FHU

Mr. Mrinal Chandran
General Counsel

Mr. Dhiren Jhaveri
6U93)LQDQFH 2SHUDWLRQV

Mr. Binoy K Parikh
&RPSDQ\6HFUHWDU\ &RPSOLDQFH2I´FHU
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Investing in Building a Future-ready
Enterprise
At Altico Capital, it is our endeavour to build a sustainable business enterprise that is
innovative and pro-active, yet cautious in its approach. At the core of our enterprise
development model are our people, led by a marquee Board, and backed by a strong
FKDUWHURIJRYHUQDQFHKHDOWK\LQIUDVWUXFWXUHZHOOGH´QHGSURFHVVHVDQGV\VWHPV
with a focus on credit lending strategies.

This well-thought-out value matrix
of fundamental strengths is the
backbone of our enterprise. It lays
down the strategic blueprint of
RXU EXVLQHVV SLOODUV DQG GH´QHV
various critical processes that
enable us to take judicious credit
OHQGLQJ GHFLVLRQV HI´FLHQWO\ DQG
HIIHFWLYHO\ 2XU V\VWHPV XQGHUOLQH
the strategic interplay of our deep
domain understanding of the
´QDQFLDO PDUNHWV *RLQJ IRUZDUG
they will continue to contribute to
strengthening our client-centric
approach through a sound delivery
mechanism in line with our business
strategy.
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People

Impact of efforts: Core team in place for implementation
of the next phase of growth

Governance

Impact of efforts: Best business practices
adopted to institutionalise and respond to various
VWDNHKROGHUV UHSRUWLQJLQIRUPDWLRQ UHTXLUHPHQW
and helped to scale up the business

Systems

Impact of efforts: Enhanced systems for tracking
disbursed loans, thereby creating more bandwidth
for credit team

Credit Rating

Impact of efforts: Poised to implement a substantive
leverage strategy and take full advantage of its
capital

Listing Norms

Impact of efforts: Fully equipped for ensuring
ongoing listing compliances

Strong Capital Base
Altico Capital has a strong capital
base with access to capital from our
.H\ )LQDQFLDO 6SRQVRUV ZKR KDYH
profound knowledge and expertise
in emerging markets.

Marquee Board
The
credible
background
of
$OWLFR &DSLWDOV ´QDQFLDO VSRQVRUV
along with their well-articulated
commitment to our business goals
and their cohesive vision to partner
India’s future growth, has enabled
us to attract senior experienced
´QDQFLDO SURIHVVLRQDO WR RXU
Board and at leadership positions.
2XUQLQHPHPEHUV%RDUGFRPSULVHV
representatives from all shareholders
and Independent Directors, with
each of them bringing to the table
a long and distinguished experience
across various disciplines, including
WKHUHDOHVWDWHDQG´QDQFLDOVHUYLFHV
sector. The expertise of the Board
spans vital areas of relevance to
Altico Capital including emerging
market knowledge, senior secured
lending, debt and equity capital
UDLVLQJ ´QDQFLDO UHVWUXFWXULQJ
systems and technology, risk
management,
governance
and
WUHDVXU\
PDQDJHPHQW
2XU
Board actively participates in the
operations of the Company, thereby
ensuring low gearing cushions
against asset quality challenges.

Experienced Leadership
Teams
People are central to our enterprise
development
philosophy
and
our efforts during the year were
focused on building a strong and

talented professional pool, which
is among the best in the industry
and well-equipped to steer the
Company to the next level of
growth. In this regard, we have
been quite successful in our efforts
and have completed several senior
level recruitments across various
functions – including the key
leadership positions.
2XU PDQDJHPHQW WHDP FRPHV
with extensive experience and
proven expertise in building credible
EXVLQHVVHVLQWKH´QDQFLDOGRPDLQ

Empowered for Governance
With a best-in-class leadership
team and people talent in place, the
Company was focused during the
year on framing well-delineated
internal guidelines, policies, risk
management system, corporate
governance
and
entity
level
controls.
2XU
JRYHUQDQFH
SKLORVRSK\
follows internationally recognised
and accepted norms, which are
LQ FRQIRUPLW\ ZLWK ZHOOGH´QHG
corporate governance standards
for NBFCs, including composition of
YDULRXV%RDUGFRPPLWWHHVGH´QLQJ
the committees’ roles and functions,
spelling out the periodicity of the
meetings, and compliance with
coverage and review functions, etc.
7KH %RDUG DOVR GH´QHV LWV FRQWURO
environment, which is characterized
by the integrity, ethical values and
competence of the workforce.
The Board has constituted all
committees to ensure compliance
with applicable law and that the
Company maintains the highest
levels of integrity and remains

committed
to
stakeholders.
During the year, the Company
reconstituted
various
Board
Committees (Audit Committee,
Remuneration
Committee
&
Nomination Committee) to align
with the requirements under
the applicable law. The Asset
/LDELOLW\ 0DQDJHPHQW &RPPLWWHH
$/&2  ZDV UHFRQVWLWXWHG WR
LQGXFW WKH &KLHI )LQDQFLDO 2I´FHU
to monitor the asset-liability gap
and strategise actions to mitigate
risks. In addition to the above, a
Finance Committee (comprising
an Independent Director and all
shareholders’ representatives with
substantial debt raising experience)
was constituted during the year to
oversee the Company’s leverage
programme.
We put in place all mandatory
regulatory policies and charters,
thus ensuring adherence to the best
corporate governance practices
as required by a debt listed entity.
We appointed reputed Statutory
Auditors and Internal Auditors to
perform the Audit – both of whom
LVVXHG XQTXDOL´HG LQGHSHQGHQW
reports during the year. Immediately
post
FY
2016,
our
website
(www.alticocap.com) came alive,
thus endorsing our commitment
to ensuring higher
levels of
transparency required for a listed
entity and creating a strong touch
point for us to engage with our
stakeholders.
We follow the best practices of
governance to deliver futuristic
solutions to clients in the key
markets of our process. Decisionmaking is collective, with our key
leadership team involved in all major
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decisions relating to the Company
and its governance through various
Committees. A thorough analysis
of possible implications of its
decisions is conducted, with due
consideration to their short and
ORQJWHUP LPSDFW EHIRUH ´QDOLVLQJ
any strategic resolution. Funds
are managed judiciously, through
streamlined processes, in which
RXU ´QDQFLDO VSRQVRUV DQG %RDUG
of Directors remain personally
engaged at every level.
Responsibility and accountability are
clearly demarcated, thereby enabling
a culture of good governance across
the organisational hierarchy.

Strengthening Systems
2XUFRUH´QDQFLDOXQGHUVWDQGLQJKDV
been strengthened by investment in
the latest technology infrastructure
and development of seamless
processing capabilities, which will
play a central role in augmenting
RXUHI´FLHQFLHVJRLQJIRUZDUG
2XU FUHGLW OHQGLQJ SROLF\ DQG
processes articulate the credit risk
strategy
of
the
organisation,
WKHUHE\ GH´QLQJ WKH DSSURDFK
for credit origination, approval and
maintenance. These policies under
line the overall credit sanction
criteria, as well as the requisite
general terms and conditions.
They have also helped us outline
the right qualitative and quantitative
assessment parameters, prudential
exposure norms, concentration
limits, structure of limits and solid
reporting systems.
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We are also continuously striving to
enhance
our
credit
lending
mechanism across the complete
value chain to ensure that our teams
collectively
follow
structured
policies
through
a
principled
approach. To this end, we further
rationalised our systems for tracking
disbursed loans, thus creating more
band width for our credit team,
and also minimizing our business
ULVNV2XUVHOHFWLRQSURFHVVLVEDVHG
on detailed evaluation that helps
maintain high levels of liquidity in a
risk-free environment.

Policy. The liquidity requirement
is to ensure that the Company has
adequate liquidity reserve to meet
LWV RSHUDWLQJ FRVWV ´QDQFH FRVWV
and immediate loan commitments,
as well as to cover any contingency
reserve as per the Management’s
discretion.

We believe that these core pillars
of strength will be axiomatic to
our future success as they will
shape the organisation’s ability to
systematically derive intelligence
from varied data. In doing so, the
organisation will utilise information
and
technology
in
harmony
with personal expertise to evaluate
deals.

5-year debenture agreement
signed with IFC, strengthening
our capital base and funding
stability. The same was listed on
BSE effective April 2016.

:H DUH FRQ´GHQW WKDW )< 
ZKLFK ZDV GHGLFDWHG WR GH´QLQJ
addressing
and
strengthening
our core fundamental business
infrastructure,
governance
and
systems, will aid the management
and teams to enhance process
DQG WUDQVDFWLRQDO HI´FLHQFLHV WDNH
informed timely decisions and thus
increase overall productivity, going
forward.

Liability Management &
Optimal Balance Sheet
Altico Capital manages its cash
µRZV WKURXJK D ERDUG DSSURYHG
$VVHW
/LDELOLW\
0DQDJHPHQW

2XUEDODQFHVKHHWKDVDQDWWUDFWLYH
blend of stable high quality
wholesale loans and we engage
with reputed developers in our

` 463 crore

VSHFL´F WDUJHW PDUNHWV 7KH DVVHW
side is supported by equity capital
from our esteemed shareholders,
with a balanced leverage framework
supported by IFC and other reputed
domestic lenders.

8QGHUZULWLQJ([SHUWLVH
The Company has established highly
advanced underwriting standards,
ensured by the indepth knowledge
and experience of the department
heads, led by our experienced
&(27KHVHVWDQGDUGVDUHUHµHFWHG
in our high actual Security Cover
and Cash Cover ratios compared
to the ratios stipulated in the
&UHGLW 3ROLF\ 2XU XQGHUZULWLQJ
process, complemented by expert
Board members engagement in
Credit Committee decisions, lends
IXUWKHUVWUHQJWKWRRXUDVVHWSUR´OH
We prudently select deals that
offer combination of developer
DQG SURMHFW VWUHQJWKV UHµHFWLQJ
better visibility on debt servicing.
We remain strongly focussed on
a detailed study of the underlying
assets, as well as the developer’s
background.
All
deals
are
meticulously and systematically
vetted
before
approval
and
execution.

Moving Ahead
2XU V\VWHP DQG SURFHVV GULYHQ
business model is built on the
foundations of a strong pedigree,
future-centric
approach,
rich
experience,
forward-looking

` 335 crore

` 210 crore

/HQG WR D MRLQW YHQWXUH
project of Radius Developers
and
Sumer
Group,
for
development
of
65-storey
residential
towers,
spread
over a total saleable area of
3 million sq. feet in Mazgaon,
South Mumbai. The deal is
structured in the form of nonconvertible debentures (NCDs)
with a four-year tenor, where
the money will be disbursed in
tranches.

Jointly lend with Piramal Fund
Management
to
invest
in
multiple Century Real Estate
projects in Bengaluru. Altico
Capital will make 50% of the
LQYHVWPHQWV RYHU WKH QH[W ´YH
years through structured debt
of ` 625 crore, in stages. Balance
ZLOOEHFRQVWUXFWLRQ´QDQFHGE\
Piramal as part of the deal – one
of the largest private equity
transactions for Bengaluru’s
real estate market.

management, cautious policies, and
a well-orchestrated risk management
and contingency framework. With a
highly collateralised credit strategy
and excellent underwriting criteria,
we have the distinction of sustaining
a successful track record of
returns and cash realisations despite
a challenging macro environment.
Moving ahead, our focus shall be
on further investing in our core
strengths to deliver higher growth
for the organisation, and all its
stakeholders, with the eventual
goal of scaling the nation’s progress.
As
a
dynamically
evolving
organisation, Altico Capital is
recognized as a reliable player in
the Indian real estate credit lending
business and is well positioned to
deliver on the future demands of
other core sectors of growth such
as Infrastructure.

` 135 crore
,QYHVWHG LQ WZR EURZQ´HOG
residential projects of Punebased
realty
developer,
Pharande Group. Funding will
be done in tranches and the
fund proceeds will be used by
WKH GHYHORSHU IRU UH´QDQFLQJ
an existing lender and for
construction of projects.

` 60 crore
Invested in two residential
projects. This included ` 40
crore in Shree Sai Group project
in Andheri West, Mumbai, and
`  FURUH LQ /RWXV *UHHQV
residential project (Arena 1)
as part of a larger sports city
development in Noida (NCR).

15

Corporate Overview

Statutory Reports

Financial Statements

Strategically Focussed
Business Plan
Our strategic focus is determined by the future
possibilities and opportunities. Our targeted lending
strategy encompasses a high-yielding business segment
where banks do not have a presence. From a sectoral
and geographical perspective, we have carefully
chosen to serve the high-potential markets of India’s
future growth. Our efforts are aimed at seeking new
RSSRUWXQLWLHV RI JURZWK WKURXJK GLYHUVL´FDWLRQ 2XU
ingenuously planned strategy is targeted at building on
our strengths with an eye on such opportunities.

Focus on Real Estate as a
key market
Given the huge gap in the Indian
real estate market, our conservative
and long-term investment strategy
allows for opportunity to build
successful business over time.
The contribution of real estate to
GDP in India at 6.3% is relatively
lower than many other emerging
markets. With growth in economy,
the gap for quality housing in the
country is expected to get bridged
with new projects. A growing middle
class, with increasing disposable
income, along with supportive
regulatory changes and availability
of housing credit, are further
expected to boost the sector’s
growth.
$V WKH ´QDQFLDO FRQVXOWDQF\ ´UP
.30* SRLQWV RXW ª'HPRJUDSKLF
statistics suggest that India can be
a leading destination for real estate
business globally. The country has
an urban population equivalent to
the total population of the United
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States of America and the United
.LQJGRP DQG DERXW  PLOOLRQ
people moving into cities annually.
The strong growth, coupled with
18.8 million housing shortage,
requires no mathematical genius to
understand the potential.”

Business Goal
Build a robust enterprise
recognised as a

top 3 lender
in its niche market

With the formal banking sector
largely shy of servicing the real
HVWDWH VHJPHQW ZH VHH D GH´QLWH
RSSRUWXQLW\ IRU VLJQL´FDQW JURZWK
going forward. With our perpetually
evolving strengths and wideranging experience in optimisation
of the risk-return matrix, we have
astutely decided to focus on this
sector. In our view, the Real Estate
VHFWRUKDVJUHDWFDVKµRZVYLVLELOLW\
which gives strength to our security
structures. Within this sector, our
thrust is on de-risked residential
SURMHFWVZLWKVHOI´QDQFLQJEXVLQHVV
PRGHOV$VDPDWWHURIGLYHUVL´FDWLRQ
within the Real Estate space, moving
ahead, we would also be evaluating
any attractive opportunities that
may come up in the Commercial
Real Estate segment. At the
same time, we shall also explore

external opportunities for growth,
in Infrastructure and other core
sectors, in an effort to further
de-risk our business strategy.
Though the Real Estate segment
poses its own share of risks, we
shall continue to mitigate the
same through our tough security
provisions, extensive Board review,
and caps on individual group
exposure.

Region-wise growth strategy
Geographically, we have a highly
focussed market strategy, which
is centred on the Tier-I cities of
Mumbai, Delhi-NCR, Bengaluru,
Chennai and Pune, with Hyderabad
also now being added to our market
portfolio.
The proposition offered by our
target markets:
 Mumbai:
The
country’s
commercial capital enjoys a
growing demand for housing due
to the concomitant creation of
jobs within the city. It also has a
strong mixed demand from end
users and investors. The Mumbai
Metropolitan
Region
(MMR),
in particular, has witnessed
consistent increase in capital
values of residential properties
over the last 4-5 years.
 Delhi (NCR): The National Capital
Region (NCR) promises high
hopes for both commercial and
residential real estate growth.
Gurgaon and Noida are the two
key growth areas in this region.

While Gurgaon has emerged as
the IT corridor of the North, Noida
is witnessing immense growth
in affordable housing, being in
the vicinity of an industrial belt
and also on account of having
the largest RE Micro Market in
India. Along with Greater Noida
and Ghaziabad, these areas
are contributing to majority of
the new launches and sales of
residential properties in the NCR.
 Bengaluru: The largest IT hub in
the country, it is located in close
vicinity to the Hosur industrial belt
and is a major end-user driven
market. The presence of large
developers and well- established
LQVWLWXWLRQDO ´QDQFLQJ PDUNHW
makes it ideally suited for our
business.
 Chennai:
This
established
industrial hub, with its growing
presence of IT industries, is a
key South Indian metro city. A
strong Auto and Auto Component
manufacturing hub, Chennai will
continue to see robust housing
demand.

the majority of the buyers. With
LQFUHDVH LQ RIIWDNH RI RI´FH
supply space, organised players
are consolidating the residential
supply in this market. The current
development of Metro rail and
other infrastructure projects is
further expected to boost growth
in the real estate market.
The positive medium-long term
outlook
for
residential
and
commercial real estate market in
these targeted markets augurs
ZHOO IRU RXU EXVLQHVV 2XU VWURQJ
competitive edge makes us the
preferred choice for the established
real estate developers, and we are
fully geared to leverage the new
opportunities that the coming
quarters are expected to throw up
in these regions of the country. At
the same time, we shall also spread
our wings to the Infrastructure and
other related sectors which are
aligned to our growth vision.

 Pune: Considered the IT hub of
Western India, it is an important
LQGXVWULDO EHOW DQG D NH\ ,7,7(6
destination. Demand for quality
homes continues to drive growth
in the city, which is in the vicinity
of MMR and is also emerging as a
hub for Auto and Auto components.
 Hyderabad: The residential real
estate in this city is driven by a
mix of both investors and end
users, though the latter constitute
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Altico Capital India Private Limited
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Management Discussion and Analysis
GLOBAL ECONOMY
Global growth continues to be uneven and is expected to
pan out at 3.2% in FY 2016. Though this marks a decline
of 0.2 percentage points from the January 2016 update of
the International Monetary Fund (IMF), it remains broadly
in line with the previous year’s growth rate of 3.1%.

,0)´QGVWKHSURVSHFWVIRU)<DQGEH\RQGPRUH
promising. Forecasting an optimistic outlook, the
WEO report says economic recovery is likely to gain
momentum, primarily on expectations of a pick-up in
growth in emerging market and developing economies.
INDIAN ECONOMY

The IMF attributes its conservative update (April 2016) of
the World Economic Outlook (WEO) to multiple factors.
“The key developments affecting the pace of global
JURZWK UHFRYHU\ DUH WKH LQFUHDVLQJ ´QDQFLDO WXUEXOHQFH
gripping the world economy due to the slowdown in
activity in advanced economies since late FY 2015,
stresses in large emerging economies, and the unwinding
global impact of prior excesses in the Chinese economy.
While growth in emerging market and developing
economies still accounts for the lion’s share of projected
world growth in FY 2016, prospects across countries
remain uneven and generally weaker than over the past
two decades,” according to the report.

Global Growth Forecasts

The rise in GDP was backed by multiple robust
consumption indicators, including data on passenger
FDUVDOHVFHPHQWGHVSDWFKHVFRUSRUDWHSUR´WPDUJLQV
and power generation. On the production front, growth
was powered by surprisingly steady farm output and a
pick-up in electricity generation and mining production,
HVSHFLDOO\LQWKHIRXUWKTXDUWHURIWKH´VFDO
Other macro-economic indicators were also supportive.
7KH ´VFDO GH´FLW IRU )<  ZDV ZLWKLQ WKH WDUJHW
RI  RI *'3 LQµDWLRQ UHPDLQHG EHORZ  GXULQJ
WKH HQWLUH \HDU DQG WKH FXUUHQW DFFRXQW GH´FLW ZDV
ZLWKLQ D KHDOWK\ UDQJH EHORZ  RI *'3 ´UVW
three quarters of FY 2016). The Indian rupee, however,
depreciated gradually against the USD going
from ` 62.65/USD in April 2015 to ` 66.86/USD in
March 2016.

Domestic GDP Growth
FY 2016

FY 2017
(East)

8

FY 2015

3.2

3.1

3.6

(Real GDP Growth Rates)

A favourable policy environment, backed by improved
economic performance indicators, boosted economic
growth in India during FY 2016. GDP growth rose to
7.6% in FY 2016 from 7.2% in FY 2015.

Emerging market economies have remained largely
insulated from the global volatility due to higher
levels of foreign asset holdings and lower external
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies. Further,
crude oil prices have stayed relatively low since
FY 2015, giving importing economies an opportunity
WR UHGXFH WKHLU WUDGH GH´FLWV DQG LQµDWLRQ $FFRUGLQJ
to the Short-Term Energy Outlook (STEO) released
by the US Energy Information Administration in early
FY 2016, both Brent crude oil prices and West Texas
Intermediate (WTI) are expected to hover around
USD 40 in FY 2016 and USD 50 in FY 2017. However, the
ORZHU QHW FDSLWDO LQµRZV DWWUDFWHG E\ HPHUJLQJ
economies since FY 2010 have contributed, in some
measure, to the slowdown in the global economic
recovery.

7.2

7.6

Source: http://www.imf.org/external/pubs/ft/weo/2016/01/

FY 2015

FY 2016

FY 2017
(East)

http://indianexpress.com/article/business/economy/gdpSHUFHQWLWVRI´FLDOLQGLDLVQRZWKHIDVWHVWJURZLQJ
economy-in-the-world/

Despite weakness in private investment, faltering
capital goods growth and a contraction in exports,
the overall growth numbers encouraged the
Reserve Bank of India (RBI) to follow a relatively
easy money policy during the year. The central
bank slashed its repo rate to 6.5% - the lowest level
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LQ RYHU ´YH \HDUV ,W DOVR UHGXFHG WKH UHVHUYH
requirements of banks and pledged to inject more
long-term liquidity to promote investment and
consumption.
On the downside, the domestic economy faced
challenges in terms of weak external demand and a

slow recovery in private investment as banks and
companies wrestled with stressed balance sheets.
To strengthen the system, the RBI set a deadline of
March 2017, by which banks are required to clean up
their balance sheets, while the Finance Ministry directed
banks to make provisions for bad loans and settle
them off.

RBI’s Repo Rate : – January 2015 – July 2016
7.8
7.6
7.4
7.2
7
6.8
6.6
6.4
Apr 1

Jul 1

Oct 1

Jan 1

Apr 1

Source: Trading Economics

Looking ahead, an abundant monsoon in FY 2016, as
predicted by the Indian Meteorological Department
(IMD), could ensure that domestic production and
demand become the growth drivers of the economy.
Both the government and the RBI are continuously
ZRUNLQJWRZDUGVFUHDWLQJDPRUHIDFLOLWDWLQJ´VFDODQG
monetary environment to fuel growth. The Finance
Ministry foresees India growing at over 8% in FY 2017
(June 2016 estimate), even as the Economic Survey
ventured a broad growth range of 7-7.5% around the
start of the calendar year 2016 and the World Bank
retains its estimate of 7.6%.
The reality that eventually unfolds will be a function
of not just the performance of the domestic economy

but how the global scenario pans out and its impact on
India.
PERFORMANCE OF THE NBFC SECTOR
)URPDPLQRUUROHLQWKH,QGLDQ´QDQFLDOV\VWHP1RQ
%DQNLQJ )LQDQFH &RPSDQLHV 1%)&V  DUH LQFUHDVLQJO\
becoming an integral part of the lending market,
providing credit to the underserved sections of the
economy, which remain largely unbanked. From a mere
 RI WKH WRWDO FUHGLW PDUNHW LQ )<  1%)&V
credit had grown to about 13% in FY 2015. The sector
LV H[SHFWHG WR FRQWULEXWH DERXW RQH´IWK RI WKH WRWDO
FUHGLWE\)< DVVXPLQJD&$*5RIaLQ1%)&
lending as a percent of total credit).

FY 2015

FY 2016E

FY 2017E
7% CAGR

FY 2018E

FY 2019E

20.9%

18.2%

19.0%

17.0%

17.3%

15.9%

15.7%

14.9%

14.3%

13.9%

13.0%

13.0%

NBFC lending as a % of total credit

FY 2020E

10% CAGR

6RXUFH3Z&$VVRFKDP5HSRUWWLWOHGª1RQ%DQNLQJ)LQDQFH&RPSDQLHV7KH&KDQJLQJ/DQGVFDSH«
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1RWZLWKVWDQGLQJWKHLUVLJQL´FDQWJURZWK1%)&VLQ,QGLD
are still at a relatively nascent stage compared with their
JOREDOSHHUV1RQEDQNLQJFKDQQHOVLQPDWXUHGPDUNHWV
VXFKDVWKH86DQG(XURSHKDYHDVLJQL´FDQWSUHVHQFH
of 31% and 33% in their respective credit markets.

The country is also witnessing a steady increase in
credit demand to maintain its annual GDP growth rate
of ~ 7.5%. Improving macroeconomic conditions are
also complementing government spending initiatives
and legislations to unleash the latent demand in
this area.

7KH ,QGLDQ ´QDQFLDO ODQGVFDSH WKXV RIIHUV KXJH
SRWHQWLDOIRUIXUWKHUJURZWKRI1%)&V7KHNH\IDFWRUV
FRQWULEXWLQJ WR WKH VXVWDLQHG JURZWK RI 1%)&V LQ
WKH FRXQWU\ LQFOXGH UH´QHG SURGXFW OLQHV VWURQJ DQG
comprehensive risk management, and a wider and more
effective reach into traditional bank lending segments
RISHUVRQDOORDQVDQGKRXVLQJ´QDQFH

7KLV JURZLQJ GHPDQG IRU FUHGLW FDQQRW EH IXO´OOHG
by traditional banking channels, given the current
strain in the banking system, on account of very high
levels of stress in its balance sheet. As a result, banks
become cautious in their lending approach and the
GH´FLWLQWKHLU7LHU,FDSLWDOKDVUHGXFHGWKHLUFDSDELOLW\
to lend.

Stress in Banking System
12.0%
10.0%
8.0%
6.0%
4.0%
2.0%
0.0%
Mar-11

Mar-12

Mar-13

Mar-14

Mar-15

Sept-15

*URVV13$

Standard Restructured %
Source: ICRA

7KH JURZLQJ LPSRUWDQFH RI 1%)&V WR WKH ,QGLDQ
economy can be gauged from the fact that they have
consistently outperformed banks in terms of Return on
Equity (RoE) over the past few years. To their credit,
WKLV SHUIRUPDQFH KDV FRPH GHVSLWH 1%)&V EHLQJ DW

D GLVDGYDQWDJH GXH WR KLJKHU FRVWV RI IXQGV 1LFKH
segmentation and a focussed credit approach are
EHOLHYHGWREHWKHNH\IDFWRUVERRVWLQJWKHSUR´WDELOLW\
RI 1%)&V PDNLQJ WKHP RQH RI WKH KLJKHVW YDOXH
creating business models within the Indian economy.

Return on Equity
20%
18%

18%

19%

15%

15%

15%

16%

15%
15%

15%

15%

15%

16%

15.7
14.1

14%

14%

10%
FY 06 FY 07 FY 08 FY 09 FY 10
1%)&V----\UDYJ 1%)&V

13%

FY 11

FY 12

14%

FY 13

11%

10%

FY 14

FY 15

Ranks ---- 10 yr avg (Banks)

Sources: IBA, Capitaline, BCG analysis
1RWH6DPSOHVHWRI1%)&VFRQVLGHUHGIRUDQDO\VLV$OO6FKHGXOHG&RPPHUFLDO%DQNVFRQVLGHUHG
for analysis.
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7KH G\QDPLF JURZWK RI 1%)&V KDV OHG WR WKHLU
emergence as one of the largest net receivers of
IXQGVIURPWKHUHVWRIWKH´QDQFLDOV\VWHP$FFRUGLQJ
to the Financial Stability Report, 2015, scheduled
commercial banks (SCBs) have the highest exposure
WR 1%)&V DW ` 1,927 billion, followed by asset

management companies managing mutual funds
(AMC-MFs) at ` 1,376 billion and insurance companies
at ` 1,064 billion (as of September 2015). The
graph below shows the general trend of exposure
WR1%)&VIURP0DUFKWR6HSWHPEHU

Exposure of SCBs, AMCs and Insurance companies to NBFCs (in billion INR)
2500
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6RXUFH3Z&$VVRFKDP5HSRUWWLWOHGª1RQ%DQNLQJ)LQDQFH&RPSDQLHV7KH&KDQJLQJ/DQGVFDSH«

Interestingly, the funding structure is also changing
from short-term borrowings to long-term borrowings.
1%)&VZHUHHDUOLHUVNHZHGWRZDUGVWDNLQJVKRUWWHUP
borrowings as they were wary of locking into long-term
commitments due to expectations of a falling interest
UDWHUHJLPH%UHDNLQJDZD\IURPWKLVWUHQG1%)&VDUH
now shifting towards long-term borrowings to take
advantage of the benign interest rate environment to
VWUHQJWKHQWKHLUOLTXLGLW\SUR´OH

REAL ESTATE MARKET OVERVIEW
The recessionary effect on the Indian real estate
market, which had been gripped by a slowdown
despite an improving economy and a favourable
interest regime, seems to be waning. FY 2016 reported
only a marginal decline in sales over the previous
quarters.

Sales trend in Top-9 cities*

The sales over the last
4 quarters have hovered in
the 49K to 57K; possibly
indicating that downside is
limited from here onwards
-39%

51,550

53,457

48,976

-22%
57,245

65,789

76,739

-4%
80,366

92.725

1,07,302

1,14,302

1,17,680

1,34,190

# of units

Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
Q1
Q2
Q3
Q4
FY ‘14 FY ‘14 FY ‘14 FY ‘14 FY ‘15 FY ‘15 FY ‘15 FY ‘15 FY ‘16 FY ‘16 FY ‘16 FY ‘16
FLWLHVDUH$KPHGDEDG%HQJDOXUX&KHQQDL*XUJDRQ+\GHUDEDG.RONDWD0051RLGDDQG3XQH
Source: Prop Tiger Data Labs, April 2016
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Our tracking of the various markets under our mandate provides the following outlook:
Market

Sales
(MM Sq. Ft.)
FY 16

Launches (supply)
(MM Sq. Ft.)

FY 15

Months
Inventory

FY 16

FY 15

FY 16

Average Price
(INR per Sq. Ft.)
FY 15

FY 16

FY 15

Mumbai

28.1

26.8

28.7

29.9

36

41

17,300

17,000

Other MMR Areas

52.2

57.4

54.5

53.5

32

30

5,000

4,900

Bengaluru

77.8

92.8

71.5

109.6

28

25

4,400

4,300

Pune

52.6

57.7

40.4

66.4

24

24

4,700

4,600

Hyderabad

32.7

29.7

31.5

24.5

28

31

3,700

3,400

Chennai

19.2

26.6

16.6

25.8

39

29

4,750

4,400

*UHDWHU1RLGD

31.8

27.6

16.6

34.5

47

58

3,150

3,200

Gurgaon

17.6

17.1

14.7

15.6

51

52

6,800

7,000

1RLGD

13.2

14.0

9.0

18.5

46

48

5,150

5,250

Prices seem to have largely stabilised or increased
marginally and some cities are witnessing an uptick
in sale. Few markets, like Bengaluru and Pune, which
are driven by end-user segments, have seen some
slowdown in recent quarters, though they continue to
do well on an absolute scale. Additionally, the strong
performance of these markets in the commercial space
is expected to result in incremental demand over the
next 12-24-month period.
Other markets, like Mumbai, Gurgaon, etc., which
have shown weaker performance over the last 2-3
years period, have also shown some early signs of
stabilisation in recent quarters. They appear to be
moving closer, with the potential to ERXQFH  EDFN
 WRZDUGV WKH HQG RI WKH FXUUHQW ´QDQFLDO year.


BUSINESS OVERVIEW
Altico Capital India Pvt. Ltd. (also referred to as the
Company or Altico Capital) was established in FY 2004
as Clearwater Capital Partners India Private Limited
(CCPIL) through funds managed by Clearwater Capital
Partners LLC. It was conceived to disburse wholesale
lending to the capital-constrained Indian SMEs and, as
DUHVXOWFUHDWH´QDQFLDODQGRSHUDWLQJLQYHVWPHQWDQG
trading opportunities. A year later, the Company was
UHJLVWHUHG ZLWK WKH 5%, DV D 1RQ'HSRVLW $FFHSWLQJ
1RQ%DQNLQJ )LQDQFH &RPSDQ\ 1'1%)&  ZLWK LWV
business strategy initially focussed on special situation
opportunities across capital structures.

BUSINESS STRATEGY
The Company has a futuristic business strategy,
through which it seeks to build a robust enterprise
and be recognised as a leader in the asset backed
lending market. Towards this end, it follows a business
strategy that entails lending backed by real estate
assets, since this sector offers an optimal risk-toreturn and growth ratio. The Company, with its
robust systems and processes, chooses to disburse
senior secured loans with strong underlying assets
and resourceful counterparties. It follows a high cash
generative business model with moderate leverage and
D VLJQL´FDQW IRFXV RQ 5R( 2SWLPLVDWLRQ RI ´QDQFLDO
sponsors and underlying assets is the prime objective
of the Company, which continues to mitigate its risks
WKURXJKDGLYHUVL´HGDSSURDFK/HQGLQJLVXQGHUWDNHQ
on a selective basis and assets are rigorously monitored
to ensure risk minimisation.
With its strategy focussed on high-growth areas,
Altico Capital funds projects in select Tier I cities,
with sustainable real estate markets and higher
institutionalisation. Its lending is structured in various
forms, including mortgages, securities, share pledges,
guarantees, covenants, milestones, etc.
The Company ended FY 2016 with a loan book size of
` 1,592 crore, representing 78% of Altico Capital’s asset
base.
GEOGRAPHICAL PRESENCE

A decade later, in FY 2014, two new equity investors,
Abu Dhabi Investment Council (ADIC) and Värde
Partners (Värde), came on-board via a Singapore-based
holding SPV. With the fresh capital that was infused
by the new investors, CCPIL was rebranded as Altico
Capital India Private Limited, an India focussed credit
platform with a USD 300 million committed equity
base. Around the same time, the Company’s business
strategy also shifted to an asset-backed senior secured
OHQGLQJSUR´OH

Altico Capital is focussed on creating a strong presence
in major metropolitan areas:

National Capital Region (NCR)
,Q WKH 1&5 $OWLFR &DSLWDO IXQGV OHDGLQJ UHJLRQDO
developers with strong track records and brand recall,
to minimise execution and sales risks.
Mumbai
In the Mumbai Metropolitan Region (MMR), the focus
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is on both Tier I and Tier II developers, with differential
underwriting criteria linked to their execution capability.

Bengaluru & Pune
In these two cities, the Company is trying to build its
footprint across a mix of developers. Its approach
differs across developers. In addition to large, reputed
GHYHORSHUVWKH&RPSDQ\´QDQFLDOO\IDFLOLWDWHVVPDOOHU
developers with attractive running projects or land
aggregators entering Joint Development Agreements
(JDAs) with large developers.
Chennai
In Chennai, Altico Capital offers products to established
residential developers as the market consolidates in
favour of a smaller number of well-established players.
Hyderabad
Altico Capital’s focus is on few large local developers
which have most of the prominent projects.

NCR (Delhi,
Noida,
Gurgaon)

Hyderabad

Mumbai
(MMR)

Chennai

and Development) Act – 2016 (RERA Act) and the
Bankruptcy Code, transparency and enforcement
will improve and though they may create shortterm uncertainty and disruption once implemented,
they are positive for the real estate market in the
longer run. Against this backdrop, the prospects for
well-chosen residential and commercial projects
are bright:

Residential: The positive macro factors are likely to
support an improvement across various markets over
the next few quarters. Markets which were driven by
investor demand in the past are going through a realignment at present, and a few markets with strong
end-user demand are doing well.
Commercial: There has been a robust cyclical bounceback in the commercial segment, across markets. Cities
like Bengaluru and Hyderabad are facing a scarcity
of ‘Grade A’ projects against current demand. Other
PDUNHWV OLNH WKRVH LQ WKH 1&5 DUH DOVR ZLWQHVVLQJ
VWHDG\JURZWKWKLVVKRXOGDLGJURZWKLQWKHUHVLGHQWLDO
segment as well.
Overall, developers have been impacted by the
slowdown in residential demand in many markets.
+RZHYHUWKHFUHGLWµRZIURPWKHQRQEDQNLQJVHFWRU
KDV VXSSRUWHG FDVK µRZV RYHU WKH ODVW IHZ TXDUWHUV
Yet there are concerns with respect to increased
interest costs on the books of many developers. An
improvement in residential sales is the key to balance
sheet improvements over the next few quarters.
OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE
Altico Capital has consistently maintained a high Capital
to Risk-weighted Assets Ratio (CRAR) due to its robust
FDSLWDOLVDWLRQ SUR´OH DLGHG E\ FRQVLVWHQW SUR´WDELOLW\
DQGQLOGHEWSUR´OH)URPLQ)<WR
in March 2016, Altico Capital’s CRAR is way in excess of
WKHFXUUHQWUHJXODWRU\GH´QHGOLPLWRI
While the Board’s strategy is to have a gradually
increasing yet conservative target debt/equity ratio of
up to 2x, it will ensure that Altico Capital’s CRAR still
UHPDLQVLQH[FHVVRIWKHFXUUHQWUHJXODWRU\GH´QHGOLPLW
of 15%.

OPPORTUNITIES AND THREATS IN THE REAL ESTATE
SECTOR
The real estate markets are currently in a sweet spot.
With economic growth at a high and steady level, and
dovish interest rates, demand for real estate is slated
to increase for residential, commercial and industrial
purposes. At the same time, funds are available to both
buyers of residential property (home loans have become
more easily available) and developers (while bank credit
WR GHYHORSHUV KDV EHFRPH VWUDLQHG 1%)& IXQGV DUH
´OOLQJ WKH JDS  /DVW EXW QRW WKH OHDVW WKH UHJXODWRU\
regime has become considerably more conducive.
With the passing of the Real Estate (Regulation
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On the asset side, the change in the business model
to asset backed senior secured lending has led to a
VWURQJHU ORDQ SRUWIROLR FRPSULVLQJ ]HUR 13$V  ]HUR
restructured assets, as of March 2016.
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
A higher capital base and an aggressive asset build-up
DFURVVDGLYHUVL´HGSRRORIERUURZHUVDQGJHRJUDSKLHV
KDYH\LHOGHGUREXVWSUR´WVDQGVXSHULRUUHWXUQVIRUWKH
Company.
:LWK WKH ´QDQFLDO VSRQVRUV FRPPLWWHG HTXLW\ FDSLWDO

fully drawn during the year, Altico Capital’s net worth
rose 75% from ` 1,154 crore in FY 2015 to ` 2,022 crore
in FY 2016. With zero debt in FY 2016, Altico Capital’s
asset base continued to be fully funded through equity
capital.

risk through detailed credit monitoring. It provides
policy guidance with respect to provisioning and
write-offs, and the sanctioning policy thereof as well
as the recovery mechanism. The Credit Committee
consists of 5 members of the Board, including the
Board Chairman.

On the asset side, Altico Capital ended FY 2016 with a
loan book of ` 1,592 crores clocking a rise of 182% over
FY 2015.
On a total income of ` 2,61.8 crore, Altico Capital reaped
D SUR´W DIWHU WD[ RI ` 145 crore in FY 2016 with RoE
rising from 8% in FY 2015 to 10% in FY 2016.

CREDIT RISK
MANAGEMENT

CREDIT RATING
Altico Capital’s rating by Fitch currently stands at AAfor long-term debt and highest short-term rating of A1+.
LIQUIDITY AND LIABILITY MANAGEMENT
$OWLFR&DSLWDOKDVDFFHVVWRWKHGHHS´QDQFLDOUHVRXUFHV
RI LWV ´QDQFLDO VSRQVRUV ZKR KDYH LQIXVHG HTXLW\
capital of ` 2,020 crore and the same has been brought
upfront prior to drawdown of any external debt.This
commitment of substantial capital from world-class
´QDQFLDO VSRQVRUV KDV PDGH $OWLFR &DSLWDO DV RQH RI
WKHODUJHVWIRUHLJQRZQHGDQGFRQWUROOHG1%)&VE\QHW
worth in India.

Liquidity:$OWLFR&DSLWDOPDQDJHVLWVFDVKµRZVWKURXJK
a Liquidity Reserve Policy. The liquidity requirement
LV WR HQVXUH WKDW WKH FRPSDQ\ KDV VXI´FLHQW FDVK RU
committed standby facilities to meet its operating
FRVWV ´QDQFH FRVW HPHUJHQF\ IXQG DQG LPPHGLDWH
loan commitments as well as to cover any contingency
reserve as per the management’s discretion including
one-off event type risk.
Funding: In the near term, Altico Capital intends to
diversify its funding sources to include lenders such
DV ´QDQFLDO LQVWLWXWLRQV SXEOLF VHFWRU EDQNV SULYDWH
banks, mutual funds, etc., through term loans, secured
redeemable non-convertible debentures, commercial
paper etc. In addition, Altico Capital will seek to
VWUHQJWKHQLWVOLTXLGLW\SUR´OHE\FRQWUDFWLQJFRPPLWWHG
lines of credit or committed debt facilities.

Credit
Evaluation

Credit
Approval

Altico Capital’s Credit and Investments team comprises
seasoned individuals of real estate focussed lending.
They follow a Credit Risk Management framework,
which comprises three spokes:


Credit evaluation – The Company has adopted a
robust analytical approach to credit assessment. It
follows a conservative credit strategy, which results
in highly selective approvals. The entire evaluation
process is based on four important pillars –
background checks, limited sector concentration,
stringent deal terms framework and adequate
collateral cover.



Credit approval – At Altico Capital, the credit
approval process comprises multiple levels:
o

Control in Credit Approval - CC approval
for execution and documentation based on
´QGLQJVRIWKH'XH'LOLJHQF\

o

Legal and Investment team sign-off on the
execution deed

o

Pre-disbursement checklist - Legal
Operations team checks various aspects

o

Disbursement - Disbursement requires the
approval of designated Board members and
representatives of the holding company, so
that there are levels of security in-built.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

Risk Management
$OWLFR &DSLWDOV %RDUG RI 'LUHFWRUV GH´QHV WKH ULVN
strategy for the Company. It has allocated credit
approval authority to the Credit Committee (CC), a
Board level committee, based on the Credit Committee
&KDUWHU DQG &UHGLW 3ROLF\ 7KH &UHGLW SROLF\ GH´QHV
Altico Capital’s lending rationale. It establishes
a credit evaluation framework and process, and
determines the appropriate credit appraisal tools
and techniques to evaluate credit opportunities.
It also articulates an appropriate credit approval
process and ensures satisfactory controls over credit

Credit
Monitoring



and

Credit administration (monitoring and reporting)
- Altico Capital has established a combination
RI DQDO\WLFDO PHWKRGRORJLHV ERUURZHU VSHFL´F
control and monitoring capabilities, and databases
to track compliance, reporting and relationship
management.
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Audit report assesses internal controls and reports
to the Audit Committee for review/response. A
Risk Committee questionnaire is circulated to
DOO GHSDUWPHQWV LW LV WKHQ HYDOXDWHG E\ WKH 5LVN
&RPPLWWHH DQG WKH ´QGLQJV DUH UDWL´HG E\ WKH
Board, etc., if required.

Credit Approval Process

Execution
approval and
authorisation:
Credit Committee



Execution
and
documentation:
Investment team
and legal sign off

Pre
disbursement
checks: External
lawyer opinion
Operations sign
off __ conditions

Internal Controls
Altico Capital has established a strong Internal Controls
environment in anticipation of business expansion
which comprises:
Control Environment – The Board Committees,
such as the Audit, Risk, Finance, ALCO and Credit
Committees work closely with the management
to identify and plan operating projects. Board
approved signatory matrix for critical corporate
decisions.



Risk Assessment - The Audit, Risk, Finance,
ALCO and Credit Committees are responsible for
Corporate-wide Risk Assessment. Key risks and
ULVN PDQDJHPHQW REMHFWLYHV DUH LGHQWL´HG DQG
documented through charters, policies and work
plans with the management.



Control Activities - Cash management/investment
approvals require the Board’s co-approval. All
credit / borrowing decisions require Credit /
Finance Committee approval (comprising Board
members).



26

HUMAN RESOURCES
Even with the implementation of the best systems and
practices and access to capital and opportunities, Altico
Capital would not be what it is without its people. Altico
Capital has a total of 29 employees. With several key
senior management hirings during FY 2016 and post
thereafter, Altico Capital’s core team is now in place to
implement the next phase of growth.
OUTLOOK

Disbursement:
Authorised
signatory post
sign off



Monitoring – The Board reviews the Committees’
reports at Board meetings. The Audit Committee
has relationship with Statutory / Internal Auditors
separate from Management.

Information and Communication – Monthly
 TXDUWHUO\ 0,6 RQ ´QDQFLDO DQG RSHUDWLRQDO
parameters of Altico Capital sent across to BoD
at respective month / quarter ends. An Internal
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India is among the highest growing major countries
globally. Being at a relatively nascent stage of
development, per capita income and affordability, as
well as aspirations, are growing rapidly. This, along with
the structural social changes towards nuclear families
and urbanisation, has given rise to the demand for
quality housing.
At the same time, acknowledging the colossal
unmet need for housing, the RBI and government
have implemented supportive regulatory changes
towards higher feasibility of development and credit
µRZV WKURXJK LQLWLDWLYHV OLNH +RXVLQJ IRU $OO WKH
RERA Act, REIT listing, etc., to boost this sector.
7KH LQFOXVLRQ RI KRXVLQJ ´QDQFH FDWHJRULHV LQWR WKH
SULRULW\ VHFWRU ZLOO IXUWKHU LPSURYH WKH FUHGLW µRZ WR
real estate.
The resultant situation – due to the combination of
an increasing demand and a facilitating regulatory
environment – has created a niche opportunity in the
high-density urban residential and commercial housing
markets. Altico Capital is well equipped to tap this
medium-long term opportunity in the residential real
estate sector with its strong capital base and robust
underwriting practices. The Company’s expert Board
member engagement in credit committee decisions
IXUWKHUVWUHQJWKHQVWKH&RPSDQ\VDVVHWSUR´OH
0RVW LPSRUWDQWO\ WKH ´QDQFLDO UHVRXUFHV RI ´QDQFLDO
VSRQVRUV DQG WKH VLJQL´FDQW PDQDJHPHQW%RDUG
experience create a strategic competitive advantage,
while the conservative and long-term investment
strategy allows for the opportunity to build a successful
business over time.

Directors’ Report
To
The Members of
Altico Capital India Private Limited (“Company”)
(formerly Clearwater Capital Partners India Private Limited)
The Board of Directors (“Board”) present the Twelfth Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements of the
Company for the year ended March 31, 2016.
FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS OF THE COMPANY
The highlights of the Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year (“FY”) 2015-16 and FY 2014-15,
are as under:
(Amounts in INR)
Particulars

As at
March 31, 2016
2,303,298,639
314,877,438
2,618,176,077
403,135,602
2,215,040,475
766,757,003
1,448,283,472
1,452,400
289,656,699
1,815,033,047

Income from Operations
Other Income
Total Revenue
Total Expenditure
Profit / (Loss) before Taxation
Tax expenses / (Credit)
Profit /(Loss) after Taxation
Transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve
Transfer to Reserve Fund u/s 45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934
Balance in the Profit /(Loss) Account in the Balance Sheet

As at
March 31, 2015
794,640,573
147,150,733
941,791,306
1,729,210
940,062,096
321,912,872
618,149,224
-123,629,845
657,858,674

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE OF THE COMPANY
'XULQJ WKH ´QDQFLDO \HDU XQGHU UHYLHZ WKH &RPSDQ\
continued its focus on its lending activities which
offered higher yields on senior secured basis. During FY
2015-16, the Company raised additional capital from its
shareholders to support its asset growth.

DIVIDEND

For FY ended March 31, 2016 the Company’s total revenue
was INR 2,618,176,077/- as against INR 941,791,306/IRU WKH ´QDQFLDO \HDU HQGHG 0DUFK   7KH WRWDO
H[SHQGLWXUH IRU WKH ´QDQFLDO \HDU HQGHG 0DUFK 
2016 was INR 403,135,602/- as against INR 1,729,210/IRU WKH ´QDQFLDO \HDU HQGHG 0DUFK   LQFOXGLQJ
a reversal in provisions and write off aggregating to
INR 231,218,485 (This amount excludes the standard
asset provision of INR 8,025,000/-). The Company’s
QHWSUR´WIRUWKH´QDQFLDO\HDUHQGHG0DUFKLV
INR 1,448,283,472/- as against INR 618,149,224/- for the
´QDQFLDO\HDUHQGHG0DUFK

AMOUNT PROPOSED TO BE CARRIED TO RESERVES:

In order to conserve the resources of the Company and
to build up reserves considering the business plan of the
Company, the Board of Directors do not recommend
any dividend on the Equity Shares of the Company for
the Financial Year ended March 31, 2016.

7KH EUHDNXS RI WKH DPRXQWVSUR´WV SURSRVHG WR EH
carried to reserves for FY 2015-16, is set out herein
below:
(Amounts in INR)
FY 2015-16 FY 2014-15

Particulars
Transfer to Capital
1,452,400
--Redemption Reserve
Transfer to Reserve Fund u/s
289,656,699 123,629,845
45-IC of the RBI Act, 1934
STATE OF COMPANY’s AFFAIRS

As on March 31, 2016, the Company’s capital to risk
asset ratio (CRAR) was 123.21% as against 199.10% on
March 31, 2015.
The Net Owned Funds of the Company as on March 31,
2016 stood at INR 20,196,580,327/- a 75% increase over
the previous year.

a)

Share Capital
During Financial Year 2015-16, the issued,
subscribed and paid-up equity share capital of the
Company was increased by way of issue of further
equity shares of the Company to the existing
shareholders on rights basis, in proportion to their
existing paid-up equity share capital. The details of
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various issuances and allotment of equity shares
offered on rights basis are set out in Annexure A to
this report.
b)



Issuance of Secured, Rated, Listed, Redeemable,
Non – Convertible Debentures of the Company
Subsequent to the year under review, in the
month of April’ 2016, the Board of Directors of the
Company offered, issued and allotted, 308 Secured,
Rated, Listed, Redeemable, Non –Convertible
Debentures (“NCDs”) of the Company of face
value of INR 1,00,00,000/- each aggregating to
INR 308,00,00,000/-, on private placement basis.
The said NCDs were listed on the BSE Limited with
effect from April 26, 2016.

c)

The Company has received declarations from
WKH ,QGHSHQGHQW 'LUHFWRUV DI´UPLQJ FRPSOLDQFH
with the criteria of independence laid under the
provisions of Section 149(6) of the Act.
The Board placed on record their sincere
appreciation for the valuable contribution and
guidance provided by Mr. Karthik Athreya, during
his association with the Company.

Directors & Key Managerial Personnel
Appointment / Changes
Personnel (“KMP”):

Changes in the Director(s):
During FY 2015-16, following were the changes in
the Board of Directors of the Company:
i)

ii)

ii)

Dr. Yao Chye Chiang as a Non-Executive
Director of the Company, not liable to retire
by rotation.
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Managerial

Subsequent to the year under review, and in
accordance with the provisions of the Section
203 of the Act read with Rule 8 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, Mr. Sanjay Grewal, Chief
([HFXWLYH 2I´FHU DQG 0U 'KUXY -DLQ &KLHI
)LQDQFLDO2I´FHURIWKH&RPSDQ\ZHUHGHVLJQDWHG
as the KMP with effect from April 26, 2016.

Mr. Karthik Athreya ceased to be Managing
Director and CEO of the Company with effect
from February 25, 2016; and

Ms. Naina Lal Kidwai, as an Independent Non([HFXWLYH'LUHFWRUIRUDWHUPRIXSWR´YH\HDUV
(subject to annual evaluation by the Board)
commencing from the date of her appointment
i.e. February 25, 2016 and

Key

The Board placed on record their sincere appreciation
for the valuable services provided by Mr. Atit Soni
during his association with the Company.

d)

In accordance with the provisions of Section
149 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”) and the
rules framed thereunder, the approval of the
shareholders will be sought at the ensuing AGM of
the Company for the appointment of:
i)

in

In accordance with the provisions of Section 203
of the Act read with Rule 8A of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial
Personnel) Rules, 2014, Mr. Binoy K Parikh was
appointed as the Company Secretary and KMP of
the Company with effect from October 15, 2015,
in place of Mr. Atit Soni who ceased to be the
Company Secretary of the Company with effect
from September 10, 2015.

Ms. Naina Lal Kidwai was appointed as an
Additional Non-Executive Director of the
Company with effect from February 25, 2016,
ZKRKROGVRI´FHXSWRWKHGDWHRIWKHHQVXLQJ
Annual General Meeting (“AGM”) of the
Company. Further, subject to the approval of
the shareholders, Ms. Naina Lal Kidwai was also
appointed as an Independent Director of the
Company with effect from February 25, 2016
for a term of upto 5 years, subject to annual
evaluation by the Board;

iii) Dr. Yao Chye Chiang was appointed as an
Additional Non-Executive Director of the
Company with effect from February 26, 2016,
ZKRKROGVRI´FHXSWRWKHGDWHRIWKHHQVXLQJ
AGM of the Company.
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%DVHG RQ WKH GHFODUDWLRQV DQG FRQ´UPDWLRQV
received in terms of the applicable provisions of
WKH $FW FLUFXODUV QRWL´FDWLRQVGLUHFWLRQV LVVXHG
by the Reserve Bank of India and other applicable
laws, none of the Directors of the Company are
GLVTXDOL´HGIURPEHLQJDSSRLQWHGDV'LUHFWRUV

Implementation of Loan Management SystemBeacon
The Company has during the year implemented
Beacon –Phase II, a loan management system
which emphasizes on the asset monitoring aspects
of loans assets disbursed.

e)

Human Resource
During the year, the Company has successfully
LQGXFWHG VLJQL´FDQW WDOHQW DW VHQLRU OHYHO LQWR
the Company and was successful in retaining
and developing the existing human resources.
The Company has developed a robust learning
& development calendar in line with the training
QHHGVLGHQWL´HGIRULWVHPSOR\HHV$VRQ0DUFK
2016 the Company has 29 employees on its payroll.

f)

Subsidiaries / Joint Venture / Associate Companies

EXTRACT OF THE ANNUAL RETURN

The Company does not have any Subsidiary,
-RLQW9HQWXUHRU$VVRFLDWH&RPSDQLHVDQGKHQFH
disclosure regarding the same is not applicable.

As required under the provisions of the Act, an extract
of the annual return in prescribed Form No. MGT-9 is
annexed as Annexure B to this report.

PARTICULARS OF DEPOSITS
The Company being a “Non-Deposit Accepting
or Holding Non-Banking Financial Company” the
provisions of Section 73 and Section 74 read with Rule
8(5)(v) & (vi) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014,
are not applicable to the Company.
During the year under review, the Company has neither
accepted nor held any deposits from the public and
shall not accept any deposits from the public without
obtaining prior approval of the Reserve Bank of India.
FINANCE & CREDIT RATINGS
During the year under review, the Company met its
entire funding requirements from the equity infusion.
The Company has started discussions with various
SXEOLFSULYDWHVHFWRUEDQNVPXWXDOIXQGVDQG´QDQFLDO
institutions for raising funds to meet its future business
deals and growth.
During the year under review, the Company received
following ratings from India Ratings and Research
(Fitch Group) for the proposed debt programme of the
Company:
•

Long Term Debt Programme: ‘IND AA-‘; Outlook
Stable

•

Short Term Debt Programme: ‘IND A+

7KH FUHGLW SUR´OH GUDZV FRPIRUW IURP WKH VXSSRUW
of the marquee investors and their commitment to
the entity in the medium term. The rating mentioned
DERYH UHµHFWV WKH &RPSDQ\V UREXVW FDSLWDOLVDWLRQ
conservative leverage philosophy and prudent liquidity
management policy. The rating team also draws comfort
from the management team’s experience in managing
wholesale credit and sound risk management systems
and processes which are already in place.
POLICY FOR DIRECTOR’S
REMUNERATION

APPOINTMENT

AND

The provisions of Section 178 of the Act relating to
the constitution of Nomination and Remuneration
Committee are not applicable to the Company for FY
2015-16. However, as required under the Non-Banking
Financial Companies – Corporate Governance (Reserve
Bank) Directions, 2015 (as amended from time to
time) (“Directions”) the Company has constituted a
Nomination Committee to inter alia ensure compliance
ZLWK WKH ¬´W DQG SURSHU FULWHULD VWDWXV RI SURSRVHG
existing directors, etc. The Company has also adopted
WKH3ROLF\RQ¬´WDQGSURSHUFULWHULDIRUWKHDSSRLQWPHQW
of directors, as prescribed under the Directions.

PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS
WITH RELATED PARTIES AND POLICY ON RELATED
PARTY TRANSACTIONS
In terms of the applicable provisions of the Act and
the Non-Banking Financial Companies – Corporate
Governance (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2015, the
Company has put in place a Board approved Related
Party Transaction Policy (“RPT Policy”) for the purpose
of proper approval and reporting of transactions with
related parties.
During the year under review, the Company has
not entered into any related party transaction as
contemplated in sub-section (1) of section 188 of the
Act and all other transactions entered with the related
parties were in compliance with the applicable laws.
There were no transactions with related parties which
could be considered to be material in accordance
with the RPT Policy of the Company and hence no
transactions are reported in Form No. AOC-2.
However, the details of transactions with related party
as per Accounting Standard 18 are set out in Note No.
24 to the Financial Statements.
PARTICULARS
INVESTMENTS

OF

LOANS,

GUARANTEES

AND

During the year under review the Company has not
made any investments in terms of provisions of Section
186(1) of the Act. The provisions of Section 186 of the
Act pertaining to granting of loans to any persons or
body corporate and giving of guarantees or providing
security in connection with the loan to any other
body corporate or persons are not applicable to the
Company, since it is a Non-Banking Financial Company,
registered with Reserve Bank of India.
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROL SYSTEMS
7KH &RPSDQ\ KDV LQ SODFH DGHTXDWH LQWHUQDO ´QDQFLDO
FRQWUROV ZLWK UHIHUHQFH WR WKH ´QDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV
During the year under review, such controls were tested
and no reportable material weaknesses in the design or
operation was observed.
CONSERVATION
OF
ENERGY,
TECHNOLOGY
ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND OUTGO
The particulars regarding foreign exchange earnings
and outgo appear as separate items in the notes to
the Financial Statements. Since, the Company does
not own or carry out any manufacturing facility the
other particulars relating to conservation of energy and
technology absorption stipulated in the Company in the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 are not applicable.
Accordingly, the Company has annexed details of
conservation of energy, technology absorption and
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foreign exchange earnings and outgo as Annexure C
to this report.

•

Cleanliness and Hygiene programme;

•

Such other themes (permissible under the
Companies Act, 2013) as may be approved by the
Board

RISK MANAGEMENT
The Company has in place a risk management process
to identify, assess, monitor and review various risks of
the Company regularly. The Risk Committee and the
Audit Committee decide upon the key risks impacting
the business. These committee documents capture the
key risks and the best practices for mitigating them
through the Risk Management Charter and the scope of
the Internal Audit function.
The Company currently relies on the Internal Audit
function and Risk Management questionnaire for its risk
review. Overall business risks (including fraud factors)
are discussed and considered by Risk committee, Audit
committee, ALCO committee, etc. Minutes of these
committee meetings are placed before the Board while
reviewing the overall performance of the Company.
Additionally, formally fraud risks are documented.
The Company has institutionalised a systematic credit
evaluation process for credit underwriting, monitoring
on a regular and continual basis to detect any material
development in relation to any credit including
LGHQWL´HGVHFWRUVWRZKLFKLWKDVVXEVWDQWLDOH[SRVXUH
The Company follows a provisioning and write-off
policy which is in line with what is prescribed under the
Systematically Important Non-Banking Financial (NonDeposit Accepting or Holding) Companies Prudential
Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2015.
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES REMUNERATION
The statement containing particulars of employees as
required to be furnished under Section 197 of the Act,
read with Rule 5 (2) of the Companies (Appointment
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014,
is not applicable to unlisted Private Limited Companies.
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILTY (CSR)
As per the provisions of Section 135 of the Act,
the Company has constituted the Corporate Social
Responsibility Committee comprising of Mr. Stephen
Marzo,
Independent
Non-Executive
Director
(Chairman), Mr. Ali Haroon, Non-Executive Director, Mr.
Mark Cutis, Non-Executive Director and Ms. Subhashree
Dutta, Non-Executive Director. During FY 2015-16, the
Company spent INR 17.05 lacs (being 2 percent of the
DYHUDJHQHWSUR´WRIWKH&RPSDQ\LQWKHLPPHGLDWHO\
WKUHHSUHFHGLQJ´QDQFLDO\HDUVFDOFXODWHGDVSHU6HFWLRQ
198 of the Act) in the projects covered under Schedule
9,,RIWKH$FW
The CSR Policy of the Company recognises the following
main themes/ areas in which the expenditure pertaining
to the CSR activities may be incurred:
•

Health and Sanitation;

•

Self- Help groups empowering women;
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The annual report on CSR activities of the Company,
in prescribed format, is annexed as Annexure D to this
report.
EMPLOYEE STOCK OPTION SCHEME
Pursuant to the resolution passed by the shareholders
DWWKH$QQXDO*HQHUDO0HHWLQJKHOGRQ-XQHWKH
Company had introduced “Altico Capital India Private
Limited Stock Based Incentive Plan 2015” to enable the
employees of the Company to participate in the future
JURZWKDQG´QDQFLDOVXFFHVVRIWKH&RPSDQ\
In terms of Section 62 read with rule 12(9) of the
Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014
of the Act, the disclosures for the FY ended March 31,
2016 is provided in Annexure E annexed to this report.
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REPORT
The Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms
part of this Annual Report.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The Company recognizes its role as a corporate citizen
and endeavours to adopt the best practices and the
highest standards of Corporate Governance through
transparency in business ethics, accountability to its
customers, government and others. The Company’s
activities are carried out in accordance with good
corporate practices and the Company is constantly
striving to improve them by adopting the best
practices. The Company believes that good Corporate
Governance practices enables the Management to
direct and control the affairs of the Company in an
HI´FLHQWPDQQHUDQGWRDFKLHYHWKH&RPSDQ\VJRDOIRU
maximizing value for all its stakeholders.
a)

Board of Directors
The Board of Directors, along with its Committees
provide leadership and guidance to the Company’s
Management and directs, supervises and controls
the activities of the Company. The size of the Board
is commensurate with the size and business of the
Company. In addition to the basic governance
practices, the Board lays strong emphasis on
transparency, accountability and integrity.
At present, the Board comprises 9 (nine) Directors
of whom 7 (seven) are Non-Executive Directors,
representing shareholders and 2 (two) are
Independent Non-Executive Directors.

Composition of the Board of the Company:
Name of the Director(s)
Mr. Robert Petty
Mr. Amit Gupta
Mr. Mark Cutis
Mr. Ali Haroon
Mr. Rahul Merchant
Ms. Subhashree Dutta
Dr. Yao Chye Chiang
Mr. Stephen Marzo
Ms. Naina Lal Kidwai

Category
Chairman & Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Independent Non-Executive Director
Independent Non-Executive Director

Board Meetings:


7KHVFKHGXOHRIWKH%RDUG&RPPLWWHHVPHHWLQJVWREHKHOGLQD´QDQFLDO\HDULVFLUFXODWHGLQDGYDQFHWRHQDEOH
the Board/Committee Members to plan their schedule and ensure highest level of participation at the meetings.
The Board/Committee Members are also given an option of attending meetings through video conferencing.



'XULQJWKH\HDUXQGHUUHYLHZ ´YH PHHWLQJVRIWKH%RDUGZHUHFRQYHQHGDQGKHOGRQ0D\$XJXVW
27, 2015, September 10, 2015, December 8, 2015 and March 3, 2016. The meetings of the Board were chaired by
Mr. Robert Petty.
Name of the Director

Mr. Robert Petty
Mr. Amit Gupta
Mr. Mark Cutis
Mr. Ali Haroon
Mr. Rahul Merchant
Ms. Subhashree Dutta
Dr. Yao Chye Chiang@
Mr. Stephen Marzo
Ms. Naina Lal Kidwai#
Mr. Karthik Athreya*

Board Meetings
Held

Attended

Whether present at
the previous AGM
held on June 23, 2015

5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5
5

5
5
1
4
4
4
1
5
1
3

No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No
No

@ Dr. Yao Chye Chiang was appointed as an Additional Non-Executive Director with effect from February 26, 2016;
#Ms. Naina Lal Kidwai was appointed as an Additional Non-Executive & Independent Director with effect from
February 25, 2016; and
* Mr. Karthik Athreya ceased to be Managing Director & CEO with effect from February 25, 2016.
The Board also takes decisions by circular resolutions which are noted by the Board at its next meeting.
b)

Committees



,QDFFRUGDQFHZLWKWKHDSSOLFDEOHSURYLVLRQVRIWKH$FWWKHFLUFXODU V QRWL´FDWLRQ V DQGGLUHFWLRQVLVVXHG
by the Reserve Bank of India and the Company’s internal corporate governance requirements, the Board
KDV FRQVWLWXWHG YDULRXV &RPPLWWHHV ZLWK VSHFL´F WHUPV RI UHIHUHQFH WR IRFXV RQ VSHFL´F LVVXHV DQG HQVXUH
expedient resolution on diverse matters.
These include the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee, Credit Committee,
CSR Committee, Finance Committee, Asset Liability Committee, Risk Management Committee and Internal
Complaints Committee.
The Company Secretary acts as the Secretary for all the aforementioned Committees. The Committees also
takes decision by way of circular resolution which is noted by the respective Committee at its next meeting.
The minutes of the meetings of all Committees along with summary of key decision/discussion taken at each
Committee is placed before the Board for discussion / noting /approval.
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Audit Committee
During the year under review, the Board re-constituted the Audit Committee with a view to align with the
requirements stated under the Act and other applicable law. The Audit Committee functions as per the terms
of reference including but not limited to duties, powers, roles & responsibilities, as set out in Audit Committee
Charter, approved by the Board. During the year under review, the Audit Committee met 4 (four) times on May
26, 2015, September 10, 2015, December 8, 2015 and February 17, 2016.
Composition of the Audit Committee:
Category

Mr. Stephen Marzo*

Independent Non-Executive
Director

Mr. Mark Cutis*

Non-Executive Director

Member

4

NIL

Ms. Naina Lal Kidwai*

Independent Non-Executive
Director

Member

4

NIL

Mr. Ali Haroon (ceased to be Non-Executive Director
member w.e.f. 03.03.2016)

Member

4

4

Mr. Rahul Merchant (ceased
to be member w.e.f.
03.03.2016)

Member

4

4

Non-Executive Director

Status

No. of Meetings No. of Meetings
Held
Attended
4
4

Name of the Director

Chairman

* The Board of Directors at their Meeting held on March 3, 2016 re-constituted the Audit Committee with
Mr. Stephen Marzo, Mr. Mark Cutis & Ms. Naina Lal Kidwai as its Members.
Nomination Committee
During the year under review, the Board re-constituted the Nomination Committee with Mr. Stephen Marzo,
Ms. Naina Lal Kidwai, Mr. Mark Cutis and Mr. Rahul Merchant as its Members. The Committee was re-constituted
with a view to align with the requirements stated under the Act and other applicable law. The Nomination
Committee functions as per the terms of reference including but not limited to duties, powers, roles &
responsibilities, as set out, in the Nomination Committee Charter, approved by the Board. During the year
under review, all new appointments in the Board of Directors were reviewed and recommended to the Board
by the Nomination Committee, in accordance with “Fit & Proper Criteria” for directors as stipulated by the
Reserve Bank of India. During the year under review, the Nomination Committee had performed their functions
by passing resolution through circulation on February 24, 2016 and February 25, 2016.

Remuneration Committee
During the year under review, the Board re-constituted the Remuneration Committee with a view to align
with the requirements stated under the Act and other applicable law. During the year under review, the
Remuneration Committee met 3 (three) times on May 26, 2015, September 10, 2015 and December 8, 2015.
Composition of the Remuneration Committee:
Status

No. of Meetings No. of Meetings
Held
Attended
3
3

Name of the Director

Category

Mr. Rahul Merchant*

Non-Executive Director

Mr. Stephen Marzo*

Independent Non-Executive
Director

Member

3

NIL

Ms. Naina Lal Kidwai*

Independent Non-Executive
Director

Member

3

NIL

Mr. Ali Haroon*

Non-Executive Director

Member

3

3

Mr. Amit Gupta
(ceased to be a member
w.e.f. 03.03.2016)

Non-Executive Director

Member

3

3

Mr. Robert Petty
(ceased to be a member
w.e.f. 03.03.2016)

Non-Executive Director

Member

3

3

Chairman

* The Remuneration Committee was re-constituted on March 03, 2016 with Mr. Stephen Marzo, Ms. Naina Lal
Kidwai, Mr. Ali Haroon and Mr. Rahul Merchant as its Members.

32

Annual Report 2015-16

Credit Committee
The term of reference of Credit Committee is as per the Credit Policy duly approved by the Board. During the
\HDUXQGHUUHYLHZWKH&UHGLW&RPPLWWHHPHW IRXUWHHQ WLPHVRQ$SULO$SULO-XQH
-XO\$XJXVW6HSWHPEHU1RYHPEHU'HFHPEHU-DQXDU\
-DQXDU\)HEUXDU\)HEUXDU\0DUFKDQG0DUFK
Composition of the Credit Committee:
Name of the Director

Category

Mr. Robert Petty
Mr. Amit Gupta
Mr. Mark Cutis
Mr. Ali Haroon
Ms. Subhashree Dutta
Mr. Karthik Athreya* (ceased
to be a member w.e.f.
25.02.2016)

Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director

Status
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member
Member

No. of Meetings No. of Meetings
Held
Attended
14
10
14
11
14
NIL
14
9
14
13
14
6

Corporate Social Responsibility Committee
The term of reference of CSR Committee is as per the CSR Policy and Charter duly approved by the Board.
During the year under review, the CSR Committee met 2 (two) times on May 26, 2015 and November 30, 2015.
Composition of the CSR Committee:
Name of the Director

Category

Mr. Stephen Marzo

Independent Non-Executive
Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director

Ms. Subhashree Dutta
Mr. Mark Cutis
Mr. Ali Haroon
Mr. Karthik Athreya*
(ceased to be a member
w.e.f. 25.02.2016)

Status
Chairman
Member
Member
Member
Member

No. of Meetings No. of Meetings
Held
Attended
2
1
2
2
2
2

2
NIL
1
1

Finance Committee
In view of fund raising plan of the Company, the Board has constituted the Finance Committee to approve each
kind of fund raising proposal of the Company. The Finance Committee was constituted on March 3, 2016 and
during the year under review, no meetings were held.

Asset Liability Committee
The term of reference of Asset Liability Committee is as per the ALCO Charter duly approved by the Board.
During the year under review, the Asset Liability Committee met 3 (three) times on May 25, 2015, September
1, 2015 and February 4, 2016.
Composition of the Asset & Liability Committee:
Name of the Director

Category

Mr. Stephen Marzo

Independent Non-Executive
Director
6U9LFH3UHVLGHQW¨)LQDQFH
CFO – Clearwater Partners
Singapore

0U'KLUHQ-KDYHUL
Mr. Rehan Talib

Status
Chairman
Member
Member

No. of Meetings No. of Meetings
Held
Attended
3
3
3
3

3
3

Risk Committee
The term of reference of Risk Committee is as per the Risk Charter duly approved by the Board. During the
\HDUXQGHUUHYLHZWKH5LVN&RPPLWWHHPHW WKUHH WLPHVRQ-XQH6HSWHPEHUDQG)HEUXDU\
24, 2016.
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Composition of the Risk Management Committee:
Name of the Director

Category

Mr. Stephen Marzo

Independent Non-Executive
Director
6U9LFH3UHVLGHQW¨)LQDQFH
Non-Executive Director
&KLHI&UHGLW2I´FHU
932SHUDWLRQV

0U'KLUHQ-KDYHUL
Mr. Rahul Merchant
Mr. Amit Pachisia
0V9LQHHWD6KDUPD

Status
Chairman
Member
Member
Member
Member

No. of Meetings No. of Meetings
Held
Attended
3
3
3
3
3
3

3
2
1
3

Internal Complaints Committee

12) Credit Risk Management Policy

In terms of the Sexual Harassment of Women at
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition & Redressal)
Act, 2013, the Board has constituted the Internal
Complaints Committee. The terms of reference
of the Internal Complaints Committee inter-alia
includes: conducting an inquiry into complaints
made by any aggrieved at the workplace and
arriving at a conclusion as to whether the allegation
DJDLQVW ZKRP WKH FRPSODLQW KDV EHHQ ´OHG ZDV
proved or not and take necessary action(s) to
resolve the complaint. During the year under
review, there were no complaints related to sexual
harassment received by the Internal Complaints
Committee.

13) Record Retention Policy

Composition of the Internal Complaints Committee:
Mrs. Rajeshwari Ramaswamy, Mrs. Patricia Shetty,
Mr. Mrinal Chandran and Mr. Tapan Pati (External
Member).

14) Internal Code of Corporate Governance
15) Internal Compliance Manual for the employees
and Directors
ACCOUNTING
COMPANY

STANDARDS

FOLLOWED

BY

THE

The Financial Statements of the Company has been
prepared in accordance with the Generally Accepted
Accounting Principles in India (Indian GAAP) to comply
ZLWKWKH$FFRXQWLQJ6WDQGDUGVVSHFL´HGXQGHU6HFWLRQ
133 of the Act read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 and the relevant provisions of
the Act and the Guidelines prescribed by the RBI, as
applicable.
AUDITORS
Statutory Auditors

c)

Policies / Code
In terms of the RBI regulations, the applicable
provisions of the Act and the applicable regulations
issued by the Securities and Exchange Board of
India, the Board of Directors has adopted several
policies/guidelines for the effective governance of
the Company which includes the following:



1)

Fair Practices Code

2)

Investment Policy

3)

Demand/call loans

4)

Guidelines on Know Your Customer and Anti
Money Laundering Policy

5)

Interest Rate Policy

6)

Asset Liability Management Policy

7)

“Fit & Proper” Person Criteria

  :KLVWOH%ORZHU3ROLF\9LJLO0HFKDQLVP
9)

Corporate Social Responsibility Policy

10) Related Party Transaction Policy
11)
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M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, Chartered
Accountants, Mumbai, having Firm Registration No.
101049W/E300004, were appointed as the Statutory
Auditors of the Company at the previous Annual General
0HHWLQJKHOGRQ-XQHIURPWKHFRQFOXVLRQRI
WKH VDLG $QQXDO *HQHUDO 0HHWLQJ WR KROG RI´FH WLOO WKH
conclusion of the ensuing Annual General Meeting of
the Company.
M/s. S.R. Batliboi & Associates LLP, Chartered
Accountants, being eligible for re-appointment have
FRQVHQWHG DQG FRQ´UPHG WKDW WKHLU DSSRLQWPHQW LI
made, shall be in compliance with the terms of Section
139 read with Section 141 of the Act and Rule 10 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 of the Act.
The Board recommends the appointment of M/s. S.R.
Batliboi & Associates LLP, Chartered Accountants, as
WKH 6WDWXWRU\ $XGLWRUV RI WKH &RPSDQ\ WR KROG RI´FH
from the conclusion of this ensuing Annual General
Meeting till the conclusion of the next Annual General
Meeting.
During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors
have not reported any incident of fraud to the Audit
Committee.

Internal Auditors

•

In the preparation of the annual accounts, the
applicable accounting standards had been followed
along with proper explanation relating to material
departures;

•

The Directors have selected such accounting
policies and applied them consistently and made
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company as at March 31,
DQGRIWKHSUR´WRIWKH&RPSDQ\IRUWKH\HDU
ended as on that date;



7KH 'LUHFWRUV KDYH WDNHQ SURSHU DQG VXI´FLHQW
care for maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets
of the Company and for preventing and detecting
fraud and other irregularities;

•

The Directors have prepared the annual accounts
IRU´QDQFLDO\HDUHQGHG0DUFKRQDJRLQJ
concern basis;



7KH 'LUHFWRUV KDYH ODLG GRZQ LQWHUQDO ´QDQFLDO
controls to be followed by the Company and that
VXFK LQWHUQDO ´QDQFLDO FRQWUROV DUH DGHTXDWH DQG
were operating effectively;

•

The Directors have devised proper systems to
ensure compliance with the provisions of all
applicable laws and that such systems were
adequate and operating effectively.

In terms of provisions of Section 138 of the Act and
other applicable laws, if any, M/s Aneja & Associates,
Chartered Accountants were appointed as the Internal
Auditors of the Company.
AUDITORS REPORT (EXPLANATION FOR ADVERSE
REMARKS, IF ANY)
7KHUH DUH QR TXDOL´FDWLRQV UHVHUYDWLRQV RU DGYHUVH
remarks made by S. R. Batliboi & Associates, LLP,
Statutory Auditors and M/s Aneja & Associates, Internal
Auditors, in their report.
RBI GUIDELINES
The Company has constituted various committees in
compliance with various regulations/directions issued
by the Reserve Bank of India (RBI) as amended from time
to time to measure, monitor, report and control risks,
etc. The Company always aims to operate in compliance
with applicable laws including RBI regulations and
employs its best efforts towards achieving the same. The
Company to the best knowledge of its management has
complied with all applicable regulations and guidelines
issued by the applicable authorities including the
Reserve Bank of India. As required by the Reserve Bank
of India under the Non-Banking Financial CompaniesCorporate Governance- (Reserve Bank) Directions,
2015, the management of the Company, as an addition
to this report, have prepared a management and
discussion report which forms part of this report.
CHANGE IN NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY
During the Financial Year under review, there was no
change in the nature of business of the Company.
MATERIAL CHANGES, IF ANY, POST FINANCIAL YEAR
ENDED MARCH 31, 2016
Apart from the information disclosed under the State
Of Company’s Affairs there has not, occurred any
material changes and commitments affecting the
´QDQFLDOSRVLWLRQRIWKH&RPSDQ\EHWZHHQWKHHQGRI
WKH ´QDQFLDO \HDU LH 0DUFK   DQG WKH GDWH RI
signing of this report.
MATERIAL ADVERSE ORDERS, IF ANY
7KHUHDUHQRVLJQL´FDQWDQGPDWHULDORUGHUVSDVVHGE\
the Reserve Bank of India or the Ministry of Corporate
Affairs or courts or Tribunals or other appropriate
authorities which will have an impact on the going
concern status of the Company and Company’s
operations in future.
DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT
In terms of the provisions of section 134 (5) of the
&RPSDQLHV$FWWKH'LUHFWRUVKHUHE\FRQ´UPWKDW
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ANNEXURE A
'HWDLOVRILVVXHDQGDOORWPHQWRIVKDUHVRQULJKWVEDVLVGXULQJWKH´QDQFLDO\HDU
Date of the
Board Meeting
Sr.
at which the
No.
rights issue was
approved
1.
August 27, 2015
2.
March 3, 2016

Total amount of
Total
Premium
equity shares
Total number of
Face
number
Date of
Amount
subscribed
equity shares
Value per
of equity
allotment
per share
(including share
subscribed
share (`)
shares
(`)
premium)
offered
132,441,860
10
33.00
130,740,381
5,621,836,383 October 7, 2015
38,315,789
10
37.50
36,859,789 1,750,839,977.50 March 9, 2016

Signed by:
Robert D Petty
DIN: 00385586
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Stephen Marzo
DIN:01443338

ANNEXURE B
Form No. MGT-9
EXTRACT OF ANNUAL RETURN
as on the Financial Year ended on March 31, 2016
Pursuant to section 92(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 12(1) of the Companies (Management and
Administration) Rules, 2014]

I.

REGISTRATION AND OTHER DETAILS:
S.
No
(i)
(ii)
(iii)

Particulars

Details

U65993MH2004PTC144260
-DQXDU\
Altico Capital India Private Limited
(formerly Clearwater Capital India Private Limited)
(iv) Category / Sub-Category of the Company
Private Company limited by shares
(v) $GGUHVVRIWKH5HJLVWHUHGRI´FHDQGFRQWDFW
Altico Capital India Private Limited
details
7th Floor, Mudra House, Opp. Grand Hyatt,
Santacruz (East), Mumbai-400055
Phone: 022-67154000
Fax:022-67154001
(vi) Whether listed company
Equity Shares:- No
Debentures:- Yes, the Non-Convertible Debentures
of the Company, issued on private placement basis
are listed on BSE with effect from April 26, 2016
(vii) Name, Address and Contact details of Registrar Sharex Dynamic (India) Private Limited
and Transfer Agent, if any
Unit-1, Luthra Industrial Premises,
VW)ORRU(09DVDQWL0DUJ
Andheri- Kurla Road,
Safed Pool, Andheri West,
Mumbai-400072
Tel: 2851 5606
Fax: 28512885
II.

CIN
Registration Date
Name of the Company

PRINCIPAL BUSINESS ACTIVITIES OF THE COMPANY
All the business activities contributing 10 % or more of the total turnover of the company shall be stated:Sl.
No.

Name and Description of main products / services

1

Credit Granting (Non-Deposit Taking Non-Banking
Financial Activity)

NIC Code of the
Product/ service

% to total turnover
of the company

64920

100

III. PARTICULARS OF HOLDING, SUBSIDIARY AND ASSOCIATES COMPANIES
S. No
1.

Name and Address of the
Company
India Credit Pte Limited
Address: 4 Battery Road #34-01
Bank of China Building
Singapore 049908

CIN/GLN
N.A

Holding/
% of Shares
Subsidiary/
Applicable Section
held
Associates
Holding Company
99.99%
2 (46) and
2 (87) of the
Companies Act 2013
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IV. SHARE HOLDING PATTERN (Equity Share Capital Breakup as percentage of Total Equity)
i)

Category-wise Share Holding
No. of Shares held at the beginning of the year

Category of Shareholders
Demat

Physical

% of Total

Total

Shares

No. of Shares held at the end of the year
Demat

Physical

% Change

% of Total during the
year
Shares

Total

A. Promoters
(1) Indian
a)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

b) Central Govt

Individual/HUF

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

c)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

State Govt (s)

d) Bodies Corp.
e) Banks / FI
f)

Any other…

Sub-total (A) (1):-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(2) Foreign
a)

NRIs - Individuals

b) Other – Individuals
c) Bodies Corp.

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1

1

0.01

-

1

1

0.01

-

311,879,508

-

311,879,508

99.99

479,479,678

-

479,479,678

99.99

53.74

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

e) Any Other….

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

311,879,508

1 311,879,509

100

479,479,678

1 479,479,679

100

53.74

311,879,508

1 311,879,509

100

479,479,678

1 479,479,679

100

53.74

-

-

-

-

Total shareholding of
Promoter (A) = (A)(1)+(A)(2)

1.

-

d) Banks / FI

Sub-total (A) (2):-

B.

-

Public Shareholding
Institutions
a)

Mutual Funds

-

-

b) Banks / FI

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Central Govt

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

H  9HQWXUH&DSLWDO)XQGV

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

f)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

g) FIIs

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

K  )RUHLJQ9HQWXUH
Capital Funds

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Insurance Companies

i)

Others (Multilateral
Financial
Institutions)

Sub-total (B)(1):2.

-

c)

d) State Govt(s)


-

-

Non-Institutions
a)

Bodies Corp.
i)

Indian

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

ii)

Overseas

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Individual
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
upto ` 1 lakh

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Individual
shareholders holding
nominal share capital
in excess of `1 lakh

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

1 311,879,509

100

479,479,678

1 479,479,679

100

53.74

b) Individuals
i)

ii)

c)

Others (specify)

Sub-total (B)(2):Total Public Shareholding
(B)=(B)(1)+ (B)(2)
C.

Shares held by Custodian
for GDRs & ADRs

Grand Total (A+B+C)

38
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(ii) Shareholding of Promoters
Shareholding
Shareholding
at the beginning of the year
at the end of the year
% change in
%of Shares
%of Shares
Sl
shareholding
% of total
% of total
Shareholder’s Name
Pledged /
Pledged /
No
during the
Shares
Shares
encumbered
encumbered No. of Shares
No. of Shares
year
of the
of the
to total
to total
company
Company
shares
shares
1
India Credit Pte. Ltd. 311,879,508
99.99
NIL 479,479,678
99.99
NIL
53.74
Mr. Robert Petty
(holding on behalf of
2
1
0.01
NIL
1
0.01
NIL
India Credit Pte. Ltd.)
Total
311,879,509
100
NIL 479,479,679
100
NIL
53.74
(iii) Change in Promoters’ Shareholding (please specify, if there is no change)

Sl.
No.

Shareholding at the
Cumulative Shareholding
beginning of the year
during the year
% of total
% of total
No. of shares shares of the No. of shares shares of the
company
company
311,879,509
100% 479,479,679
100%

Particulars

At the beginning of the year
Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Promoters / decrease (e.g. allotment
/ transfer / bonus/ sweat equity etc):
Shareholding during the year specifying
the reasons for increase
At the End of the year

As referred
in Annexure
A
479,479,679

100%

479,479,679

100%

(iv) Shareholding Pattern of top ten Shareholders (other than Directors, Promoters and Holders of GDRs and
ADRs):

Sl.
No.

For Each of the Top 10 Shareholders

At the beginning of the year
Date wise Increase / Decrease in
Shareholding during the year specifying
the reasons for increase / decrease (e.g.
allotment / transfer / bonus / sweat equity
etc):
At the End of the year

Shareholding at the
beginning of the year
% of total
No. of
shares of the
shares
company
N.A
N.A

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year
% of total
No. of
shares of the
shares
company
N.A
N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

N.A

(v) Shareholding of Directors and Key Managerial Personnel:

Sl.
No.

For Each of the Directors and KMP

Robert Petty
(nominee of India Credit Pte. Ltd.)
At the beginning of the year
Date wise Increase / Decrease
in Shareholding during the year
specifying the reasons for increase /
decrease (e.g. allotment / transfer /
bonus / sweat equity etc):
At the End of the year ( or on the
date of separation, if separated during
the year)

Shareholding at the beginning
of the year
% of total
No.
shares of the
of shares
company

Cumulative Shareholding
during the year
% of total
No. of
shares of the
shares
company

1

0.01

1

0.01

-

-

-

-

1

0.01

1

0.01
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INDEBTEDNESS
Indebtedness of the Company including interest outstanding/accrued but not due for payment
Secured Loans
Unsecured
excluding
Loans
deposits

Indebtedness at the beginning of the financial year
i)
Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii)
Change in Indebtedness during the financial year
•
Addition
•
Reduction
Net Change
Indebtedness at the end of the financial year
i)
Principal Amount
ii) Interest due but not paid
iii) Interest accrued but not due
Total (i+ii+iii)

Deposits

Total
Indebtedness

N.A
N.A
N.A
N.A

N.A
N.A
N.A
N.A

N.A
N.A
N.A
N.A

N.A
N.A
N.A
N.A

N.A
N.A

N.A
N.A

N.A
N.A

N.A
N.A

N.A
N.A
N.A
N.A

N.A
N.A
N.A
N.A

N.A
N.A
N.A
N.A

N.A
N.A
N.A
N.A

VI. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL
A.

Remuneration to Managing Director, Whole-time Directors and/or Manager:

Sl.
Particulars of Remuneration
no.
1.

2.
3.
4.

5.

Name of Directors
Mr. Karthik Athreya
(refer note no.1 below)

Total Amount

20,768,096

20,768,096

---

---

---20,768,096
NA

---20,768,096
NA

Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in section 17(1) of the
Income-tax Act, 1961
E 9DOXHRISHUTXLVLWHVXV  ,QFRPHWD[$FW
F  3UR´WVLQOLHXRIVDODU\XQGHUVHFWLRQ  ,QFRPHWD[
Act, 1961
Stock Option
Sweat Equity
Commission
DVRISUR´W
- others, specify…
Others, please specify
Total
Ceiling as per the Act

Note 1: Mr. Karthik Athreya ceased to be the Managing Director and CEO of the Company with effect from
February 25, 2016.
B.
Sl.
no.
1

2

Remuneration to other directors:
Particulars of Remuneration
Independent Directors
•
Fee for attending board committee meetings
•
Commission
•
Others (Directors Remuneration)
Total (1)
Other Non-Executive Directors
•
Fee for attending board committee meetings
•
Commission
•
Others (Directors Remuneration)
Total (2)
Total (B)=(1+2)
Total Managerial
Remuneration
Overall Ceiling as per the Act

Name of Directors
Mr. Stephen Marzo Ms. Naina Lal Kidwai*
12,472,947
12,472,947
Mr. Rahul Merchant
5,699,757
5,699,757
18,172,704
18,172,704
NA

* Ms. Naina Lal Kidwai was appointed w.e.f. February 25, 2016.
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Total
Amount

1,340,000
1,340,000

13,812,947
13,812,947

1,340,000

5,699,757
5,699,757
19,512,704

1,340,000
NA

19,512,704
NA

C.

Remuneration To Key Managerial Personnel Other Than MD/Manager/WT
Name of Key Managerial Personnel
Mr. Atit Soni *
Mr. Binoy K Parikh $
Total

Sl.
Particulars of Remuneration
no.
1.

Gross salary
(a) Salary as per provisions contained in
section 17(1) of the Income-tax Act, 1961
E 9DOXHRISHUTXLVLWHVXV  ,QFRPH
tax Act, 1961
F  3UR´WVLQOLHXRIVDODU\XQGHUVHFWLRQ
17(3) Income-tax Act, 1961
Stock Option
Sweat Equity
Commission
 DVRISUR´W
others, specify…
Others, please specify
Total

2.
3.
4.

5.

1,451,308

1,776,566

3,227,874

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

NA

1,776,566

NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
3,227,874

NA
NA
NA
NA
NA
1,451,308

* Mr. Atit Soni ceased as a Company Secretary with effect from September 10, 2015
$ Mr. Binoy Parikh was appointed as a Company Secretary with effect from October 15, 2015
VII. PENALTIES / PUNISHMENT/ COMPOUNDING OF OFFENCES:

Type

A.

B.

C.

COMPANY
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
DIRECTORS
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding
OTHER OFFICERS IN DEFAULT
Penalty
Punishment
Compounding

Brief
Description

Details of
Penalty/
Punishment/
Compounding
fee imposed

Authority
[RD/NCLT/
Court]

Appeal
made, if
any (give
details)

N.A
N.A
N.A

N.A
N.A
N.A

N.A
N.A
N.A

N.A
N.A
N.A

N.A
N.A
N.A

N.A
N.A
N.A

N.A
N.A
N.A

N.A
N.A
N.A

N.A
N.A
N.A

N.A
N.A
N.A

N.A
N.A
N.A

N.A
N.A
N.A

N.A
N.A
N.A

N.A
N.A
N.A

N.A
N.A
N.A

Section
of the
Companies
Act

Signed by:
Robert D Petty
DIN: 00385586

Stephen Marzo
DIN:01443338
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ANNEXURE C
DETAILS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OUTGO
I.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
(i)

the steps taken or impact on conservation of energy- Not applicable

(ii) the steps taken by the Company for utilising alternate sources of energy- Not applicable
(iii) the capital investment on energy conservation equipments- Not applicable
II.

TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
(i)

the effort made towards technology absorption- Not applicable

LL  WKHEHQH´WVGHULYHGOLNHSURGXFWLPSURYHPHQWFRVWUHGXFWLRQSURGXFWGHYHORSPHQWRULPSRUWVXEVWLWXWLRQ
Not applicable
(iii) in case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the
´QDQFLDO\HDU 1RWDSSOLFDEOH
(iv) the expenditure incurred on Research and Development: Not applicable
The Company is not a manufacturing Company, however energy conservation continues to receive priority
attention at all levels. All efforts are made to conserve and optimise energy. The Company is constantly
active in harnessing and tapping the latest and best technology in the industry, wherever possible.
III. FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO
Kindly refer to Note no. 25 of the Note to Accounts section of the Balance Sheet.

Signed by:
Robert D Petty
DIN: 00385586
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Stephen Marzo
DIN:01443338

ANNEXURE D
ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES
[As prescribed under section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility
Policy) Rules, 2014]
1)

A brief outline of the Company’s CSR policy, including overview of projects or programs proposed to be
undertaken and a reference to the web-link to the CSR policy and projects or programs.
The Committee is committed to improve the society in which it operates. The Company has formulated a CSR
3ROLF\ ZKLFK LQWHU DOLD FRQWDLQV WKH LQIRUPDWLRQ SHUWDLQLQJ WR WKH &65 DFWLYLWLHV LGHQWL´HG E\ WKH &RPSDQ\
constitution of the CSR Committee and the manner in which the CSR Committee shall function.
In order to initiate a start on its CSR responsibilities, the Company will distribute its CSR efforts in accordance
with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 around the following themes:

2)

•

Health & Sanitation

•

Self Help groups empowering women

•

Cleanliness & Hygiene programme

•

Education

Composition of the CSR Committee
The CSR Committee of the Company consist of following members:

3)

•

Mr. Stephen Marzo (Independent Director and Chairman)

•

Ms. Subhashree Dutta

•

Mr. Ali Haroon

•

Mr. Mark Cutis

Average net profit of the Company for last three financial years
INR 85,126,308/- (Indian Rupees Eight Crore Fifty One Lac Twenty Six Thousand Three Hundred and Eight).

4)

Prescribed CSR Expenditure (two per cent. Of the amount as in item 3 above)
INR 1,702,526/- (Indian Rupees Seventeen Lac Two Thousand Five Hundred and Twenty Six).

5)

Details of CSR spent during the financial year.
INR 1,705,000/-(Indian Rupees Seventeen Lac Five Thousand Only)
(a) Total amount to be spent for the financial year;
INR 1,705,000/- (Indian Rupees Seventeen Lac Five Thousand Only)
(b) Amount unspent , if any;
NIL
(c) Manner in which the amount spent during the financial year is detailed below.
(1)
S.

(2)
CSR project

(3)
Section in Which

(4)
Projects or programs (1) Local

No

or Activity

the Project is

area or other (2) Specify

identified

covered

the state and district where
projects

project or

or

programs

was

undertaken

(5)
Amount

(6)
Amount spent on

(7)
Cumulative

(8)
Amount

outlay

the projects or

expenditure

spent: Direct

(budget)

programs Sub –

upto to the

or through

heads: (1) Direct

reporting

implementing

programs

expenditure

period

agency

wise

on projects or

437,000

475,000

programs (2)
Overheads:
1

Women
Empowerment

Goonj

Creating Stitching centre
under “Cloth for Work”
initiative for underprivileged
women’s livelihood

475,000

38,000
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(1)
S.

(2)
CSR project

(3)
Section in Which

(4)
Projects or programs (1) Local

No

or Activity

the Project is

area or other (2) Specify

identified

covered

the state and district where
projects

project or

or

programs

was

undertaken

(5)
Amount

(6)
Amount spent on

(7)
Cumulative

(8)
Amount

outlay

the projects or

expenditure

spent: Direct

(budget)

programs Sub –

upto to the

or through

heads: (1) Direct

reporting

implementing

programs

expenditure

period

agency

wise

on projects or
programs (2)
Overheads:

2

Education

3

Health and
Hygiene

4

Health and
Hygiene

Teaching aids like school books
The Akanksha
and other education material
Foundation
given to the
Wadibundar
Municipal School children
Sundara and
Medical aids and centres for
Gaberial Project
WKH WULEDO UHJLRQV LGHQWL´HG
(Doctors for You) near Kalwa
6W-XGHV,QGLD
Cancer
care
for
under
Childcare Centre privileged children.

455,000

36,000

419,000

455,000

475,000

38,000

437,000

475,000

300,000

0

300,00

300,000

Goonj:


*RRQMLVDQ1*2ZKLFKSURYLGHVFORWKHVDQGRWKHUEDVLFDPHQLWLHVWRPLOOLRQVLQWKHIDUµXQJYLOODJHVE\WXUQLQJ
urban wastage into a resource for rural India. This initiative was started by them in 1998. With force of over
300 volunteers, Goonj implements various initiatives over 150 grass root organisations, panchayats and social
activities in 20 states of India.
Akanksha Foundation:
The Akanksha Foundation’s mission is to provide children from low income communities with the high quality
education, enabling them to maximise their potential and transform their lives. The Akanksha Foundation
ZRUNV LQ WKH ´HOG RI HGXFDWLRQ LQLWLDO VFKRRO UHIRUP WKURXJK ¬7KH 6FKRRO 3URMHFW 7KH 6FKRRO 3URMHFW LV D
venture to open high quality schools serving children from low-income communities in Mumbai and Pune.
Doctors for you:



'RFWRUVIRU\RXLVDQRQSUR´WRUJDQLVDWLRQUHJLVWHUHGLQWKH6WDWHRI0DKDUDVKWUDDQGSULPDULO\GHDOVZLWKWKH
key issues which include children, education and literacy, environment and forests, health and family welfare,
+,9$,'6QXWULWLRQVFLHQFHDQGWHFKQRORJ\WULEDODIIDLUVZRPHQVGHYHORSPHQWDQGHPSRZHUPHQW
St. Jude India Childcare Centre:



6)

6W-XGH,QGLD&KLOG&DUH&HQWUHV 6W-XGH FXUUHQWO\UXQVFHQWUHVLQ0XPEDL'HOKL.RONDWD+\GHUDEDGDQG
-DLSXU,QPDMRUFLWLHVRI,QGLDZKHUHORZFRVWFDQFHUWUHDWPHQWLVDYDLODEOHIRUFKLOGUHQZKRQHHG
treatment for cancer and their parents who come to hospitals from distant towns and villages. The hospitals
do not treat them as in-patients during the long drawn out treatment and these needy families do not have a
SODFHWRVWD\ZKHQHYHUWKHFKLOGLVQRWDGPLWWHGWRKRVSLWDO+HQFH6W-XGHVSURYLGHVWKHVHIDPLOLHVZLWKIUHH
of cost:
1.

Housing

2.

Nutritional support

3.

Transportation to and from the hospital

4.

Counselling for the family and new skills for income generation

5.

Educational and recreational activities

6.

Art-based therapy, music therapy and yoga

In case the Company has failed to spend the two per cent of the average net profit of the last three financial years
or any part thereof, the Company shall provide the reasons for not spending the amount in its Board report.
Not Applicable

7)

A responsibility statement of the CSR Committee that the implementation and monitoring of CSR Policy, is
in compliance with CSR objectives and Policy of the Company.



7KH&65&RPPLWWHHFRQ´UPVWKDWWKHLPSOHPHQWDWLRQDQGPRQLWRULQJRI&653ROLF\LVLQFRPSOLDQFHRI&65
objectives as stated in the CSR Policy of the Company.

Signed by:
Robert D Petty
DIN: 00385586

44

Annual Report 2015-16

Stephen Marzo
DIN:01443338

ANNEXURE E
Disclosure under the Altico Capital India Private Limited Stock Based Incentive Plan 2015 pursuant to the
provisions of Rule 12(9) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014 as on Financial year ended
March 31, 2016
Disclosure as per the Altico Capital India Private
Limited Stock Based Incentive Plan 2015
Number of options granted
11,028,033
Number of options vested
NIL
Number of options exercised
NIL
Total number of shares arising as a result of exercise of options NIL
Number of options lapsed / cancelled
NIL
Exercise Price
INR 39.5 - INR 47.5
9DULDWLRQRIWHUPVRIRSWLRQV
NIL
Money realised by the exercise of options
NIL
Total number of options in force
11,028,033
Particulars

Details of options granted to Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”) under the Altico Capital India Private Limited
Stock Based Incentive Plan 2015
Sr. No.
-

Name of the KMP
-

Designation
-

Options Granted
-

Details of employees who received a grant of options in any one year of options amounting to five per cent or
more of options granted during that year
Sr. No.
-

Name of the Employee
-

Designation
-

Options Granted
-

Identified employees who were granted options during any one year equal to or exceeding one percent of the
issued capital (excluding outstanding warrants and conversions) of the Company at the time of grant
Sr. No.
-

Name of the Employee
-

Designation
-

Options Granted
-

Signed by:
Robert D Petty
DIN: 00385586

Stephen Marzo
DIN:01443338
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Altico Capital India Private Limited
(Formerly known as Clearwater Capital Partners India
Private Limited)
Report on the Financial Statements
:H KDYH DXGLWHG WKH DFFRPSDQ\LQJ ´QDQFLDO
statements of Altico Capital India Private Limited (“the
Company”), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at
0DUFK   WKH 6WDWHPHQW RI 3UR´W DQG /RVV DQG
Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a
VXPPDU\ RI VLJQL´FDQW DFFRXQWLQJ SROLFLHV DQG RWKHU
explanatory information.
Management’s
Statements

Responsibility

for

the

Financial

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for
the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of
WKHVH´QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVWKDWJLYHDWUXHDQGIDLUYLHZ
RIWKH´QDQFLDOSRVLWLRQ´QDQFLDOSHUIRUPDQFHDQGFDVK
µRZV RI WKH &RPSDQ\ LQ DFFRUGDQFH ZLWK DFFRXQWLQJ
principles generally accepted in India, including the
$FFRXQWLQJ6WDQGDUGVVSHFL´HGXQGHUVHFWLRQRIWKH
Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of
the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities; selection and application of
appropriate accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
LQWHUQDO´QDQFLDOFRQWUROWKDWZHUHRSHUDWLQJHIIHFWLYHO\
for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
SUHVHQWDWLRQRIWKH´QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVWKDWJLYHDWUXH
and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures
LQ WKH ´QDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV 7KH SURFHGXUHV VHOHFWHG
depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
´QDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV ZKHWKHU GXH WR IUDXG RU HUURU ,Q
making those risk assessments, the auditor considers
LQWHUQDO ´QDQFLDO FRQWURO UHOHYDQW WR WKH &RPSDQ\V
SUHSDUDWLRQRIWKH´QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVWKDWJLYHDWUXH
and fair view in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of the accounting
estimates made by the Company’s Directors, as well
DV HYDOXDWLQJ WKH RYHUDOO SUHVHQWDWLRQ RI WKH ´QDQFLDO
statements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
REWDLQHGLVVXI´FLHQWDQGDSSURSULDWHWRSURYLGHDEDVLV
IRURXUDXGLWRSLQLRQRQWKH´QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
Opinion
In our opinion and to the best of our information and
DFFRUGLQJWRWKHH[SODQDWLRQVJLYHQWRXVWKH´QDQFLDO
statements give the information required by the Act in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view
in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India of the state of affairs of the Company
DVDW0DUFKLWVSUR´WDQGLWVFDVKµRZVIRUWKH
year ended on that date.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s report)
Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of
section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure 1 a
VWDWHPHQWRQWKHPDWWHUVVSHFL´HGLQSDUDJUDSKV
and 4 of the Order.

2.

As required by section 143 (3) of the Act, we report
that:

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these
´QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVEDVHGRQRXUDXGLW:HKDYHWDNHQ
into account the provisions of the Act, the accounting
and auditing standards and matters which are required
to be included in the audit report under the provisions of
the Act and the Rules made thereunder. We conducted
our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing,
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of
,QGLD DV VSHFL´HG XQGHU 6HFWLRQ    RI WKH $FW
Those Standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
UHDVRQDEOH DVVXUDQFH DERXW ZKHWKHU WKH ´QDQFLDO
statements are free from material misstatement.
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(a) We have sought and obtained all the
information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary
for the purpose of our audit;
(b) In our opinion proper books of account
as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our
examination of those books;
F  7KH %DODQFH 6KHHW 6WDWHPHQW RI 3UR´W DQG
Loss, and Cash Flow Statement dealt with by
this Report are in agreement with the books of
account;

G  ,Q RXU RSLQLRQ WKH DIRUHVDLG ´QDQFLDO
statements comply with the Accounting
6WDQGDUGV VSHFL´HG XQGHU VHFWLRQ  RI
the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014;
(e) On the basis of written representations
received from the directors as on March 31,
2016, and taken on record by the Board of
'LUHFWRUVQRQHRIWKHGLUHFWRUVLVGLVTXDOL´HG
as on March 31, 2016, from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164 (2) of the
Act;
(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal
´QDQFLDO FRQWUROV RYHU ´QDQFLDO UHSRUWLQJ RI
the Company and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate Report
in “Annexure 2” to this report;
(g)

With respect to the other matters to be
included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance
with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and
Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i.

The Company has disclosed the impact of
SHQGLQJOLWLJDWLRQVRQLWV´QDQFLDOSRVLWLRQ
LQLWV´QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV¨5HIHU1RWH
WRWKH´QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV

ii.

The Company did not have any long-term
contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material
foreseeable losses

iii.

There were no amounts which were
required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the
Company.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004
______________________________
per Charanjit Attra
Partner
Membership Number: 100312
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 19th May, 2016
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Annexure 1 referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on other
legal and regulatory requirements” of our report of even date
Re: Altico Capital India Private Limited (“the Company”)
(i)



(a) The Company has maintained proper records
showing full particulars, including quantitative
GHWDLOVDQGVLWXDWLRQRI´[HGDVVHWV
E  )L[HG DVVHWV KDYH EHHQ SK\VLFDOO\ YHUL´HG
by the management during the year and no
PDWHULDOGLVFUHSDQFLHVZHUHLGHQWL´HGRQVXFK
YHUL´FDWLRQ
(c) Based on our audit procedures performed
for the purpose of reporting the true and fair
YLHZRIWKH´QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDQGDFFRUGLQJ
to information and explanations given by
the management, there are no immovable
SURSHUWLHV LQFOXGHG LQ ´[HG DVVHWV RI WKH
Company and accordingly, the requirements
under paragraph 3(i)(c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(ii) The Company’s business does not involve
inventories and, accordingly, the requirements
under paragraph 3(ii) of the Order are not applicable
to the Company and hence not commented upon.
(iii) According to the information and explanations
given to us, the Company has not granted any
ORDQV VHFXUHG RU XQVHFXUHG WR FRPSDQLHV ´UPV
Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties
covered in the register maintained under section
189 of the Companies Act, 2013. Accordingly, the
provisions of clause 3(iii)(a), (b) and (c) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company and
hence not commented upon.
(iv) In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, there are no loans,
investments, guarantees, and securities granted
in respect of which provisions of section 185 and
186 of the Companies Act 2013 are applicable and
hence not commented upon.
(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from
the public.
(vi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained,
the Company is not in the business of sale of any
goods. Therefore, in our opinion, the provisions of
clause 3(vi) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.
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(vii) (a) The Company is regular in depositing with
appropriate authorities undisputed statutory
dues including provident fund, income-tax,
service tax, cess and other material statutory
dues applicable to it. The provisions relating
to, employees’ state insurance, sales tax, duty
of customs, duty of excise and value added tax
are not applicable to the Company.
(b) According to the information and explanations
given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect of provident fund, income-tax, service
tax, cess and other material statutory dues
were outstanding, at the year end, for a period
of more than six months from the date they
became payable. The provisions relating to
value added taxes, employees’ state insurance,
sales tax, duty of custom and duty of excise
are not applicable to the Company.
(c) According to records of the company, the
dues outstanding of income-tax, service tax,
and cess on account of any dispute are as
follows.
Forum
where
Dispute is
Pending

Name of Nature of
Statute Statutory
Dues

Amount
(`)

Period
for
which
the
amount
relates

Income Income
Tax Act, Tax
Demand
1961

2,620,556

AY
Income Tax
2009-10 Appellate
Tribunal

Income Income
Tax Act, Tax
Demand
1961

3,332,791

AY
2010-11

CIT
(Appeals)

Income Income
Tax Act, Tax
Demand
1961

23,723,612

AY
2011-12

CIT
(Appeals)

Income Income
Tax Act, Tax
Demand
1961

13,596,395

AY
2012-13

In the
process of
´OLQJDSSHDO
with CIT
(Appeals)

(viii) In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given by the management, the
Company has not defaulted in repayment of dues
WRD´QDQFLDOLQVWLWXWLRQEDQNRUGHEHQWXUHKROGHUV
or government.

(ix) According to the information and explanations
given by the management, the Company has not
raised any money way of initial public offer / further
public offer / debt instruments) and term loans
hence, reporting under clause (ix) is not applicable
to the Company and hence not commented upon.
(x) Based upon the audit procedures performed
for the purpose of reporting the true and fair
YLHZ RI WKH ´QDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV DQG DFFRUGLQJ
to the information and explanations given by
the management, we report that no fraud by the
Company or no fraud on the Company by the
RI´FHUVDQGHPSOR\HHVRIWKH&RPSDQ\KDVEHHQ
noticed or reported during the year.
(xi) According to the information and explanations
given by the management, the provisions of
VHFWLRQUHDGZLWK6FKHGXOH9RIWKH$FWLVQRW
applicable to the Company and hence reporting
under clause 3(xi) are not applicable and hence not
commented upon.
(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi company.
Therefore, the provisions of clause 3(xii) of the
order are not applicable to the Company and hence
not commented upon.
(xiii) According to the information and explanations
given by the management, transactions with the
related parties are in compliance with section 188
of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the
details have been disclosed in the notes to the
´QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVDVUHTXLUHGE\WKHDSSOLFDEOH
accounting standards. The provisions of sec 177 are
not applicable to the Company and accordingly

reporting under clause 3(xiii) insofar as it relates
to section 177 of the Act is not applicable to the
Company and hence not commented upon.
(xiv) According to the information and explanations
given to us and on an overall examination of the
balance sheet, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of
shares or fully or partly convertible debentures
during the year under review and hence, reporting
requirements under clause 3(xiv) are not applicable
to the Company and, not commented upon.
(xv) According to the information and explanations
given by the management, the Company has
not entered into any non-cash transactions with
directors or persons connected with him as referred
to in section 192 of Companies Act, 2013.
(xvi) According to the information and explanations
given to us, we report that the Company has
registered as required, under section 45-IA of the
Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004
______________________________
per Charanjit Attra
Partner
Membership Number: 100312
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 19th May, 2016
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ANNEXURE 2 TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT OF EVEN DATE ON THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS OF ALTICO CAPITAL INDIA PRIVATE LIMTED (FORMERLY
KNOWN AS CLEARWATER CAPITAL PARTNERS INDIA PRIVATE LIMITED)
Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause
(i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies
Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
To the Members of Altico Capital India Private Limited
(Formerly known as Clearwater Capital Partners India
Private Limited)
:H KDYH DXGLWHG WKH LQWHUQDO ´QDQFLDO FRQWUROV RYHU
´QDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJRI$OWLFR&DSLWDO,QGLD3ULYDWH/LPLWHG
(“the Company”) as of March 31, 2016 in conjunction with
RXU DXGLW RI WKH ´QDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV RI WKH &RPSDQ\
for the year ended on that date.
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial
Controls
The Company’s Management is responsible for
HVWDEOLVKLQJDQGPDLQWDLQLQJLQWHUQDO´QDQFLDOFRQWUROV
EDVHG RQ WKH LQWHUQDO FRQWURO RYHU ´QDQFLDO UHSRUWLQJ
criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of
DGHTXDWHLQWHUQDO´QDQFLDOFRQWUROVWKDWZHUHRSHUDWLQJ
HIIHFWLYHO\IRUHQVXULQJWKHRUGHUO\DQGHI´FLHQWFRQGXFW
of its business, including adherence to the Company’s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention
and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
SUHSDUDWLRQRIUHOLDEOH´QDQFLDOLQIRUPDWLRQDVUHTXLUHG
under the Companies Act, 2013.
Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
&RPSDQ\V LQWHUQDO ´QDQFLDO FRQWUROV RYHU ´QDQFLDO
reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting
(the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing
DV VSHFL´HG XQGHU VHFWLRQ    RI WKH &RPSDQLHV
Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal
´QDQFLDOFRQWUROVERWKDSSOLFDEOHWRDQDXGLWRI,QWHUQDO
Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards
and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
LQWHUQDO ´QDQFLDO FRQWUROV RYHU ´QDQFLDO UHSRUWLQJ
was established and maintained and if such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain
audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
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´QDQFLDO FRQWUROV V\VWHP RYHU ´QDQFLDO UHSRUWLQJ DQG
their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal
´QDQFLDO FRQWUROV RYHU ´QDQFLDO UHSRUWLQJ LQFOXGHG
REWDLQLQJDQXQGHUVWDQGLQJRILQWHUQDO´QDQFLDOFRQWUROV
RYHU´QDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJDVVHVVLQJWKHULVNWKDWDPDWHULDO
weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend
on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
RI WKH ULVNV RI PDWHULDO PLVVWDWHPHQW RI WKH ´QDQFLDO
statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
LVVXI´FLHQWDQGDSSURSULDWHWRSURYLGHDEDVLVIRURXU
DXGLW RSLQLRQ RQ WKH LQWHUQDO ´QDQFLDO FRQWUROV V\VWHP
RYHU´QDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJ
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting
$ FRPSDQ\V LQWHUQDO ´QDQFLDO FRQWURO RYHU ´QDQFLDO
reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
DVVXUDQFHUHJDUGLQJWKHUHOLDELOLW\RI´QDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJ
DQGWKHSUHSDUDWLRQRI´QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWVIRUH[WHUQDO
purposes in accordance with generally accepted
DFFRXQWLQJ SULQFLSOHV $ FRPSDQ\V LQWHUQDO ´QDQFLDO
FRQWURORYHU´QDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJLQFOXGHVWKRVHSROLFLHV
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly
UHµHFW WKH WUDQVDFWLRQV DQG GLVSRVLWLRQV RI WKH DVVHWV
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
SUHSDUDWLRQ RI ´QDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV LQ DFFRUGDQFH
with generally accepted accounting principles, and
that receipts and expenditures of the Company are
being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or
timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a
PDWHULDOHIIHFWRQWKH´QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls
Over Financial Reporting
%HFDXVHRIWKHLQKHUHQWOLPLWDWLRQVRILQWHUQDO´QDQFLDO
FRQWUROVRYHU´QDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJLQFOXGLQJWKHSRVVLELOLW\
of collusion or improper management override of
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud
may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of
DQ\ HYDOXDWLRQ RI WKH LQWHUQDO ´QDQFLDO FRQWUROV RYHU
´QDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJWRIXWXUHSHULRGVDUHVXEMHFWWRWKH
ULVN WKDW WKH LQWHUQDO ´QDQFLDO FRQWURO RYHU ´QDQFLDO
reporting may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects,
DQ DGHTXDWH LQWHUQDO ´QDQFLDO FRQWUROV V\VWHP RYHU
´QDQFLDO UHSRUWLQJ DQG VXFK LQWHUQDO ´QDQFLDO FRQWUROV
RYHU ´QDQFLDO UHSRUWLQJ ZHUH RSHUDWLQJ HIIHFWLYHO\ DV
at March 31, 2016, based on the internal control over
´QDQFLDOUHSRUWLQJFULWHULDHVWDEOLVKHGE\WKH&RPSDQ\
considering the essential components of internal
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.
Explanatory paragraph
We also have audited, in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered
$FFRXQWDQWVRI,QGLDDVVSHFL´HGXQGHU6HFWLRQ  
RI WKH $FW WKH ´QDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV RI $OWLFR &DSLWDO
India Private Limited, which comprise the Balance

Sheet as at March 31, 2016, and the related Statement
RI3UR´WDQG/RVVDQG&DVK)ORZ6WDWHPHQWIRUWKH\HDU
WKHQ HQGHG DQG D VXPPDU\ RI VLJQL´FDQW DFFRXQWLQJ
policies and other explanatory information, and our
UHSRUW GDWHG WK 0D\  H[SUHVVHG DQ XQTXDOL´HG
opinion thereon.

For S.R. BATLIBOI & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered Accountants
ICAI Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004
______________________________
per Charanjit Attra
Partner
Membership Number: 100312
Place of Signature: Mumbai
Date: 19th May, 2016
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Balance Sheet
as at March 31, 2016
Notes

March 31, 2016

(Amounts in INR)
March 31, 2015

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS
Share Capital
Reserves and Surplus

3
4

4,794,796,790
15,425,067,992
20,219,864,782

3,120,247,490
8,423,897,460
11,544,144,950

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other long term liabilities
Long-term Provisions

5
6

5,955,935
51,646,682
57,602,617

16,567,776
17,821,082
34,388,858

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Other Current Liabilities
Short-term Provisions

7
6

TOTAL
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Fixed Assets - Tangible assets
Fixed Assets - Intangible assets
Non Current Investments
Deferred Tax Assets (Net)
Long Term Loans and Advances

40,486,358
95,001,644
135,488,002
20,412,955,401

30,912,178
62,281,762
93,193,940
11,671,727,748

8.1
8.2
9.1
10
11

7,311,938
7,117,121
9,025,000,000
16,167,334
5,542,108,757
14,597,705,150

8,909,359
6,274,762
3,750,000,000
17,308,193
2,011,298,331
5,793,790,645

CURRENT ASSETS
Current Investments
Cash and Bank Balances
Short Term Loans and Advances
Other Current Assets

9.2
12
11
13

675,000,000
3,886,383,906
876,440,469
377,425,876
5,815,250,251
20,412,955,401

5,766,294,033
4,445,472
107,197,598
5,877,937,103
11,671,727,748

TOTAL
6XPPDU\RI6LJQL´FDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHV



7KHDFFRPSDQ\LQJQRWHVDUHDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIWKH´QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
As per our report of even date.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

For S. R Batliboi & Associates LLP
Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004
Chartered Accountants

Altico Capital India Private Limited
(Formerly ‘Clearwater Capital Partners India Private Limited’)

per Charanjit Attra
Partner
Membership No.: 100312
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 19, 2016

Robert D. Petty
Director

Stephen J. Marzo
Director

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 19, 2016

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 19, 2016

Dhruv Jain
&KLHI)LQDQFLDO2I´FHU

Binoy K Parikh
Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 19, 2016

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 19, 2016
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6WDWHPHQWRI3UR´WDQG/RVV$FFRXQW
for the year ended March 31, 2016

(Amounts in INR)
Notes

Year Ended
March 31, 2016

Year Ended
March 31, 2015

INCOME
Revenue from Operations

14

2,618,176,077

941,791,206

Other Income

15

-

100

2,618,176,077

941,791,306

198,932,288

142,906,700

EXPENDITURE


(PSOR\HH%HQH´W([SHQVHV

16

Depreciation / Amortisation

8.1 / 8.2

4,419,230

4,525,440

Finance Costs

17

13,597,484

852,785

Administration and Other Operating Expenses

18

152,551,097

76,637,770

Provisions and Write-Offs

19

33,635,503

(223,193,485)

403,135,602

1,729,210

2,215,040,475

940,062,096

759,768,885

47,361,733

5,847,260

-

Profit Before Taxation
TAXATION:
Current Tax
Tax liability of earlier years
Deferred Tax Charge / (Credit)

1,140,858

274,551,139

766,757,003

321,912,872

1,448,283,472

618,149,224

Basic

3.84

3.89

Diluted

3.79

3.89

Total Tax Expense
Profit After Taxation
Earnings Per Share

20

[Nominal value of `10 each (P.Y ` 10 each)]
6XPPDU\RI6LJQL´FDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHV

2.1

7KHDFFRPSDQ\LQJQRWHVDUHDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIWKH´QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
As per our report of even date.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

For S. R Batliboi & Associates LLP
Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004
Chartered Accountants

Altico Capital India Private Limited
(Formerly ‘Clearwater Capital Partners India Private Limited’)

per Charanjit Attra
Partner
Membership No.: 100312
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 19, 2016

Robert D. Petty
Director

Stephen J. Marzo
Director

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 19, 2016

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 19, 2016

Dhruv Jain
&KLHI)LQDQFLDO2I´FHU

Binoy K Parikh
Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 19, 2016

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 19, 2016
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Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended March 31, 2016
(Amounts in INR)

A.

Year Ended
March 31, 2016

Year Ended
March 31, 2015

2,215,040,475

940,062,095

4,419,230

4,525,440

-

602,237,342

Cash flow from Operating Activities:
1HW3UR´W%HIRUH7D[DWLRQ
Adjustments for:
Depreciation
Write Off's
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets

26,042

603,310

Provision for gratuity

8,614,168

1,534,755

Provision for leave encashment

1,363,586

728,164

-

(833,455,827)

33,635,503

8,025,000

Provision for Non Performing Assets
Contingent provision for Standard Assets
Foreign Exchange Loss
Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes

63,352

191,777

2,263,162,356

724,452,056

Movements in Working Capital :
-

(Increase)/ decrease in Loans

-

(Increase)/ decrease in Investments

-

(Increase)/ decrease in Interest accrued on investments

(256,251,748)

-

-

(Increase)/ decrease in Interest accrued on loans

(67,236,531)

(32,206,126)

-

(Increase)/ decrease in Other advances and Current Assets

(30,944,331)

(44,921,020)

-

(Increase)/ decrease in Trade Receivables

-

17,112,996

-

Increase/ (decrease) in Current Liabilities and Provisions

21,894,564

58,416,414

-

Decrease/(increase) in bank deposits (having original Maturity of
more than three Months)

76,344,845

(1,141,326,049)

(8,263,198,728)

(3,362,297,519)

(764,112,704)

(54,945,287)

(9,027,311,432)

(3,417,242,806)

2,400

213,564

Cash generated from Operations
-

Income Taxes (Paid) / Received

Net Cash from / (used in) Operating Activities (A)
B.

(1,133,825,790)
(1,810,000,000)

Cash flow from Investing Activities:
Sale of Fixed Assets
Purchase of Fixed Assets
Net Cash from / (used in) Investing Activities (B)

54

(4,320,167,883)
(5,950,000,000)
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(3,692,611)

(14,621,282)

(3,690,211)

(14,407,718)

Cash Flow Statement
for the year ended March 31, 2016
(Amounts in INR)

C.

Year Ended
March 31, 2016

Year Ended
March 31, 2015

Proceeds from issuance of Share Capital (including Security Premium)

7,372,676,360

7,596,826,861

Redemption of Preference Shares (Refer Note 3)

(145,240,000)

-

Net Cash from / (used in) Financing Activities (C)

7,227,436,360

7,596,826,861

Cash flow from Financing Activities

Net Increase / (Decrease) in Cash & Cash Equivalents (A)+(B)+(C)

(1,803,565,283)

4,165,176,337

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the beginning of the year

4,176,526,827

11,350,490

Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the end of the year

2,372,961,544

4,176,526,827

Components of Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash on Hand

105,715

82,599

With Banks - on Current Account

2,372,855,829

176,444,228

- on Deposit Account

-

4,000,000,000

2,372,961,544

4,176,526,827

6XPPDU\RI6LJQL´FDQWDFFRXQWLQJSROLFLHV 5HIHU1RWH
 

7KHDERYHFDVKµRZVWDWHPHQWVKDYHEHHQSUHSDUHGXQGHUWKHLQGLUHFWPHWKRGVHWRXWLQ$FFRXQWLQJ6WDQGDUG
$6 ¬&DVK)ORZ6WDWHPHQWQRWL´HGSXUVXDQWWRWKH&RPSDQLHV $FFRXQWLQJ6WDQGDUGV 5XOHV DV
amended).

  $OO´JXUHVLQEUDFNHWVDUHRXWµRZ 





7KHDFFRPSDQ\LQJQRWHVDUHDQLQWHJUDOSDUWRIWKH´QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
As per our report of even date.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

For S. R Batliboi & Associates LLP
Firm Registration Number: 101049W/E300004
Chartered Accountants

Altico Capital India Private Limited
(Formerly ‘Clearwater Capital Partners India Private Limited’)

per Charanjit Attra
Partner
Membership No.: 100312
Place: Mumbai
Date: May 19, 2016

Robert D. Petty
Director

Stephen J. Marzo
Director

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 19, 2016

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 19, 2016

Dhruv Jain
&KLHI)LQDQFLDO2I´FHU

Binoy K Parikh
Company Secretary

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 19, 2016

Place: Mumbai
Date: May 19, 2016
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1

Background
Altico Capital India Private Limited [formerly
‘Clearwater Capital Partners India Private Limited’]
(‘Altico’ or ‘the Company’) was incorporated
RQ -DQXDU\   $OWLFR LV D ZKROO\ RZQHG
subsidiary of India Credit Pte Ltd. Altico obtained
its license from Reserve Bank of India to operate
as a Non Banking Financial Company (‘NBFC’) on
-DQXDU\
The Company is engaged in the business providing
PHGLXP WR ORQJ WHUP ´QDQFH WR FRUSRUDWH
borrowers.

2

Basis of preparation of financial statements



7KH ´QDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV RI WKH &RPSDQ\ KDYH
been prepared in accordance with the generally
accepted accounting principles in India (Indian
*$$3 7KH&RPSDQ\KDVSUHSDUHGWKHVH´QDQFLDO
statements to comply in all material respects with
WKH DFFRXQWLQJ VWDQGDUGV QRWL´HG XQGHU VHFWLRQ
133 of the Companies Act 2013, read together with
paragraph 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules
2014 and the relevant provisions of Reserve Bank of
India (‘RBI’) as applicable to Non Banking Financial
&RPSDQLHV ¬1%)&  7KH ´QDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV
have been prepared on an accrual basis under the
historical cost convention except interest on non
performing assets which is recognized on cash
basis as required by the Non-Banking Financial
(Non - Deposit Accepting or Holding) Companies
Prudential Norms (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2007,
as amended from time to time (‘NBFC Prudential
Guidelines’). The accounting policies adopted in the
SUHSDUDWLRQ RI ´QDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV DUH FRQVLVWHQW
with those of previous year.

2.1 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
(a) Use of Estimates


7KH SUHSDUDWLRQ RI ´QDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV LQ
conformity with Indian GAAP requires the
management to make judgments, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities and the disclosure of contingent
liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.
Although these estimates are based on the
management’s best knowledge of current
events and actions, uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in the
outcomes requiring a material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in
future periods.

(b) Tangible Fixed Assets
Fixed assets are stated at cost, net of
accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. The cost comprises
purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization
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criteria are met and directly attributable cost
of bringing the asset to its working condition
for the intended use. Any trade discounts
and rebates are deducted in arriving at the
purchase price.
Subsequent expenditure related to an item of
´[HGDVVHWLVDGGHGWRLWVERRNYDOXHRQO\LILW
LQFUHDVHVWKHIXWXUHEHQH´WVIURPWKHH[LVWLQJ
asset beyond its previously assessed standard
of performance. All other expenses on existing
´[HG DVVHWV LQFOXGLQJ GD\WRGD\ UHSDLU
and maintenance expenditure and cost of
replacing parts, are charged to the statement
RISUR´WDQGORVVIRUWKHSHULRGGXULQJZKLFK
such expenses are incurred.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of
´[HG DVVHWV DUH PHDVXUHG DV WKH GLIIHUHQFH
between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are
UHFRJQL]HGLQWKHVWDWHPHQWRISUR´WDQGORVV
when the asset is derecognized.
(c) Depreciation on tangible fixed assets
The Company has estimated the following
XVHIXOOLYHWRGHSUHFLDWLRQLWV´[HGDVVHWV
Particulars
2I´FH(TXLSPHQW
Computer Equipment
Desktop/laptop
Server Network
9HKLFOHV
Furniture & Fixtures

Useful life (in years)
5
3
6
8
10

Leasehold Improvements are amortized over
the primary life of the lease.
On the basis of a technical assessment the
Company depreciates its Fixed Assets having
original cost less than `50,000 individually
fully in the year of purchase
(d) Intangible Assets
Intangible assets acquired separately are
measured on initial recognition at cost.
Following
initial
recognition,
intangible
assets are carried at cost less accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment
losses, if any.
Intangible assets are amortized on a straight
line basis over the estimated useful economic
life. Intangible assets are assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication
that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortization period and the amortization
PHWKRGDUHUHYLHZHGDWOHDVWDWHDFK´QDQFLDO
year end.

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2016
Gains or losses arising from derecognition
of an intangible asset are measured as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are
UHFRJQL]HGLQWKHVWDWHPHQWRISUR´WDQGORVV
when the asset is derecognized.

(h) Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it
LV SUREDEOH WKDW WKH HFRQRPLF EHQH´WV ZLOO
µRZWRWKH&RPSDQ\DQGWKHUHYHQXHFDQEH
reliably measured.
(i)

Intangible assets are amortised using straight
line method, as per management’s estimate
over a period of 6 years.
(e) Impairment of tangible and intangible assets
The carrying amounts of assets are reviewed
at each balance sheet date if there is any
indication of impairment based on internal/
external factors. An impairment loss is
recognized wherever the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.
The recoverable amount is the greater of the
asset’s net selling price and value in use. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future
FDVK µRZV DUH GLVFRXQWHG WR WKHLU SUHVHQW
YDOXHXVLQJDSUHWD[GLVFRXQWUDWHWKDWUHµHFWV
current market assessments of the time value
RIPRQH\DQGULVNVVSHFL´FWRDVVHW
After impairment, depreciation is provided on
the revised carrying amount of the asset over
its remaining useful life.
(f) Leases
Leases, where the lessor effectively retains
VXEVWDQWLDOO\ DOO WKH ULVNV DQG EHQH´WV RI
RZQHUVKLSRIWKHOHDVHGLWHPDUHFODVVL´HGDV
operating leases. Operating lease payments
are recognized as an expense in the statement
RISUR´WDQGORVVRQDVWUDLJKWOLQHEDVLVRYHU
the lease term.
(g) Investments in the nature of credit substitutes
Investments in the nature of credit substitutes,
which are readily realizable and intended to be
held for not more than one year from the date on
ZKLFKVXFKLQYHVWPHQWVDUHPDGHDUHFODVVL´HG
as current investments. All other investments
DUH FODVVL´HG DV QRQFXUUHQW LQYHVWPHQWV
On initial recognition, all investments are
measured at cost. The cost comprises purchase
price and directly attributable acquisition
charges such as brokerage, fees and duties.
&XUUHQWLQYHVWPHQWVDUHFDUULHGLQWKH´QDQFLDO
statements at lower of cost and fair value
determined on an individual investment basis.
Long-term investments are carried at cost less
diminution other than temporary.
On disposal of an investment, the difference
between its carrying amount and net disposal
proceeds is charged or credited to the
VWDWHPHQWRISUR´WDQGORVV

Interest Income on loans / Investments /
Fixed Deposits are recognised on a time
proportion basis taking into account
the amount outstanding and the rate
applicable. As required by the NBFC
Prudential Guidelines, interest on nonperforming assets and penal interest are
on all loans are recognized only on cash
basis.

(ii) Redemption premium on debt securities
is accrued over the tenure of securities on
the basis of outstanding principal balance.
(iii) Processing fees on loan disbursed is
amortised over the tenure of loan.
(iv) Financial Advisory Fee is recognized in
accordance with the Advisory Fee Agreement.
(i)

Borrowing costs
Borrowing cost includes interest cost and
amortization of ancillary costs incurred in
connection with the arrangement of borrowings.

(j) Foreign currency translation
(i)

Foreign currency transactions are recorded
in Indian Rupees, the reporting currency, by
applying to the foreign currency amount,
the exchange rate between the reporting
currency and the foreign currency at the
date of the transaction.

(ii) Foreign currency monetary items are
retranslated using the exchange rate
prevailing at the reporting date. Nonmonetary items, which are measured in
terms of historical cost denominated in
a foreign currency, are reported using
the exchange rate at the date of the
transaction.
(iii) Exchange differences arising on the
settlement of monetary items or on
reporting the Company’s monetary items
at rates different from those at which they
were initially recorded during the year, or
UHSRUWHGLQSUHYLRXV´QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
are recognized as income or as expenses
in the year in which they arise.
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tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws
prevailing in the respective tax jurisdictions
where the Company operates. The tax rates
and tax laws used to compute the amount
are those that are enacted or substantively
enacted, at the reporting date.

(k) Retirement and other Employee Benefits




5HWLUHPHQW EHQH´W LQ WKH IRUP RI SURYLGHQW
IXQG LV D GH´QHG FRQWULEXWLRQ VFKHPH 7KH
Company has no obligation, other than
the contribution payable to the provident
fund. The Company recognizes contribution
payable to the provident fund scheme as an
expenditure, when an employee renders the
related service. If the contribution payable to
the scheme for service received before the
balance sheet date exceeds the contribution
DOUHDG\SDLGWKHGH´FLWSD\DEOHWRWKHVFKHPH
is recognized as a liability after deducting the
contribution already paid. If the contribution
already paid exceeds the contribution due for
services received before the balance sheet
date, then excess is recognized as an asset to
the extent that the pre-payment will lead to,
for example, a reduction in future payment or
a cash refund.
7KH &RPSDQ\ RSHUDWHV GH´QHG EHQH´W SODQV
for its employees pertaining to gratuity liability.
7KH FRVWV RI SURYLGLQJ EHQH´WV XQGHU WKLV
plan are determined on the basis of actuarial
valuation at each year-end. Separate actuarial
valuation is carried out using the projected
unit credit method. Actuarial gains and losses
IRU WKLV GH´QHG EHQH´W SODQV DUH UHFRJQL]HG
in full in the period in which they occur in the
VWDWHPHQWRISUR´WDQGORVV
Accumulated leave, which is expected to be
utilized within the next 12 months, is treated
DVVKRUWWHUPHPSOR\HHEHQH´W7KH&RPSDQ\
measures the expected cost of such absences
as the additional amount that it expects to pay
as a result of the unused entitlement that has
accumulated at the reporting date.
The Company treats accumulated leave
expected to be carried forward beyond twelve
PRQWKV DV ORQJWHUP HPSOR\HH EHQH´W IRU
measurement purposes. Such long-term
compensated absences are provided for
based on the actuarial valuation using the
projected unit credit method at the year-end.
Actuarial gains/losses are immediately taken
WRWKHVWDWHPHQWRISUR´WDQGORVVDQGDUHQRW
deferred. The Company presents the leave as
a current liability in the balance sheet, to the
extent it does not have an unconditional right
to defer its settlement for 12 months after the
reporting date.

(l)

Income taxes
Tax expense comprises current and deferred
tax. Current income-tax is measured at
the amount expected to be paid to the tax
authorities in accordance with the Income-
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'HIHUUHG LQFRPH WD[HV UHµHFW WKH LPSDFW RI
timing differences between taxable income
and accounting income originating during the
current year and reversal of timing differences
for the earlier years. Deferred tax is measured
using the tax rates and the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for
all taxable timing differences. Deferred tax
assets are recognized for deductible timing
differences only to the extent that there is
UHDVRQDEOH FHUWDLQW\ WKDW VXI´FLHQW IXWXUH
taxable income will be available against
which such deferred tax assets can be
realized. In situations where the Company has
unabsorbed depreciation or carry forward tax
losses, all deferred tax assets are recognized
only if there is virtual certainty supported by
convincing evidence that they can be realized
DJDLQVWIXWXUHWD[DEOHSUR´WV
At each reporting date, the Company reassesses unrecognized deferred tax assets. It
recognizes unrecognized deferred tax asset
to the extent that it has become reasonably
certain or virtually certain, as the case may
EH WKDW VXI´FLHQW IXWXUH WD[DEOH LQFRPH ZLOO
be available against which such deferred tax
assets can be realized.
The carrying amount of deferred tax assets
are reviewed at each reporting date. The
Company writes-down the carrying amount of
deferred tax asset to the extent that it is no
longer reasonably certain or virtually certain,
DV WKH FDVH PD\ EH WKDW VXI´FLHQW IXWXUH
taxable income will be available against which
deferred tax asset can be realized. Any such
write-down is reversed to the extent that
it becomes reasonably certain or virtually
FHUWDLQ DV WKH FDVH PD\ EH WKDW VXI´FLHQW
future taxable income will be available
Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities
are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists
to set-off current tax assets against current
tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable
entity and the same taxation authority.
Minimum alternate tax (MAT) paid in a year
LVFKDUJHGWRWKHVWDWHPHQWRISUR´WDQGORVV
as current tax. The Company recognizes MAT

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2016
credit available as an asset only to the extent
that there is convincing evidence that the
Company will pay normal income tax during
WKHVSHFL´HGSHULRGLHWKHSHULRGIRUZKLFK
MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward.
In the year in which the Company recognizes
MAT credit as an asset in accordance with
the Guidance Note on Accounting for Credit
Available in respect of Minimum Alternative
Tax under the Income-tax Act, 1961, the
said asset is created by way of credit to the
VWDWHPHQW RI SUR´W DQG ORVV DQG VKRZQ DV
“MAT Credit Entitlement.” The Company
reviews the “MAT credit entitlement” asset at
each reporting date and writes down the asset
to the extent the Company does not have
convincing evidence that it will pay normal tax
GXULQJWKHVSHFL´HGSHULRG
(m) Provision for Loans and Investments
Provision of standard assets is made at 0.3%
of outstanding loan / investment value,
pursuant to NBFC Prudential Guidelines.
Further, provision for non performing loans
/ investments is made as per management
estimates, subject to, the minimum provision
required as per NBFC Prudential Guidelines,
on the basis of the period of delinquency.
(n) Earnings Per Share
Basic earnings per share are calculated by
GLYLGLQJ WKH QHW SUR´W RU ORVV IRU WKH SHULRG
attributable to equity shareholders by the
weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the period. The weighted
average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period is adjusted for events such
as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights
issue, share split, and reverse share split
(consolidation of shares) that have changed
the number of equity shares outstanding,
without a corresponding change in resources.
For the purpose of calculating diluted
HDUQLQJV SHU VKDUH WKH QHW SUR´W RU ORVV IRU
the period attributable to equity shareholders
and the weighted average number of shares
outstanding during the period are adjusted
for the effects of all dilutive potential equity
shares.
(o) Provisions
A provision is recognized when the Company
has a present obligation as a result of past
HYHQWLWLVSUREDEOHWKDWDQRXWµRZRIUHVRXUFHV

HPERG\LQJHFRQRPLFEHQH´WVZLOOEHUHTXLUHG
to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation.
Provisions are not discounted to their present
value and are determined based on the best
estimate required to settle the obligation at the
reporting date. These estimates are reviewed
DWHDFKUHSRUWLQJGDWHDQGDGMXVWHGWRUHµHFW
the current best estimates.
Where the Company expects some or all of a
provision to be reimbursed, for example under
an insurance contract, the reimbursement is
recognized as a separate asset but only when
the reimbursement is virtually certain. The
expense relating to any provision is presented
LQWKHVWDWHPHQWRISUR´WDQGORVVQHWRIDQ\
reimbursement.
(p) Contingent liabilities
A contingent liability is a possible obligation
that arises from past events whose existence
ZLOO EH FRQ´UPHG E\ WKH RFFXUUHQFH RU QRQ
occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events beyond the control of the Company
or a present obligation that is not recognized
EHFDXVH LW LV QRW SUREDEOH WKDW DQ RXWµRZ
of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in
extremely rare cases where there is a liability
that cannot be recognized because it cannot
be measured reliably. The Company does not
recognize a contingent liability but discloses
LWVH[LVWHQFHLQWKH´QDQFLDOVWDWHPHQWV
(q) Employee stock compensation cost
Measurement and disclosure of the employee
share-based payment plans is done in
accordance with the Guidance Note on
Accounting
for
Employee
Share-based
Payments, issued by ICAI. In accordance
with the Guidance Note on Accounting for
Employee Share-based Payments, the cost of
equity settled transactions is measured using
the intrinsic value method.
(r) Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents for the purposes
RIFDVKµRZVWDWHPHQWFRPSULVHFDVKDWEDQN
and in hand and short-term investments with
an original maturity of three months or less.
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3

Share Capital
Authorised Shares
594,850,000 (P.Y. 594,850,000) Equity Shares of face value of ` 10 each
0% Cumulative Redeemable Preference Shares ('CRPS') 51,500,000
(P.Y. 51,500,000) of face value of Re. 1 each
Issued, Subscribed and Fully Paid Up Shares
479,479,679 Equity Shares (P.Y. 311,879,509) of face value of ` 10
each fully paid-up
CRPS 1,452,400 (P.Y. 1,452,400) of face value of Re. 1 each

a.

March 31, 2016

(Amounts in INR)
March 31, 2015

5,948,500,000

5,948,500,000

51,500,000

51,500,000

6,000,000,000

6,000,000,000

4,794,796,790

3,118,795,090

4,794,796,790

1,452,400
3,120,247,490

Reconciliation of the shares outstanding at the beginning and the end of the reporting period
(Amounts in INR)
Equity Shares
March 31, 2016
March 31, 2015
No. of Shares
Face Value No. of Shares
Face Value
At the beginning of the year
311,879,509 3,118,795,090
109,961,662 1,099,616,620
Issued during the year
167,600,170 1,676,001,700
201,917,847 2,019,178,470
Redeemed during the year
Outstanding at the end of the year
479,479,679 4,794,796,790
311,879,509 3,118,795,090
100% equity shares held by holding Company India Credit Pte Limited (‘ICPL’), directly or through its nominees.
(Amounts in INR)
Preference Shares
At the beginning of the year
Issued during the year
Redeemed during the year
Outstanding at the end of the year

March 31, 2016
No. of Shares
Face Value
1,452,400
1,452,400
(1,452,400)
(1,452,400)
-

March 31, 2015
No. of Shares
Face Value
1,452,400
1,452,400
1,452,400
1,452,400

100% preference shares held by holding Company India Credit Pte Limited (‘ICPL’)
As per the records of the Company, including its register of members and other declarations received from
WKHVKDUHKROGHUVUHJDUGLQJEHQH´FLDOLQWHUHVWWKHDERYHVKDUHKROGLQJUHSUHVHQWVERWKOHJDODQGEHQH´FLDO
ownership of shares.
b.

Terms / Rights attached to Equity Shares
The Company has only one class of Equity shares having a par value of ` 10 per share. Each holder of
Equity Shares is entitled to one vote per share. The Company declares and pays dividend in Indian Rupees.
The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to approval of shareholders in the ensuing
Annual General Meeting.
During the Year Ended March 31, 2016, the amount of per share dividend recognised as distributions to
Equity Shareholders was ` Nil (P.Y ` Nil)
In the event of liquidation of the Company, the Equity Shareholders will be entitled to receive remaining
assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion
to the number of Equity Shares held by the shareholders.

c.

Terms of redemption of CRPS
The Company had issued 51,079,220 CRPS of Re. 1 each at a premium of ` 99 each per CRPS by converting
its Fully Convertible Debentures in two tranches viz., 3,100,000 CRPS on March 31, 2007 and 47,979,220
CRPS on April 30, 2007. These CRPS were compulsorily redeemable at the expiry of 8 years from the date
of allotment or at any time with mutual consent.
Until previous year (i.e.March 31, 2015), the Company had redeemed 49,626,820 CRPS and the balance
&536ZHUHUHGHHPHGLQFXUUHQW´QDQFLDO\HDURQ$SULO

d.
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Shares reserved for issue under options
For details of shares reserved for issue under the employee stock option (ESOP) plan of the company,
please refer note 30.
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4

Reserves and Surplus
Securities Premium Account
Opening Balance as per last Balance Sheet
Add : Additions during the year
Less : Reduction during the year

March 31, 2016

(Amounts in INR)
March 31, 2015

7,366,040,423
5,696,674,660
(143,787,600)
12,918,927,483

1,788,392,032
5,577,648,391
7,366,040,423

49,626,820
1,452,400
51,079,220

49,626,820
49,626,820

350,371,543
289,656,699
640,028,242

226,741,698
123,629,845
350,371,543

657,858,674
1,448,283,472
(289,656,699)
(1,452,400)
1,815,033,047
15,425,067,992

163,339,296
618,149,223
(123,629,845)
657,858,674
8,423,897,460

March 31, 2016

(Amounts in INR)
March 31, 2015

3,769,001
2,186,934
5,955,935

14,467,129
2,100,647
16,567,776

Capital Redemption Reserve
Opening Balance as per last Balance Sheet
Add : Additions during the year
Special Reserve under section 45 IC of RBI Act
Opening Balance as per last Balance Sheet
Add : Additions during the year
Surplus / (Deficit) in the Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening Balance as per last Balance Sheet
3UR´W /RVV IRUWKH\HDU
Less: Transfer to Special Reserve
Transfer to Capital Redemption Reserve

5

Other long term liabilities
Income received pending amortisation
Other liabilities

(Amounts in INR)
Long - Term
Short - Term
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
6

Provisions
Provision for Employee Benefits
Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note 23)
Provision for Leave Encashment
Provision for Bonus
Provision for Employee Emoluments
Other Provisions
Provision for Standard Assets

7

Other Current Liabilities
Statutory Dues Payable
Income received pending amortisation
Other Liabilities*

6,824,033
1,490,919
8,314,952

3,045,324
650,758
3,696,082

234,941
175,118
87,202,885
2,959,927
90,572,871

147,393
77,406
60,000,000
2,056,963
62,281,762

43,331,730
43,331,730
51,646,682

14,125,000
14,125,000
17,821,082

4,428,773
4,428,773
95,001,644

62,281,762

March 31, 2016

(Amounts in INR)
March 31, 2015

14,923,071
10,734,495
14,828,792
40,486,358

3,343,892
13,920,547
13,647,739
30,912,178

* There are no amounts that need to be disclosed pertaining to Micro Small and Medium Enterprise Development
Act, 2006 (the ‘MSMED’). As at March 31, 2016, no supplier has intimated the Company about its status as Micro
or Small Enterprises or its registration with the appropriate authority under the MSMED.
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8.1 Fixed Assets - Tangible Assets

Office
Equipment

Furniture &
Leasehold
Vehicles
Fixtures Improvements

(Amounts in INR)
Computer
Total
Equipment

Cost:
As at March 31, 2014
Additions
Disposals
As at March 31, 2015
Additions
Disposals
As at March 31, 2016

2,747,889
307,206
1,021,682
2,033,413
420,050
2,453,463

1,484,280
1,484,280
1,484,280

2,594,573
371,820
405,206
2,561,187
145,125
180,000
2,526,312

7,253,103
6,142,781
7,169,628
6,226,256
6,226,256

5,604,465
926,705
6,531,170
968,885
7,500,055

19,684,310
7,748,512
8,596,516
18,836,306
1,534,060
180,000
20,190,366

Depreciation:
As at March 31, 2014
Additions
Disposals
As at March 31, 2015
Additions
Disposals
As at March 31, 2016

1,460,766
838,951
404,459
1,895,258
397,094
2,292,352

224,069
232,463
456,532
176,816
633,348

1,277,496
723,112
205,554
1,795,054
376,976
151,558
2,020,472

7,253,103
1,105,843
7,169,628
1,189,318
1,305,609
2,494,927

3,563,827
1,026,958
4,590,785
846,544
5,437,329

13,779,260
3,927,328
7,779,641
9,926,947
3,103,037
151,558
12,878,426

Net Block
As at March 31, 2015
As at March 31, 2016

138,155
161,111

1,027,748
850,932

766,133
505,840

5,036,938
3,731,329

1,940,385
2,062,726

8,909,359
7,311,938

8.2 Fixed Assets - Intangible Assets

Cost:
As at March 31, 2014
Additions
Disposals
As at March 31, 2015
Additions
Disposals
As at March 31, 2016
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(Amounts in INR)
Total
Computer
Software
639,624
6,872,774
7,512,398
2,158,554
9,670,952

Amortisation:
As at March 31, 2014
Additions
Disposals
As at March 31, 2015
Additions
Disposals
As at March 31, 2016

2,553,831

Net Block
As at March 31, 2015
As at March 31, 2016

6,274,762
7,117,121
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639,624
598,012
1,237,636
1,316,195
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9.1 Non Current Investments :
Investments in the nature of credit substitutes
Trade, Quoted (Stated at Cost less principal repayments)
23% 2,250 (P.Y.2,250) Secured Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures
of ` 10,000,000 each
19% 15,000 (P.Y.15,000) Secured Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures
of ` 100,000 each
19.5% 210 (P.Y.210) Secured Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures
of ` 10,000,000 each
19% 385 (P.Y.210) Secured Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures of `
10,000,000 each

March 31, 2016

(Amounts in INR)
March 31, 2015

1,875,000,000

2,250,000,000

1,200,000,000

1,500,000,000

2,100,000,000

-

3,850,000,000

-

9,025,000,000

3,750,000,000

There were no long term investments which are purchased and sold during the year (P.Y. ` Nil).

9.2 Current Investments : (Current portion of non current investments)
Investments in the nature of credit substitutes
Trade, Quoted (Stated at Cost less principal repayments)
23% 2,250 (P.Y. 2,250) Secured Redeemable Non Convertible
Debentures of ` 10,000,000 each
19% 15,000 (P.Y. 15,000) Secured Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures
of ` 100,000 each

March 31, 2016

(Amounts in INR)
March 31, 2015

375,000,000

-

300,000,000

-

675,000,000

-

The above current investments are merely current portion of non-current investments.Hence, for measurement
purposes, the investment continues to be treated as long-term investment.

Aggregate Value of Quoted Investments
Cost of acquisition*
Market value*

March 31, 2016

(Amounts in INR)
March 31, 2015

9,700,000,000
9,700,000,000

3,750,000,000
3,750,000,000

*Investment in each of the above debentures are privately placed and listed on BSE . However there are no
trades in the debentures of the Company. Hence the cost of Investment is considered as market value
(Amounts in INR)
10

Deferred Tax Asset (Net) :
Deferred Tax Assets (Gross)
'LIIHUHQFHVLQGHSUHFLDWLRQDQGRWKHUGLIIHUHQFHVLQEORFNRI´[HG
DVVHWVDVSHUWD[ERRNVDQG´QDQFLDOERRNV
Processing fees unamortised
Rent Equalisation Reserve
Provision for Leave Encashment
Provision on Standard Assets
Provision for Gratuity
TOTAL (A)
Deferred Tax Liabilities (Gross)
Borrowing and other ancilliary costs amortisation
TOTAL (B)
Net Deferred Tax Asset (A) -(B)

March 31, 2016

March 31, 2015

301,381

799,488

5,007,154
756,854
576,582
16,528,955
2,442,970
25,613,896

9,654,279
714,010
247,503
4,801,088
1,091,825
17,308,193

9,446,562
9,446,562
16,167,334

17,308,193
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(Amounts in INR)
Non Current
Current
March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015 March 31, 2016 March 31, 2015
11

Loans and Advances
Secured Loans
Considered Good
Considered Doubtful
Other Advances
(Unsecured Considered Good)
Prepaid Expenses
Advance Tax (net of provision for taxation)
Security Deposits
Balance with statutory authorities
Other Receivables

5,418,909,999 1,900,000,000

801,257,884

-

12,037,365

-

17,817,546

2,095,849

101,673,469

103,176,910

-

-

7,825,900

7,825,900

-

-

230,276

295,521

1,431,748
5,542,108,757

2,011,298,331

-

-

57,365,039

2,349,623

876,440,469

4,445,472

(Amounts in INR)
12

Cash and Bank Balances :
Cash and Cash Equivalents
Balances with Banks:
On Current Accounts
Deposits with original maturiy of less than 3 months
Cash on Hand
Other Bank Balances
Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12
months

March 31, 2016

March 31, 2015

2,372,855,829
105,715
2,372,961,544

176,444,227
4,000,000,000
82,599
4,176,526,826

1,513,422,362

1,589,767,207

1,513,422,362
3,886,383,906

1,589,767,207
5,766,294,033
(Amounts in INR)

13

Other Current Assets :
Interest accrued and not due on Fixed Deposits
Interest accrued on Investments
Interest accrued on Loans

March 31, 2016

March 31, 2015

21,731,470
288,457,874
67,236,531
377,425,875

74,991,472
32,206,126
107,197,598
(Amounts in INR)

14
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Revenue from Operations :
Interest On Loans
Interest On Investments
Financial Advisory Fees
Processing fees
Interest on Bank Fixed Deposits
Penal Interest Income
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March 31, 2016

March 31, 2015

561,722,143
1,460,418,851
195,686,538
13,884,180
314,877,438
71,586,927
2,618,176,077

214,031,549
487,159,011
68,600,000
10,014,341
147,150,633
14,835,672
941,791,206
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(Amounts in INR)
15

March 31, 2016

March 31, 2015

-

100

-

100

Other Income :
Miscellaneous Income

(Amounts in INR)
16

March 31, 2016

March 31, 2015

161,984,158

121,514,190

Contribution to Provident and Other Funds

3,484,213

2,661,776

Leave Encashment

1,363,586

728,164

Gratuity Expense (Refer Note 23)

8,614,168

1,534,755

23,486,163

16,467,815

198,932,288

142,906,700

Employee Benefit Expenses :
Salaries, Wages and Bonus

Staff Welfare Expenses

(Amounts in INR)
17

March 31, 2016

March 31, 2015

13,097,443

-

Finance Costs :
Ancillary borrowing costs
Bank Charges

500,041

852,785

13,597,484

852,785
(Amounts in INR)

18

March 31, 2016

March 31, 2015

Rent

15,686,287

17,241,433

Repairs and Maintenance - Others

11,583,829

4,126,539

12,916,000

10,315,655

26,042

603,310

4,536,665

4,747,009

77,849,498

18,264,730

1,705,000

900,000

1,047,644

887,644

Tax Audit Fees

325,844

325,844

Other Services

1,315,198

880,101

10,624

10,624

3,569,947

6,165,930

308,448

515,372

63,352

191,777

1,760,530

2,774,805

615,936

532,543

19,230,253

8,154,454

152,551,097

76,637,770

Administration and Other Operating Expenses :

Travelling and Conveyance
/RVV 3UR´W RQ6DOHRI)L[HG$VVHWV
Communication Expenses
Legal and Professional Fees
CSR expenditure (Refer Note A below)
Auditor's Remuneration
Audit Fees

Out of Pocket Expenses
Rates and Taxes
Electricity Charges
Foreign Exchange Difference (net)
Subscriptions
Pantry supplies
Miscellaneous Expenses
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(Amounts in INR)
A.

Details of CSR expenditure

31-Mar-16

31-Mar-15

(a) Gross amount to be spent by Company during the year

1,702,526

868,491

(b) Amount spent during the year ending on March 31, 2016
(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above
(c) Amount spent during the year ended on March 31, 2015
(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above

Yet to be
paid in cash
1,705,000
In cash

Yet to be
paid in cash
900,000
In cash

Total
1,705,000
Total
900,000

(Amounts in INR)
19

March 31, 2016

March 31, 2015

-

(833,455,827)

33,635,503

8,025,000

Provisions and Write-Offs :
Provision for Non Performing Assets (net)
Provision on Standard Assets
Bad Debts written Off

-

602,237,342

33,635,503

(223,193,485)
(Amounts in INR)

20 Earnings Per Share :
1HW3UR´WDVSHU6WDWHPHQWRI3UR´WDQG/RVV XVHGIRUFRPSXWLQJ
Basic / Diluted EPS)
Weighted average number of Equity Shares in calculating Basic EPS
Effect of dilution:
Stock options granted under ESOP
Weighted average number of Equity Shares in calculating Diluted EPS
Basic Earnings per Share
Diluted Earnings per Share

March 31, 2016

March 31, 2015

1,448,283,472

618,149,224

377,244,118

158,752,072

4,843,462
382,087,579
3.84
3.79

158,752,072
3.89
3.89



$VDW´QDQFLDO\HDUHQGHG0DUFKWKHUHH[LVWHGQRSRWHQWLDOHTXLW\VKDUHV7KHUHE\EDVLFDQGGLOXWHG
EPS were the same.

21

Leases :



2I´FHSUHPLVHVDUHREWDLQHGRQRSHUDWLQJOHDVH([LVWLQJOHDVHFRYHUVD´YH\HDUOHDVHWHUPZLWKORFNLQSHULRG
of 3 years and escalation at 10% after 3 years. The said lease is valid till February 11, 2019.There are no subleases.
7KHUHDUHQR´QDQFHOHDVHV
(Amounts in INR)
Lease Payments for the Year

March 31, 2016

March 31, 2015

15,686,287

17,241,433

Minimum Lease Payments

66

Not later than one Year

17,862,000

17,528,160



/DWHUWKDQRQH\HDUEXWQRWODWHUWKDQ´YH\HDUV

36,664,945

53,507,838



/DWHUWKDQ´YH\HDUV

-

-
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22 Segment Information :


7KH&RPSDQ\KDVDVLQJOHUHSRUWDEOHVHJPHQWLH´QDQFLQJIRUWKHSXUSRVHRI$FFRXQWLQJ6WDQGDUG¨$6
RQ¬6HJPHQW5HSRUWLQJQRWL´HGXQGHUWKH&RPSDQLHV $FFRXQWLQJ6WDQGDUGV 5XOHV DVDPHQGHG 7KH
Company does not have any reportable geographical segment.

23 Gratuity :


7KH&RPSDQ\KDVDGH´QHGEHQH´W*UDWXLW\SODQ XQIXQGHG (YHU\HPSOR\HHZKRKDVQRWFRPSOHWHG´YH
years service is entitled to gratuity on departure at 4.33% of the basic salary earned during the period of
employment. All other employees are entitled to gratuity on departure at higher of :
a)

15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service; or

b)

4.33% of the basic salary earned during the period of employment.



7KHIROORZLQJWDEOHVVXPPDULVHWKHFRPSRQHQWVRIQHWEHQH´WH[SHQVHUHFRJQLVHGLQWKHVWDWHPHQWRI
SUR´WDQGORVVDQGDPRXQWVUHFRJQLVHGLQWKHEDODQFHVKHHW
Statement of Profit and Loss: 1HWHPSOR\HHEHQH´WH[SHQVHUHFRJQLVHGLQ(PSOR\HH%HQH´W([SHQVHV
March 31, 2016
427,434
253,502
2,021,974
5,911,258
8,614,168

Current Service Cost
,QWHUHVWFRVWRQEHQH´WREOLJDWLRQ
Net actuarial(gain) / loss recognised in the year
Net past service cost
Net Benefit Expense

(Amounts in INR)
March 31, 2015
201,823
249,017
1,083,915
1,534,755

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as below:
March 31, 2016
3,192,717
427,434
253,502
5,911,248
(4,747,910)
2,021,983
7,058,974

2SHQLQJ'H´QHG%HQH´W2EOLJDWLRQ
Current Service Cost
Interest cost
3DVWVHUYLFHFRVW 9HVWHG%HQH´W,QFXUUHG'XULQJWKH3HULRG
%HQH´WVSDLG
Actuarial(gain) / loss on obligations
Closing Defined Benefit Obligation

(Amounts in INR)
March 31, 2015
2,674,729
201,823
249,017
(1,016,767)
1,083,915
3,192,717

Amounts for the Current and previous four years are as follows:
Particulars
'H´QHGEHQH´WREOLJDWLRQ
Plan assets
6XUSOXV GH´FLW
Experience adjustments on plan
liabilities-(gains)/losses
Experience adjustments on plan assets

March 31,
2016
7,058,974
(7,058,974)

(Amounts in INR)
March 31,
March 31,
March 31,
March 31,
2015
2014
2013
2012
3,192,717
2,674,729
3,425,766
2,414,124
(3,192,717) (2,674,729) (3,425,766) (2,414,124)

1,173,577

637,926

(1,033,299)

119,079

708,964

-

-

-

-

-

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity obligations for the Company’s plans are shown below:
Discount Rate
Expected rate of return on assets
Employee turnover


March 31, 2016
8.08%
N/A
2.00%

March 31, 2015
7.94%
N/A
2.00%

7KH HVWLPDWHV RI IXWXUH VDODU\ LQFUHDVHV FRQVLGHUHG LQ DFWXDULDO YDOXDWLRQ WDNH DFFRXQW RI LQµDWLRQ
seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market
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24 Related Party Disclosures :
a)

Names of Related Parties:
Holding Company
Key Management Personnel

Associates
b)

India Credit Pte Limited (ICPL)
Karthik Athreya – Director (uptil February 25, 2016)
6DQMD\*UHZDO&KLHI([HFXWLYH2I´FHU IURP1RYHPEHU
'KUXY-DLQ&KLHI)LQDQFLDO2I´FHU IURP0DUFK
'KLUHQ-KDYHUL'LUHFWRU XSWLO6HSWHPEHU
Atit Soni – Company Secretary (uptil September 15, 2015)
Binoy K Parikh – Company Secretary (from October 15, 2015)
Clearwater Investment Advisors India Private Limited (‘CIAIPL’)

Related Party Transactions:
(Amounts in INR)
Holding Company

Associate Enterprises

March 31, 2016

March 31, 2015

1,676,001,700
1,452,400

March 31, 2016

TOTAL

March 31, 2015

March 31, 2016

March 31, 2015

2,019,178,470

1,676,001,700

2,019,178,470

-

1,452,400

-

Transactions during the year
Issue of equity shares
Redemption of preference shares
Expense Recovery:Salaries, Wages and Bonus
Others

9,194,047

7,233,459

9,194,047

-

-

894,055

-

-

Balance outstanding as at year end receivable/ (payable)
Equity Capital
Preference Capital

(4,794,796,790)

(3,118,795,090)

(4,794,796,790)

(3,118,795,090)

-

(1,452,400)

-

(1,452,400)

2,239,905

2,349,589

Other receivables
CIAIPL

c)

2,239,905

2,349,589

Remuneration to Key Management Personnel:

Salaries, Allowances, Bonus and contribution to provident Fund*
Karthik Athreya – Director (uptil February 25, 2016)
6DQMD\*UHZDO&KLHI([HFXWLYH2I´FHU IURP1RYHPEHU
'KUXY-DLQ&KLHI)LQDQFLDO2I´FHU IURP0DUFK
'KLUHQ-KDYHUL'LUHFWRU XSWLO6HSWHPEHU
Atit Soni – Company Secretary (uptil September 15, 2015)
Binoy K Parikh – Company Secretary (from October 15, 2015)

March 31, 2016

(Amounts in INR)
March 31, 2015

20,768,096
36,250,854
259,006
1,451,308
1,776,566
60,505,830

29,774,381
3,593,291
3,365,473
36,733,145

* The remuneration to Key Management Personnel includes bonus on accrual basis, however, it does not
include the provision made for Gratuity and Leave Encashment as it is determined on actuarial basis for
the Company as a whole.
(Amounts in INR)
March 31, 2016
March 31, 2015
25 Expenditure in foreign currency (on accrual basis)
Travelling and Conveyance
Directors remuneration
Out of pocket expense (foreign director)
Repairs and Maintenance - Others
Miscellaneous Expenses
Other borrowings cost
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51,391
18,172,704
279,519
6,559,339
1,298,885
13,097,443
39,459,281

179,567
4,495,741
501,131
5,176,439
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26 7KH&RPSDQ\VSHQGLQJOLWLJDWLRQVFRPSULVHRISURFHHGLQJVSHQGLQJZLWK7D[DXWKRULWLHV¢7KH&RPSDQ\KDV
reviewed all its pending litigations and proceedings and has adequately provided for where provisions are
UHTXLUHG DQG GLVFORVHG WKH FRQWLQJHQW OLDELOLWLHV ZKHUH DSSOLFDEOH LQ LWV ´QDQFLDO VWDWHPHQWV 7KH &RPSDQ\
GRHVQRWH[SHFWWKHRXWFRPHRIWKHVHSURFHHGLQJVWRKDYHDPDWHULDODGYHUVHHIIHFWRQLWV´QDQFLDOUHVXOWVDW
March 31, 2016. Refer note 27 for details on contingent liabilities. In respect of litigations, where the management
DVVHVVPHQWRID´QDQFLDORXWµRZLVSUREDEOHWKH&RPSDQ\KDVPDGHDSURYLVLRQRI` 16,268,134 at March 31,
2016 (at March 31, 2015: ` 16,268,134).
(Amounts in INR)
March 31, 2016

March 31, 2015

43,273,354

29,676,959

43,273,354

29,676,959

27 Contingent Liabilities :
Tax liability on account of transfer pricing adjustment against the
Company not acknowledged as debts

The Company has received a demand for Assessment Year (‘AY’) 2009-2010, AY 2010-2011, AY 2011-12 and AY
2012-13 dated 9 April 2013, 27 February 2013, 25th March 2015 and 7th April 2016 wherein a transfer pricing
adjustment of `7,709,785, `9,805,210, ` 71,419,018 and ` 41,905,979 respectively has been made thereby having
an incremental tax liability of ` 2,620,556, ` 3,332,791, ` 23,723,612 and `13,596,395 respectively. The Company
KDV´OHGLQWKHSURFHVVRI´OLQJDQDSSHDOEHIRUHWKH,QFRPH7D[$SSHOODWH7ULEXQDO&RPPLVVLRQHURI,QFRPH
Tax (appeals) against the each of the above orders.
28 Transfer Pricing :
The Company has a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents required by transfer
pricing legislation under section 92-92F of the Income Tax Act, 1961. Management is of the opinion that all
international transactions are at arm’s length so that the above legislation will not have any impact on the
Financial Statements, particularly on the amount of tax expense and that of provision of taxes.
29 Additional disclosures pursuant to various notifications issued by Reserve Bank of India (‘RBI’):
i)

Capital to Risk Asset Ratio
Items
i)
CRAR (%)
ii) CRAR – Tier I Capital (%)
iii) CRAR – Tier II Capital (%)
iv) Amount of subordinated debt raised as Tier-II capital
v) Amount raised by issue of Perpetual Debt Instruments

ii)

March 31, 2016
123.27%
122.98%
0.29%
NIL
NIL

March 31, 2015
199.10%
198.83%
0.27%
NIL
NIL

Exposure to Real Estate Sector
Category
a) Direct Exposure
i) Residential Mortgages :
Lending fully secured by mortgages on residential
property that is or will be occupied by the borrower or
that is rented; (Individual housing loans up to `15 lakh
may be shown separately)
ii) Commercial Real Estate :
Lending secured by mortgages on commercial real
HVWDWHV RI´FHEXLOGLQJVUHWDLOVSDFHPXOWLSXUSRVH
commercial premises, multi-family residential buildings,
multi-tenanted commercial premises, industrial or
warehouse space, hotels, land acquisition, development
and construction, etc.). Exposure would also include
non-fund based (NFB) limits;

(Amounts in INR)
March 31, 2016
March 31, 2015

-

-

15,920,167,883

5,650,000,000
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(Amounts in INR)
March 31, 2016
March 31, 2015

Category
iii) Investments in Mortgage Backed Securities (MBS) and
other securitised exposures :
a) Residential
b) Commercial Real Estate
b) Indirect Exposure
Fund based and non-fund based exposures on National
Housing Bank (NHB) and Housing Finance Companies (HFCs)

-

-

-

-

(iii) Asset Liability Management – Maturity pattern of certain items of assets and liabilities
As at March 31, 2016
(Amounts in INR)
Particluars

1 Day to
Over One
Over 2
30/31 Days
Month up Months up
(One Month) to 2 Months to 3 Months

Over 3
Over 6
Over 1 Year up
Months up Months up to
to 3 years
to 6 Months
1 year

Over 3 Years
up to 5 Years

Over 5
Years

Total

-

Liabilities:
Borrowings

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Deposits

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Foreign currency liabilities

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

11,407,883 58,360,000 175,080,000

556,410,000

4,198,910,000 1,220,000,000

-

6,220,167,883

-

-

Assets:
Advances*

-

Foreign currency assets

-

-

-

Investments ^

-

-

- 100,000,000

-

-

-

-

575,000,000 6,344,444,444

2,680,555,556

- 9,700,000,000

As at March 31, 2015
(Amounts in INR)
Particluars

1 Day to
Over One
Over 2
30/31 Days
Month up Months up
(One Month) to 2 Months to 3 Months

Over 3
Over 6
Over 1 Year up
Months up Months up to
to 3 years
to 6 Months
1 year

Over 3 Years
up to 5 Years

Over 5
Years

Total

Liabilities:
Borrowings

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Deposits

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Foreign currency liabilities

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

200,000,000

Assets:
Advances *

-

-

-

-

- 1,700,000,000

Foreign currency assets

-

-

-

-

-

Investments^

-

-

-

-

- 1,825,000,000 1,925,000,000

-

- 1,900,000,000

-

-

-

- 3,750,000,000

* Consists of only Loans & Advances
^ These investments are in the nature of credit substitutes

(iv) Borrower group-wise classification of loan assets financed:(a) Category wise
Category
Secured
1.
Related Parties
(a) Subsidiaries
(b) Companies in the same
group
(c) Other related parties
2. Other than related parties
Total
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March 31, 2016
Unsecured

Net of provisions- Amounts in INR
March 31, 2015
Secured
Unsecured
Total

Total

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

6,220,167,883
6,220,167,883

- 6,220,167,883 1,900,000,000
- 6,220,167,883 1,900,000,000

- 1,900,000,000
- 1,900,000,000

Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended March 31, 2016
(b) Other information
(Amounts in INR)
Particulars
Gross Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties
(b) Other than related parties
Net Non-Performing Assets
(a) Related parties
(b) Other than related parties
Assets acquired in satisfaction of debt

March 31, 2016

March 31, 2015

-

-

-

-

(v) Investor group-wise classification of all investments^ (current and long term) in shares and securities
(both quoted and unquoted):
(Amounts in INR)
March 31, 2016

1.

Market Value
/ Break up or
fair value or
NAV
(a) Subsidiaries
(b) Companies in the same group

Book Value
(Net of
Provisions)

Book Value
(Net of
Provisions)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

9,700,000,000 9,700,000,000

3,750,000,000

3,750,000,000

Related Parties

(c) Other related parties
2.

March 31, 2015
Market Value
/ Break up or
fair value or
NAV

Other than related parties

Total

9,700,000,000 9,700,000,000 3,750,000,000 3,750,000,000

^ These investments are in the nature of credit substitutes
(vi) Investments ^
Particulars
1. Value of Investments

L  *URVV9DOXHRI,QYHVWPHQWV
(a) In India
(b) Outside India,
(ii) Provisions for Depreciation
(a) In India
(b) Outside India,

LLL  1HW9DOXHRI,QYHVWPHQWV
(a) In India
(b) Outside India.
2. Movement of provisions held towards depreciation on
investments.
(i) Opening balance
(ii) Add : Provisions made during the year
(iii) Less : Write-off / write-back of excess provisions during
the year
(iv) Closing balance

Current Year

(Amounts in INR)
Previous Year

9,700,000,000
-

3,750,000,000
-

-

-

9,700,000,000
-

3,750,000,000
-

-

-

-

-

-

-

^ These investments are in the nature of credit substitutes
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(vii) Provisions and contingencies


 %UHDNXSRI¬3URYLVLRQVDQG&RQWLQJHQFLHVVKRZQXQGHUWKHKHDG([SHQGLWXUHLQ3UR´WDQG/RVV$FFRXQW
(Amounts in INR)
Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

Provisions for depreciation on Investment

-

-

Provision towards NPA

-

(833,455,827)

766,757,003

321,912,872

-

-

Provision made towards Income tax
Other Provision and Contingencies (with details)
Provision for Standard Assets
TOTAL

33,635,503

8,025,000

800,392,506

(503,517,955)

(viii) Concentration of Advances, Exposures and NPAs
a. Concentration of Advances
(Amounts in INR)
Particulars
Total Advances to twenty largest borrowers
Percentage of Advances to twenty largest borrowers to Total
Advances of the NBFC

Current Year

Previous Year

6,220,167,883

1,900,000,000

100%

100%

b. Concentration of Exposures
(Amounts in INR)
Particulars
Total Exposure to twenty largest borrowers / customers
Percentage of Exposures to twenty largest borrowers /
customers to Total Exposure of the NBFC on borrowers /
customers

Current Year

Previous Year

15,920,167,883

5,650,000,000

100%

100%

* Includes total exposure of the Company i.e. Loans as well as Investments in the nature of credit substitute.
c. Concentration of NPAs
(Amounts in INR)
Particulars
Total Exposure to top four NPA accounts

Current Year

Previous Year

-

-

d. Sector-wise NPAs
(Amounts in INR)
Sr. No.

1
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Sector

Percentage of NPAs to Total
Advances in that sector
Current Year

Previous Year

Agriculture & allied activities

-

-

2

MSME

-

-

3

Corporate borrowers

-

-

4

Services

-

-

5

Unsecured personal loans

-

-

6

Auto loans

-

-

7

Other personal loans

-

-
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e. Movement of NPAs
(Amounts in INR)
Particulars
(i)

Net NPAs to Net Advances (%)

Current Year

Previous Year

0.00%

0.00%

-

868,411,654

(ii) Movement of NPAs (Gross)
(a) Opening balance
(b) Additions during the year

-

-

(c) Reductions during the year

-

(868,411,654)

(d) Closing balance

-

-

-

34,955,827

(iii) Movement of Net NPAs
(a) Opening balance
(b) Additions during the year

-

-

(c) Reductions during the year

-

(34,955,827)

(d) Closing balance

-

-

(a) Opening balance

-

833,455,827

(iv) Movement of provisions for NPAs (excluding provisions on
standard assets)
(b) Provisions made during the year

-

-

(c) Write-off / write-back of excess provisions

-

(833,455,827)

(d) Closing balance

-

-

(ix) Customer Complaints
Particulars

Current Year

Previous Year

(a) No. of complaints pending at the beginning of the year

-

-

(b) No. of complaints received during the year

-

-

(c) No. of complaints redressed during the year

-

-

(d) No. of complaints pending at the end of the year

-

-

(x)

The Company neither held any derivatives during the year nor has any outstanding contract at the year
end.
(xi) Exposure to capital market
(Amounts in INR)
Sr. Particulars
No.
1

2

3

As at
March 31, 2016

As at
March 31, 2015

Direct investment in equity shares, convertible bonds,
convertible debentures and units of equity-oriented mutual
funds the corpus of which is not exclusively invested in
corporate debt;

-

-

Advances against shares / bonds / debentures or other
securities or on clean basis to individuals for investment
in shares (including IPOs / ESOPs), convertible bonds,
convertible debentures, and units of equity-oriented mutual
funds;

-

-

Advances for any other purposes where shares or convertible
bonds or convertible debentures or units of equity oriented
mutual funds are taken as primary security;

-

-
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(Amounts in INR)
Sr. Particulars
No.

As at
March 31, 2016

As at
March 31, 2015

Advances for any other purposes to the extent secured
by the collateral security of shares or convertible bonds or
convertible debentures or units of equity oriented mutual
funds i.e. where the primary security other than shares /
convertible bonds / convertible debentures / units of equity
oriented mutual funds 'does not fully cover the advances;

-

-

Secured and unsecured advances to stockbrokers and
guarantees issued on behalf of stockbrokers and market
makers;

-

-

Loans sanctioned to corporates against the security of
shares / bonds / debentures or other securities or on clean
basis for meeting promoter's contribution to the equity of
new companies in anticipation of raising resources;

-

-

7

%ULGJHORDQVWRFRPSDQLHVDJDLQVWH[SHFWHGHTXLW\µRZV
issues;

-

-

8

$OOH[SRVXUHVWR9HQWXUH&DSLWDO)XQGV ERWKUHJLVWHUHGDQG
unregistered)

-

-

4

5

6

[LL  'HWDLOVRI´QDQFLQJRISDUHQWFRPSDQ\SURGXFWV1RQH
(xiii) Unsecured Advances : None
[LY 5HJLVWUDWLRQREWDLQHGIURPRWKHU´QDQFLDOVHFWRUUHJXODWRUV1RQH
(xv) Disclosure of penalties imposed by RBI and other regulators : None
(xvi) Draw down from reserves : None
(xvii) Rating assigned by credit rating agencies and migration of ratings during the year : None
Sr. Instrument
No

Credit rating agency

As at
March 31, 2016

As at
March 31, 2015

1

Commercial Paper

India Ratings & Research Private Limited

A1+

Not rated

2

Bank Term Loan

India Ratings & Research Private Limited

AA-

Not rated

3

NCD

India Ratings & Research Private Limited

AA-

Not rated

(xviii) The Company has not entered into any securitisaion / assignment transactions during the year.
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(xix) Liability side break-up
(Amounts in INR)
Particulars

As at March 31, 2016
Amount
Amount
outstanding
overdue

As at March 31, 2015
Amount
Amount
outstanding
overdue

Liabilities side :
(1) Loans and advances availed by
the NBFCs inclusive of interest
accrued thereon but not paid:
(a) Debenture : Secured
: Unsecured
(b) Deferred Credits
(c) Term Loans
(d) Inter-corporate loans and
borrowing
(e) Commercial Paper
(f) Public Deposits
(g) Other Loans
(2) Break-up
of
(1)(f)
above
(Outstanding public deposits
inclusive of interest accrued
thereon but not paid):
(a) In the form of Unsecured
debentures
(b) In the form of partly secured
debentures i.e debentures
where there is a shortfall in
the value of security
(c) Other public deposits

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(Amounts in INR)
Particulars

As at
March 31, 2016

As at March 31,
2015

Amount
outstanding

Amount
outstanding

Assets side :
(3) Break-up of Loans and Advances including bills receivables
(other than those included in (4) below ):
(a) Secured

6,220,167,883

1,900,000,000

-

-

(a) Financial lease

-

-

(b) Operating lease

-

-

(b) Unsecured
(4) Break up of Leased Assets and stock on hire counting towards
AFC activities
(i)

Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors :

(ii) Stock on Hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:

-

-

(a) Assets on hire

-

-

(b) Repossessed Assets

-

-

-

-

(iii) Other loans counting towards AFC Activities :
(a) Loans where assets have been repossessed
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(Amounts in INR)
Particulars

As at
March 31, 2016

As at March 31,
2015

Amount
outstanding

Amount
outstanding

(b) Loans other than (a) above
(5) Break-up of Investments :
Current Investments :
1.

Quoted :
(I)

Shares : (a) Equity
(b) Preference

-

-

-

-

-

(ii) Debenture and Bonds

-

-

(iii) Units of mutual funds

-

-

(iv) Government Securities
(v) Others (Investment in the nature of credit substitute)
2.

675,000,000

-

-

675,000,000

-

-

-

Unquoted :
(I)

Shares: (a) Equity
(b) Preference

-

-

(ii) Debentures and Bonds

-

-

(iii) Units of mutual funds

-

-

(iv) Government Securities

-

-

(v) Others

-

-

9,025,000,000

3,750,000,000

Long Term investments :
1. Quoted :
(I)

Shares : (a) Equity

-

-

(b) Preference

-

-

(ii) Debentures and Bonds

-

-

(iii) Units of mutual funds

-

-

(iv) Government Securities

-

-

9,025,000,000

3,750,000,000

(v) Others (Investment in the nature of credit substitute)
2.

Unquoted :
(I)
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Shares: (a) Equity

-

-

(b) Preference

-

-

(ii) Debentures and Bonds

-

-

(iii) Units of mutual funds

-

-

(iv) Government Securities

-

-

(v) Others

-

-
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30 Employee Stock Option Plan (‘ESOP’)
The company provides share-based payment schemes to its employees. During the year ended 31 March 2016,
an employee stock option plan (ESOP) was in existence. The relevant details of the scheme and the grant are
as below.


2Q -XQH   WKH ERDUG RI GLUHFWRUV DSSURYHG WKH (TXLW\ VHWWOHG $OWLFR 6WRFN EDVHG ,QFHQWLYH SODQ
(Scheme 2015) for issue of stock options to the key employees and directors of the company. According to
the Scheme , the employee selected by the remuneration committee from time to time will be entitled to stock
options, subject to satisfaction of the prescribed vesting conditions, viz., continuing employment of 5 years.
The contractual life (comprising the vesting period and the exercise period) of options granted is 20 years as
per the Scheme. The other relevant terms of the grant are as below:



9HVWLQJSHULRG

\HDUV



([HUFLVHSHULRG

'XULQJWKHOLIHRIWKHRSWLRQVVXEMHFWWRHYHQWVDVVSHFL´HGLQWKH6FKHPH

Expected life

20 years

Exercise price

INR 39.5 – INR 47.5

The details of activity under the Scheme 2015 are summarized below:

Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Granted during the year
Forfeited during the year
Exercised during the year
Outstanding at the end of the year
Exercisable at the end of the year

31-Mar-16
31-Mar-15
No. of options WAEP (INR) No. of options WAEP (INR)
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
11,028,033
42.61
Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil

Nil
11,028,033
Nil

Nil
42.61
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the stock options outstanding as at 31 March 2016 is 19.24
years. The range of exercise prices for options outstanding at the end was INR 39 to INR 47.5.
The weighted average fair value of stock options granted during the year was INR 26.40 (31 March 2015: nil).
The Black Scholes valuation model has been used for computing the weighted average fair value considering
the following inputs:
Particulars

31-Mar-16

31 March 2015*

Dividend yield (%)

0.00%

*

Expected volatility

0.47

*

8.00%

*

42.61

*

INR 39.5 – INR 47.5

*

3.50

*

Risk-free interest rate
Weighted average share price (INR)
Exercise price (INR)
Expected life of options granted in years
* Not applicable since no ESOP’s were granted during the year.

The expected life of the stock is based on historical data and current expectations and is not necessarily
LQGLFDWLYH RI H[HUFLVH SDWWHUQV WKDW PD\ RFFXU 7KH H[SHFWHG YRODWLOLW\ UHµHFWV WKH DVVXPSWLRQ WKDW WKH
historical volatility over a period similar to the life of the options is indicative of future trends, which may also
not necessarily be the actual outcome.
The company measures the cost of ESOP using the intrinsic value method. Had the company used the fair
YDOXHPRGHOWRGHWHUPLQHFRPSHQVDWLRQLWVSUR´WDIWHUWD[DQGHDUQLQJVSHUVKDUHDVUHSRUWHGZRXOGKDYH
changed to the amounts indicated below:
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(Amounts in INR)
Particulars
3UR´WDIWHUWD[DVUHSRUWHG
Add: ESOP cost using the intrinsic value method
Less: ESOP cost using the fair value method
Proforma profit after tax

March 31, 2016

March 31, 2015

1,448,283,472

618,149,224

-

-

20,421,029

-

1,427,862,442

618,149,224

Earnings Per Share
Basic
-

As reported

3.84

3.89

-

Proforma

3.78

N/A

Diluted

31

-

As reported

3.79

3.89

-

Proforma

3.74

N/A

Previous Year Comparatives
7KHFRPSDQ\KDVFODVVL´HGWKLV\HDUV´JXUHVWRFRQIRUPWRSUHYLRXV\HDUVFODVVL´FDWLRQ
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